
 

 

www.lichfielddc.gov.uk 
 

 

/lichfielddc 
 

 

lichfield_dc 

 

 

MyStaffs App 

 

Your ref  

 

Our ref     
Ask for Mark Hooper 

Email mark.hooper@lichfielddc.gov.uk 

  

 

District Council House, Frog Lane 
Lichfield, Staffordshire WS136YU  

 
Customer Services 01543 308000 

Direct Line 01543 308064 

Friday, 22 May 2020 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
CABINET 
 
A meeting of the Cabinet has been arranged to take place on Tuesday, 2nd June, 2020 at 
6.00 pm to consider the following business. 
 
In light of the current Covid-19 pandemic and government advice on social distancing, the 
meeting will be held online and streamed live on the Council’s YouTube channel. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Christie Tims 
Head of Corporate Services and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of Cabinet 
 

Councillors Pullen (Chairman), Eadie (Vice-Chair), E Little, Lax, Smith, Strachan and 
A Yeates 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBh2VMMDxc6Phk2zRaoYD6A


 

 

www.lichfielddc.gov.uk 
 

 

/lichfielddc 
 

 

lichfield_dc 

 

 

MyStaffs App 

 

 
AGENDA 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

3. Money Matters 2019/20: Review of Financial Performance against 
the Financial Strategy  

3 - 36 

4. Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy  37 - 122 

 



 
 

Money Matters : 2019/20 Review of Financial  
Performance against the Financial Strategy 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement 

 

 Date: 2 June 2020 

Agenda Item:  

Contact Officer: Anthony Thomas 

Tel Number: 01543 308012 Cabinet 
Email: Anthony.thomas@lichfielddc.gov.uk 

Key Decision? YES  

Local Ward Members : Full Council 
 

   

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 The report covers the financial performance for the financial year 2019/20. 

1.2 The Net Cost of Services had a £25,074 adverse variance, corporate accounts had a £6,634 adverse 
variance and funding had a £636 adverse variance. Therefore the overall adverse variance was £32,344. 

1.3 The Original Budget estimated a transfer of £148,860 to general reserves. Money Matters Reports during 
2019/20 have identified favourable financial performance that resulted in an Approved Budget transfer 
to general reserves of £1,113,560. The actual transfer was £1,081,216 and is £32,344 lower than budget. 

1.4 The actual transfer is £932,356 higher than the Original Budget. In terms of this variance, £210,466 is 
related to the Net Cost of Services (comparable with the target of +/- £250,000) and £721,890 is related 
to one off items (Business Rate Grants, returned Earmarked Reserves and Treasury Management) 

1.5 The Capital Programme was (£13,362,351) lower than the Approved Budget mainly due to under 
performance on Investment in Property (£10,500,000) and Disabled Facilities Grants of (£609,547). 

1.6 Income from Capital Receipts was higher than the Approved Budget by (£149,784) due mainly to 
additional Bromford Right to Buy Sales achieved at the end of the financial year. 

1.7 In terms of Council Tax, Business Rates, Sundry Debtors and Supplier Performance: 

 Council Tax collection was 98.50% and total arrears were £2,517,197 (Council share £327,236). 

 The Council Tax Collection Fund was in surplus as projected with the Council’s 13% share being 
(£234,310) compared to the Approved Budget of (£208,510). This additional income of (£25,800) 
will be included in the 2021/22 budget. 

 Sundry Debt for income to be collected in 2019/20 has reduced by (£186,088) compared to 2018/19 
and the value outstanding at 31 March 2020 has increased by £601,563.  

 Retained Business Rate Income was (£2,829,210) compared to the Approved Budget of 
(£2,829,210).  

 The Business Rates Collection Fund was in surplus as projected with the Council’s 40% share being 
(£1,072,553) compared to the Approved Budget of (£122,100). This additional income of (£950,453) 
will be included in the 2021/22 budget. 

 Business Rates collection was 98.90% and total arrears were £555,462 (Council share £222,185). 

 The payment of suppliers within 30 days was 86.15% and remains below our 90% target. 

1.8 The Council’s investments achieved a risk status of AA- that was more secure than the aim of A- and yield 
exceeded all four of the industry standard London Interbank (LIBID) yield benchmarks.  

1.9 The Council collected a total of (£420,916) in Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) receipts, of these 
receipts £21,046 (5%) has been applied to administrative expenses, £26,611 CIL expenditure was allocated 
or took place and £70,294 of CIL receipts were allocated or transferred to Parish Councils. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

hoopema
Typewriter
3



 
 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 To note the report and issues raised within and that Leadership Team with Cabinet Members will continue 
to closely monitor and manage the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

2.2 To note the transfers to earmarked reserves and general and earmarked reserves at 31 March 2020. 

2.3 To note that in terms of the financial impact of COVID-19, there was a relatively limited impact in 2019/20 
with a projected higher financial impact in 2020/21 and potentially beyond. 

2.4 To approve £13,454,000 of Capital Programme slippage related to 2019/20 being added to the Approved 
Budget in 2020/21 as outlined at APPENDIX E. 

2.5 Cabinet to note the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) financial year report which is in accordance with 
Regulation 62 of The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

2.6 Cabinet approve a delegation to the Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement to agree the preferred 
option and the legal arrangements for the Financial Information System in line with the approved budget. 

2.7 To endorse the 3 month extension of the arrangement for the Interim Procurement Manager at a cost of 
£29,000 (a total cost £102,000) and to note the outcome from the options appraisal in relation to future 
procurement support. 

That Cabinet recommends to Council : 

2.8 To approve the actual 2019/20 Prudential Indicators contained within the report. 
 

3. Background  

Budget Management 

3.1. The MTFS approved by Council on 19 February 2019 included the Original Budget for 2019/20 and set out 
the allocation of resources and the policies and parameters within which managers are required to operate. 

3.2. Throughout the financial year, Money Matters reports were provided to both Cabinet and Strategic 
(Overview and Scrutiny) Committee at three, six and eight month intervals to monitor performance.  

3.3. The Money Matters reports update the Approved Budget for latest projections and the eight month report 
formed the basis of the Revised Approved Budget for 2019/20 approved by Council on 18 February 2020. 

The Revenue Budget 
3.4. Financial performance is shown in detail at APPENDIX A and in summary below: 

 

£100,030

(£415,815)

£200,384

(£285,535)

(£531,420)

£35,620

(£207,535)

£226,404

(£29,415)

£7,270

(£600,000)

(£500,000)

(£400,000)

(£300,000)

(£200,000)

(£100,000)

£0

£100,000

£200,000

£300,000

Enabling people Shaping place
Developing
prosperity A good council

Corporate
Expenditure

Variance to Original Budget Variance to Approved Budget

Page 4



 
 

Performance compared to the Approved Budget 

3.5. The variance is shown in summary below and in detail at APPENDIX B by Service Area: 

  

  Variance 

  
COVID-19 

Bad Debt 
Provision 

Other 
Variances 

Enabling People         

  ● Lower spend on CCTV       (6,424) 

  ● Additional spend on Friary Grange VI Leisure Centre       36,700 

  ● Bad debt provision change     10,017   

  ● Additional Homelessness related spend       67,700 

  

● Additional Income from Licensing, Food Safety and 
Housing Enforcement, Court costs       (58,950) 

  ● Minor balance       (13,423) 

            

Shaping place         

  

● Additional net income from Street Naming and 
Numbering, Grounds Maintenance and Street 
Cleansing       (98,403) 

  ● Vacant Posts savings       (44,794) 

  ● Bad debt provision change     (60,480)   

  ● Minor balance       (3,858) 

            

Developing prosperity         

  ● Bad debt provision change     146,022   

  ● Additional agency staff costs       20,830 

  ● District Council House Accommodation Review       30,000 

  ● Reduction in Car Park Performance   50,000   (7,120) 

  ● Net increase in Planning performance       (17,706) 

  ● Additional spend on City Centre redevelopment       10,059 

  ● Minor balance       (5,681) 

            

A good council         

  ● Unspent Digital Strategy Infrastructure budget       (50,000) 

  ● Earmarked Reserve created for the People Strategy       100,000 

  ● Vacant Posts savings       (42,299) 

  ● Additional court fee income       (15,700) 

  ● Decrease in postage spend       (12,150) 

  ● Minor balance       (9,266) 

Total - Net Cost of Services 
  50,000 95,559 (120,485) 

 25,074 

Corporate Expenditure 

Net Treasury - increased interest receipts     (18,460) 

     6,614 

Earmarked Reserves     25,094 

Funding      636 

Lower transfer to General Reserves     £32,344 

3.6. The changes in Bad Debt Provision reflect those that would normally occur through reassessment of the 

collectability of debt plus additional allowances for the increased risk associated with COVID-19. 

 

Page 5



 
 

Fees and Charges 

3.7. The largest fees and charges budgets together with actual income achieved compared to the Approved 
Budget are shown in detail at APPENDIX C and in summary below: 

 

3.8. The fees and charges included in the above graph are stated gross, when there are increases in income 
there is also a proportionate increase in expenditure. Some of the income included above is part of 
revenue sharing arrangements or there are agreements for transferring to/from reserves: 

 Car Parks – 12% of gross income less deductions has been transferred to third parties or reserves. 

 Garden Waste – 42.16% of income relates to Tamworth Borough Council and contributes to the 
cost of providing the scheme. 

 Land Charges and Building Control – these are trading accounts and any surplus or deficit is 
transferred to/from the reserves. 

Closing the Funding Gap Progress 

3.9. The progress to date on closing the Funding Gap is summarised below: 

  Cabinet 
Report/Decision 

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

Original Funding Gap (£462,000) £613,000 £959,000 £1,507,000 

Cash Payment Facilities 03/12/2019 (9,550) (9,550) (9,550) (9,550) 

Climate Change See Below 0 14,000 14,000 14,000 

Revenues and Benefits Software 24/03/2020 (7,760) (10,910) (14,170) (17,510) 

The Joint Waste Service See Below (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) 

Current Funding Gap (£579,310) £506,540 £849,280 £1,393,940 

Climate Change 

3.10. To reduce the carbon emissions at the Council, we know that buying green electricity has seen other 
councils reduce their carbon emissions by up to 20%. This switch can hopefully be secured with little 
effort and at an increased cost of up to £14,000 (10% of our energy bill) for 2020/21 onwards (2020/21 
will be funded from the earmarked reserve of £100,000). 

The Joint Waste Service 

3.11. The Joint Waste Service with Tamworth Borough Council began operating in July 2010. Since that date 
the amount of central support costs charged to the Service by both Authorities has largely remained 
at the same level as those agreed back in 2010. During 2019/20, as part of the Fit for the Future review 
of the Joint Waste Service, it was agreed that central support costs should be reviewed to see if the 
levels charged by both Councils were still appropriate. 

£743,610

£2,104,979

£1,477,514

£469,091

£253,002

£896,154 £744,492

£69,560

£71,521

£17,666

(£28,721)

£29,538

(£24,964)

£147,438

(500,000)

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

Planning
Applications Car Parks Garden Waste Trade Waste Land Charges

Building
Control

Property
Rental

2019/20 Actual 2019/20 (Over)/Under Achieved Compared to Budget

Page 6



 
 

3.12. The outcome of this review was that whilst Tamworth’s costs charged to the Service were still at an 
appropriate level, those charged by Lichfield were approximately £238,000 less than those actually 
incurred by the Service. It was therefore agreed that these additional costs will be shared by both 
Authorities from 1 April 2020 in the ratio that all other income and expenditure is charged (based on 
property count).  

3.13. It was also agreed that central support costs will be reviewed on an annual basis as part of the MTFS 
budgeting process to ensure the level of costs charged remains appropriate and to allow for any 
changes to be reflected on an annual basis. 

3.14. The progress on closing the Funding Gap will continue to be monitored throughout the year. 

Events Performance 

3.15. A summary of the financial performance of events undertaken in 2019/20 is shown below: 

  Budget 
£ 

Actual 
£ 

Variance 
£ 

Proms in Beacon Park  2,260 4,041 1,781 

Externally Managed Events / Concessions  (15,600) (35,863) (20,263) 

Other Items including casual employees 1,180 21,078 19,898 

Direct Event Contribution (£12,160) (£10,744) £1,416 

3.16. The Original Budget assumed that the cost of the Business Development Post of £52,920 would be 
funded by additional income of (£52,920) from commercial activity including events. 

3.17. The Money Matters Report to Cabinet on 11 February 2020 projected that the budget figure would not 
be achieved. This was mainly due to the impact of the work required to manage the decision to keep 
Friary Grange Leisure Centre open, including managing the project of essential works to enable the 
Centre to continue to operate. This resulted in the Business Development Officer having to spend a 
large proportion of time on this project thus decreasing the capacity available to generate additional 
income. 

3.18. The income target remains in 2020/21 and beyond and therefore, given the Friary Grange Leisure 
Centre project, its continued validity will need to be considered as part of the development of the new 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

Earmarked Reserves 

3.19. Earmarked reserves are classified into unrestricted reserves where there are no restrictions over their 
use and restricted reserves where their establishment or use is determined by a legal or partnership 
agreement such as the Birmingham Road car park reserve.  

3.20. The following Earmarked Reserve requests, to carry forward unspent expenditure budgets or additional 
income from 2019/20, were agreed and are incorporated within the financial performance: 

Service  
Area 

Reserve Name 
Government 

Grants 
Other Total 

ASCE Communications Review Costs  (30,000) (30,000) 
ECDE Custom/Self Build & Brownfield Register (17,446)  (17,446) 
ECDE Conservation Policy Update  (15,720) (15,720) 

Total  (£17,446) (£45,720) (£63,166) 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



 
 

3.21. The requests made related to: 

 Government Grants relate to amounts of grant received near to the end of March 2020 where there 
was insufficient time available to spend the money. 

 Communications Review Costs are potential one-off costs from the Communications review 
expected to be carried out in 2020/21. 

 Conservation Policy Update relates to work yet to be procured.  The document requires updating 
to enable its continued use as part of the Local Plan evidence base. 

3.22. A summary of earmarked reserves is shown in the chart below and in detail at APPENDIX D.  

 

3.23. The detailed list of Earmarked Reserves, assuming all of the requests submitted above are approved, is 
shown at APPENDIX D. 

Revenue General Reserves  

3.24. The Original Budget estimated a contribution to general reserves of £148,860, the Approved Budget 
estimated a contribution of £1,113,560 and the actual contribution was £1,081,216. 

 

£6,591,805 £6,793,676

£3,798,358
£4,197,455

£10,390,163
£10,991,131

£0

£2,000,000

£4,000,000

£6,000,000

£8,000,000

£10,000,000

£12,000,000

01 April 2019 31 March 2020

Unrestricted Restricted

£1,600,000 £1,600,000

£3,859,288
£4,791,644

£5,459,288

£6,391,644

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

£6,000,000

£7,000,000

Original Budget plus 2018/19 Outturn Actual

Minimum level of General Reserves Available General Reserves

Page 8



 
 

The Capital Programme 

3.25. The financial performance for the Capital Programme is below the Approved Budget by (£13,362,351) 
and this is shown in detail at APPENDIX E and in summary below: 

 
Performance compared to the Approved Budget 

3.26. There were variances compared to the Approved Budget related to: 

  Variances 

  Slippage Other 

* Accessible Homes (Disabled Facilities Grants) - reflects delivery performance on the 
Support for Independent Living in Staffordshire Partnership (£409,000)   

* Unallocated S106 Affordable Housing Monies - planned acquisitions have not been 
completed during the financial year as planned (£270,000)   

* Burntwood Leisure Centre - Combined Heat and Power Unit - the completion of 
these works has been delayed due to technical utility issues (£223,000)   

* Other Projects (£335,000) 25,810  

Enabling People Total (£1,237,000) £25,810 

* Equity investment in the Council owned Company - the investment has taken place 
in 2020/21 (£225,000)   

* Other Projects (£44,000) 65,213  

Shaping Place Total (£269,000) £65,213 

* Birmingham Road Site - Coach Park - acquisition was not completed and therefore 
the enhancement works did not take place (£850,000)   

* Multi Storey Car Park Refurbishment Project - the programming of the works was 
adjusted to reflect the short term redevelopment works on the adjacent site (£300,000)   
* Birmingham Road Site - Short Term Redevelopment - the commencement of the 
works was delayed (£222,000)   

* Other Projects (£50,000) 788  

Developing Prosperity Total (£1,422,000) £788 

* Investment in Property - planned acquisition did not take place due to PWLB 
consultation and subsequent CIPFA guidance (£10,500,000)   

* Other Projects (£26,000) (162 ) 

A Good Council Total (£10,526,000) (£162) 

Total Variance 
(£13,454,000) £91,649 

(£13,362,351) 

(£1,263,190)
(£1,552,787)

(£362,212)

(£6,143,162)

(£1,211,190)
(£203,787)

(£1,421,212)

(£10,526,162)

(£12,000,000)

(£10,000,000)

(£8,000,000)

(£6,000,000)

(£4,000,000)

(£2,000,000)

£0

Enabling People Shaping Place Developing Prosperity Good Council

Variance to Original Budget Variance to Approved Budget

Page 9



 
 

3.27. The slippage of £13,454,000 is recommended to be added to the Capital Programme in 2020/21 when this 
delayed spend is planned to take place and the Revised Budget is shown at APPENDIX E. 

Capital Receipts 

3.28. The Original Budget, Approved Budget and actual capital receipts received are shown below:  

 

3.29. Capital receipts were (£149,784) higher than the Approved Budget. The main reason is that Bromford RTB 
Sales were higher than estimated because two properties with an income share of (£147,000) were sold 
during the final quarter. 

Finance Information System Upgrade 

3.30. The Medium Term Financial Strategy included a project to upgrade the current Financial Information 
System either through an upgrade to the current system with Procurement, Accounts Payable and General 
Ledger currently provided by Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council and the sundry income system 
currently provided by Northgate or procurement of a new system. 

3.31. The upgrade could be implemented through the current Solihull MBC arrangement or through the 
procurement of an alternative system using a compliant procurement route. 

3.32. The project has commenced however the current COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact on progressing 
the project as planned. 

3.33. Therefore to enable a decision on the preferred option to be implemented in line with the approved 
budget in a more expedient way, a delegation to the Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement to 
agree the preferred option and the legal arrangements is now recommended. 

 

 

 
 
 

Original Budget Approved Budget Actual

Other £30,000

DFG Settlements £9,000 £10,000 £10,000

Bromford RTB Sales £157,000 £276,049

Asset Sales £1,047,000 £688,000 £688,735

Total £1,056,000 £855,000 £1,004,784

£1,047,000

£688,000 £688,735

£157,000
£276,049

£9,000

£10,000

£10,000
£30,000

£1,056,000

£855,000

£1,004,784

£0

£200,000

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

£1,000,000

£1,200,000

Page 10



 
 

Council Tax  

3.34. The collection performance for Council Tax debt covering all years is shown below: 

  

3.35. A summary of the Council Tax Collection Fund Performance is shown below and is based on Lichfield’s 
(including Parishes) current share of Council Tax of 13%: 

 

3.36. There was a higher surplus of (£202,970) compared to the Approved Budget (8 months). This higher 
surplus was due to higher income from Council Tax and a lower bad debt provision than estimated. 

 

97.49% 97.47% 97.19% 97.74%

98.80% 98.80% 98.70% 98.50%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20

Council Tax : Collection 
Performance

All Years In Year

£232,633 £243,693 £274,652 £327,236

£1,556,852 £1,630,866
£1,838,054

£2,189,961

£1,789,485

£1,874,559

£2,112,706

£2,517,197

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20

Council Tax : Total Arrears

Lichfield Partners

£166,990 £194,230 £208,510 £234,310

£1,146,830
£1,333,890

£1,431,970
£1,609,140

£1,313,820

£1,528,120
£1,640,480

£1,843,450

£0

£200,000

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

£1,000,000

£1,200,000

£1,400,000

£1,600,000

£1,800,000

£2,000,000

3 Months 6 Months 8 Months Year

Lichfield Partners

Page 11



 
 

Housing Supply 

3.37. The completions for Council Tax (left hand chart) from April 2019 to March 2020 and New Homes Bonus 
(right hand chart) from September 2019 to March 2020 1are shown below: 

  

3.38. Housing supply has increased over the last three years and this trend has been reflected in future year 
estimates contained in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. However the impact of COVID-19 on housing 
supply will need to be monitored because of the potential risk to Council Tax income estimates. 

Sundry Debtors (including Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and Section 106 (S106)) 

3.39. The transaction levels and collection performance in 2019/20 compared to 2018/19 is shown below: 

 

3.40. Total income raised in 2019/20 is marginally lower than in 2018/19; although the element related to 
CIL/Section 106 is lower and will reflect development progress. 

3.41. Invoices outstanding has increased compared to 2018/19, this is mainly in relation to CIL/S106 where 
payment is based on the approved CIL/S106 policies including the ability to pay by instalments. 

                                                           
1 Empty Properties are an estimate at early May 2020. 

351
315

625 
674 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

New Properties Band D
Equivalents

Council Tax Property Growth as 
at 31-03-2020 (April to March) 

Budget Actual

416 403

0

83

339
380

6

93

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

New Properties New Properties
(Band D

Equivalents)

Empty
Properties

(Band D
Equivalents)

Affordable
Housing

Properties

New Homes Bonus as at 31-03-2020 (September to 
September)

Budget Actual

£7,911,673

£7,725,585

£37,268 £51,039

£2,407,530
£3,009,093

£1,848,283
£2,447,046

£559,247 £562,047

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

£6,000,000

£7,000,000

£8,000,000

£9,000,000

Qtr 4
2018/19

Qtr 4
2019/20

Qtr 4
2018/19

Qtr 4
2019/20

Qtr 4
2018/19

Qtr 4
2019/20

Qtr 4
2018/19

Qtr 4
2019/20

Qtr 4
2018/19

Qtr 4
2019/20

Income Raised Debts Written Off Invoices Outstanding Invoices Outstanding
Less Than 6 Months Old

Invoices Outstanding
More Than 6 Months

Old

Sundry Debtors CIL/S106

Page 12



 
 

Business Rates 

3.42. The Retained Business Rate income was (£2,829,210) compared to the Approved Budget of (£2,829,210).  

3.43. The collection performance for Business Rates covering all years is shown below: 

  

3.44. In 2019/20 the Council was part of the Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Business Rate Pilot and as a 
consequence Staffordshire retained 75% of Business Rates income compared to 50% in a non-pilot year. 

3.45. The Business Rates Collection Fund Performance based on our 40% share of Business Rates is: 

 

3.46. There was a higher surplus of (£2,376,183) compared to the Approved Budget (8 months). This higher 
surplus was due to: 

 Higher income from Business Rates of (£506,966). 

 Lower business rate arrears at the end of the financial year than estimated therefore reducing 
the transfer to the bad debt provision by (£288,007). 

 Lower appeals at the end of the financial year than estimated (based on the MHCLG allowance 
of 4.7% of Net Rates Payable) therefore reducing the appeals provision by (£1,581,210). 

97.22% 98.58% 97.89% 99.62%

97.50% 98.90% 98.80% 98.90%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20

Business Rates : Collection 
Performance

All Years In Year

£483,360
£298,596 £324,783

£222,185

£725,039

£447,893
£487,175

£333,277

£1,208,399

£746,489
£811,958

£555,462

£0

£200,000

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

£1,000,000

£1,200,000

£1,400,000

Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20

Business Rates : Total Arrears

Lichfield Partners

£197,300 £121,300 £122,100

£1,072,553
£295,900

£181,900 £183,100

£1,608,830

£493,200
£303,200 £305,200

£2,681,383

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

3 Months 6 Months 8 Months Year

Lichfield Partners

Page 13



 
 

Supplier Payment Performance 

3.47. The performance of invoice payments to suppliers within 30 days for the last three years is:  

 

3.48. There are initiatives taking place, including the improvements to procurement detailed below and wider 
use of payment cards for low value transactions, which should continue to improve payment 
performance. 

3.49. During 2019/20 we have incurred £439 in late payment interest and fees. 

Procurement Activity 

3.50. The interim Procurement Manager has been involved in the provision of procurement advice in relation 
to 58 potential procurements totalling circa £3.37m in anticipated value, supporting the selection of the 
appropriate procurement strategy, route to market and commercial outcomes. 

3.51. An analysis of stationery spend led by the interim Procurement Manager, under an existing contract, 
identified potential savings of (£2,000) per annum and this has reduced the annual procurement savings 
target to £84,910. 

3.52. A future Procurement Service options appraisal was agreed at Leadership Team and has initiated the 
creation of a small internal team comprising of a Procurement Lead and Procurement Specialist. Job 
Descriptions and Person Specifications have been developed and are currently going through the Job 
Evaluation process. Recruitment will follow but is likely to be challenging. 

3.53. The current pandemic and its impact on activity such as recruitment means that, with the agreement of 
Cabinet, the current arrangement with the interim Procurement Manager was extended by a further 
three months until 28 August 2020 at a cost of £29,000 (total cost of the arrangement will be £102,000). 

3.54. Three of four procurement training courses have been delivered to officers providing some basic 
guidance on procurement, specification writing and evaluation. The fourth, contract management, has 
been postponed for the time being due to the pandemic. 

3.55. Brief guides to Selling to the Council, Contract Management and Social Value in Procurement have been 
created. The Friary Grange Leisure Centre procurement includes a Social Value question as part of the 
evaluation criteria.  

3.56. The Council now has its own version of the e-Tendering system originally supplied via Wolverhampton 
City Council. The system currently has 28 users, and a number of procurements have been run under 
the system from standalone procurements to mini-competitions within existing frameworks. 

3.57. Links with the wider West Midlands Heads of Procurement Network has been established to further 
explore opportunities for collaboration and knowledge sharing. 

3.58. Frameworks and accessible contracts from all the significant public sector buying hubs are regularly 
shared with officers to increase awareness of those opportunities available. 

81.81% 81.78%
86.15%

50.00%

70.00%

90.00%

Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20

% Invoices Paid in 30 days Target 90%

Page 14



 
 

Investment Strategy 

3.59. The Council undertakes investments for three broad purposes: 

 It approves the support of public services by lending or buying shares in other organisations – 
Service Investments. 

 To earn investment income – Commercial Investments. 

 It has surplus cash, as a result of its day to day activities, when income is received in advance of 
expenditure or where it holds cash on behalf of another body ready for payment in the future – 
Treasury Management Investments. 

3.60. The Government has recognised in recent Ministry of Housing, Community and Local Government 
(MHCLG) guidance, as a result of increased commercial activity, that the principles included in Statutory 
Guidance requiring that all investments should prioritise security and liquidity over yield must also be 
applied to service and commercial investments. 

3.61. The MHCLG Guidance requires the approval by Council of an Investment Strategy Report to increase the 
transparency around service and commercial investment activity. The Council approved its Investment 
Strategy Report on 18 February 2020. 

Service Investments 

3.62. There were three investments of a service nature budgeted to take place in 2019/20. The investment 
and net return included in the Approved Budget is detailed below: 

  Budget Actual Variance 

Equity in the Local Authority Company £225,000 £0 (£225,000) 

Net Income £0 £0 £0 

Net Return 0.00% 0.00%   

Investment in Burntwood Leisure Centre (extra funded by Freedom) £1,395,000 £1,422,888 £27,888 

VAT Benefit (£19,000) (£19,000) £0 

Net Income (after loan repayments) (£38,000) (£38,000) £0 

Net Return (excluding VAT Benefit) 2.72% 2.67%   

ICT Cloud £25,000 £34,200 £9,200 

Net Income (£30,000) £0 £30,000 

Net Return 120.00% 0.00%   

Total Investment £1,645,000 £1,457,088 (£187,912) 

Total Net Income (£68,000) (£38,000) £30,000 

Net Return 4.13% 2.61%  

3.63. The investment in Burntwood Leisure Centre has taken place and is generating net income. The net 
return from the ICT Cloud project is unlikely to be achieved following agreement to a project change. 

Commercial Investments 

3.64. The only commercial investment currently planned relates to the Investment in Property and the 
investment and net return in the Approved Budget is detailed below: 

  Budget Actual Variance 

Investment in Property £10,500,000 £0 (£10,500,000) 

Net Income £0 £0 £0 

Net Return (previous year end) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

3.65. To date, no property investment has taken place and therefore the budgeted net income is not currently 
being generated. 

3.66. The approach to the Investment in Property will need to be reviewed following updated 
Government/CIPFA Guidance and the Public Works Loans Board consultation. 

Page 15



 
 

Treasury Management Investments 

The Security of Our Investments 

3.67. The investments the Council had at the 31 March 2020 of £34.55m (with the property fund and diversified 
income funds valued at original investment of £2m) by type and Country are summarised below and in 
detail at APPENDIX F: 

 

3.68. The Council’s portfolio size (with the property fund and diversified investment funds valued at their 
current values of £5.4m), average credit score, diversification and exposure to ‘Bail in’ risk compared to 
Arlingclose Clients is shown below: 

  

£1,000,000

£4,999,500

£12,550,000

£4,000,000

£2,000,000

£10,000,000

£0 £2,000,000 £4,000,000 £6,000,000 £8,000,000 £10,000,000 £12,000,000 £14,000,000

Singaporean Banks

UK Banks

Money Market Funds

Diversified Income Fund

Property Fund

Local Authorities

£28.5 £27.2

£71.9
£5.4 £11.9

£12.6

£0.0

£10.0

£20.0

£30.0

£40.0

£50.0

£60.0

£70.0

£80.0

£90.0

Lichfield 49 District
Councils

127 All
Authorities

Portfolio Size (£m) as at 31-Mar-20

Internal Investments External Funds

4.04

3.95

4.03

0.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00

Lichfield

49 District Councils

127 All Authorities

Security - Average Credit Risk Score
(Higher Security shown by a lower risk 

score)

Page 16



 
 

  

3.69. The current value of the Property Fund and Diversified Income Fund investments, together with the value 
of the earmarked reserve at the end of 2019/20 intended to offset reductions in value, is shown below: 

 

 

 

19

14

14

0 5 10 15 20

Lichfield

49 District Councils

127 All Authorities

Security - Diversification Shown by 
Number of Counterparties/Funds

61%

59%

56%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80%

Lichfield

49 District Councils

127 All Authorities

Security - Proportion Exposed to Bail-
in Risk

£2,000,000
£1,859,135

£140,865
£127,665

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

Initial Investment Value at Mar 2020 Book Loss Reserve

Property Fund

£2,000,000

£1,773,174

£226,826

£10,000

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

Initial Investment Value at Mar 2020 Book Loss Reserve

CCLA Diversified Income Fund

Page 17



 
 

 

3.70. It is important to note that whilst all three of the Strategic Fund investments show ‘book’ losses at 31 
March 2020 the valuations occurred at the height of the pandemic when asset prices were very volatile. 
In April, the valuations related to the two Diversified Income Fund investments have increased and 
therefore the ‘book’ losses have reduced although the financial markets currently remain volatile. 

3.71. Our aim for the risk status of our investments was A- or higher. The risk status based on the length of the 
investment and the value for a 12 month period is summarised in the graph below: 

 

 

 

£2,000,000
£1,823,558

£176,442

£0 0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

200000

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

Initial Investment Value at Mar 2020 Book Loss Reserve

Ninety One (previously Investec) Diversified Income Fund

Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20

Risk Status of Investments 

The Value of the Investment The Maturity Date of the Investment Risk Status Aim

AAA

AA+

AA

AA-

A+

A

A-

BBB+

BBB

BBB-

Page 18



 
 

The Liquidity of our Investments 

3.72. The Council has not had to temporarily borrow during 2019/20 and retains a proportion of its investments 
in instant access Money Market Fund investments to ensure there is sufficient cash available to pay for 
goods and services. The investments by type are shown below: 

 

3.73. The proportion of the investment portfolio available within 100 days compared to all Arlingclose clients is 
shown in the graph below: 

 

 
 

Fixed Term 
Investments, 

£12,000,000, 35%

Money Market Funds, 
£12,550,000, 36%

Property Fund, 
£2,000,000, 6%

Diversified Income 
Fund, £4,000,000, 12%

Call Accounts with 
Notice Period, 

£3,999,500, 11%

69%

62%

70%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Lichfield 49 District Councils 127 All Authorities

Liquidity - Proportion Available within 100 Days

Page 19



 
 

The Return or Yield of our Investments 

3.74. The yield the Council achieved compared to a number of industry standard benchmarks (including our 
preferred benchmark of the seven day LIBID rate) and all Arlingclose clients is shown in the graph below: 

 

3.75. The investment activity during the financial year generated (£434,784) of gross investment income 
compared to a budget of (£408,000). 

3.76. The Council has two long-dated PWLB loans totalling £2,448,627 that were largely unchanged over the 
year other than for the scheduled semi-annual principal repayments at an average cost of 2.16% and on 
average 14.2 years to maturity. 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

3.77. The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) places a responsibility on the District 
Council, as a CIL Charging Authority, to report each financial year on income and expenditure associated 
with CIL.  Regulation 62, Section 1 to 6 sets out the reporting requirements.    

Regulation 
62 
reference 

Description Total   

  Total amount of CIL receipts retained at the end of the previous year. (£94,855) 

4 Total CIL receipts for 2019/20 (£420,916) 

4.(b) Total CIL expenditure in 2019/20 £26,611 

4.(c) (iv) 
Amount of CIL applied to administrative expenses pursuant to regulation 61 (This 
is the total amount of CIL applied to admin expenses in 2019/20) 

£21,046 

4. (c.) (ca) 
(ii) 

The amount of CIL passed to any local council under reg. 59(a)  
£70,294 

4.(d) (i) Total amount of CIL receipts retained at the end of the reported year. (£397,820) 
 

 

 

Alternative Options There are no alternative options. 
 
 

Consultation Consultation is undertaken as part of the Strategic Plan and with Leadership Team. 
 

LDC Average Yield 
(Overall), 1.18%

LDC Average Yield (Other 
Investments), 0.62%

LDC Average Yield 
(Strategic Funds), 4.15%

English Non-Met Districts 
Average, 1.55%

All Local Authorities 
Average, 1.23%

7 Day, 0.66%

1 Month, 0.61%

3 Month, 0.72%

6 Month, 0.80%

0.00% 0.50% 1.00% 1.50% 2.00% 2.50% 3.00% 3.50% 4.00% 4.50%

Page 20



 
 

Financial 
Implications 

Prudential indicators (PI) 2019/20: 

 We can confirm that the Council has complied with its Prudential and Local Indicators for 
2019/20; these were originally approved by Council at its meeting on 19 February 2019 and 
were fully revised and approved by Council on 18 February 2020. 

 In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice this report provides 
members with a Summary Report of the Treasury Management Activity during 2019/20.  

 None of the other Prudential and Local Indicators have been breached. The Prudential and 
Local Indicators are summarised in the table below : 

Capital Strategy Indicators 
Prudential Indicators 

  2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 Compliant 

Indicators Actual Original Revised Actual   

Capital Investment        
Capital Expenditure (£m) £4.910 £11.618 £15.659 £2.297 

 

Capital Financing Requirement (£m) £4.987 £10.301 £14.809 £4.268 
 

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement       

Gross Debt (£4.315) (£9.598) (£11.439) (£3.554) 
 

Borrowing in Advance - Gross Debt in excess of the 
Capital Financing Requirement No No No No 

 

Total Debt       
Authorised Limit (£m) £4.751 £21.598 £23.473 £4,3152 

 

Operational Boundary (£m) £4.751 £13.006 £14.881 £4,315 
 

Proportion of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream (%) 5% 6% 4% 4% 
 

      

Local Indicators 
  2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 Compliant 

Indicators Actual Original Revised Actual   
Replacement of Debt Finance or MRP (£m) (£0.710) (£0.720) (£0.746) (£0.755) 

 

Capital Receipts (£m) (£0.760) (£1.056) (£0.855) (£1.005) 
 

Liability Benchmark (£m) £14.209 £5.017 £3.938 £21.1293 
 

Treasury Management Investments (£m) £26.150 £23.689 £23.749 £34.550 
 

      

Treasury Management Indicators  
Prudential Indicators  

  Lower Upper 2019/20 Compliant  
  Limit Limit Actual    

Refinancing Rate Risk Indicator          
Under 12 months 0% 100% 7% 

 
 

 
12 months and within 24 months 0% 100% 7%  

24 months and within 5 years 0% 100% 25%  

5 years and within 10 years 0% 100% 33%  

10 years and within 20 years 0% 100% 25%  

20 years and within 30 years 0% 100% 1%  

30 years and within 40 years 0% 100% 0%  

40 years and within 50 years 0% 100% 0%  

50 years and above 0% 100% 0%  

      
  2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 Compliant 
Indicators Actual Original Revised Actual  
Principal Sums invested for periods longer than a year 
(£m) 

£2.000 £6.000 £6.000 £6.000 
 

 
 
 
      

                                                           
2 This is the highest level of debt outstanding during the financial year and is compared to the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary to assess compliance. 
3 This figure is provisional as at 07/05/2020, pending completion of the closure of accounts and reflects that Investment in Property funded by borrowing did not take 

place during 2019/20. 

Page 21



 
 

 
 

Local Indicators 
  2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 

Compliant Indicators Actual Original Revised Actual 

  £m £m £m £m 

Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast          
Borrowing Capital Financing Requirement £3.312 £9.152 £13.694 £3.162 

 

Internal or (over) Borrowing £0.672 £0.703 £3.370 £0.714 
 

(Investments) or New Borrowing (£26.150) (£23.689) (£23.749) (£34.550) 
 

Liability Benchmark (£14.209) (£5.017) (£3.938) (£21.129) 
 

      
  Target 2019/20 Compliant   
    Actual     
Security        
Portfolio average credit rating A- AA- 

   
Liquidity        
Temporary Borrowing undertaken £0.000 £0.000 

   
Total Cash Available within 100 days (maximum) 90% 68% 

   
 

 
 

Contribution to the Delivery 
of the Strategic Plan 

The MTFS underpins the delivery of the Strategic Plan. 

 

 
 

Crime & Safety Issues There are no additional Crime and Safety Issues. 
 
 

Environmental Impact There are no additional environmental impacts. 
 

GDPR/Privacy Impact 
Assessment 

There are no additional GDPR/Privacy Impact Assessment impacts. 

 

 Risk Description How We Manage It Severity of Risk  

A 
Non Achievement of The 
Council’s key Council priorities 

Close monitoring of performance and expenditure; 
maximising the potential of efficiency gains; early 
identification of any unexpected impact on costs 
including Central Government Policy changes, movement 
in the markets, changes in the economic climate and the 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 

Red - Severe 

B 

Implementation of the Check, 
Challenge and Appeal Business 
Rates Appeals and more 
frequent revaluations 

To closely monitor the level of appeals. 
An allowance of 4.7% (in line with the MHCLG Allowance) 
for appeals has been included in the Business Rate 
Estimates 

Yellow - Material 

C 
The review of the New Homes 
Bonus regime in 2021/22 

Not all of the projected New Homes Bonus is included as 
core funding in the Base Budget. In 2021/22 £500,000 is 
included and this is then being reduced by £100,000 per 
annum 

Yellow - Material 

D 
The increased Localisation of 
Business Rates and the Fair 
Funding Review in 2022/2023 

To assess the implications of proposed changes and 
respond to consultations to attempt to influence the 
policy direction in the Council’s favour 

Yellow - Material 

E 
The affordability and risk 
associated with the Capital 
Strategy 

In light of the recent Government/CIPFA guidance and 
the Public Works Loans Board consultation the Council 
will be reviewing its approach to Property Investment 

Yellow - Material 

 
 

Equality, Diversity and 
Human Rights Implications 

There are no additional Equality, Diversity or Human Rights implications. 

Page 22



 
 

 
 
 

Background  
Documents 

 CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services 

 The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 

 Money Matters: Medium Term Financial Strategy (Revenue and Capital) 2018-23 – Cabinet 12 
February 2019 

 Allocation of Strategic Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Funding – Cabinet 12 March 2019. 

 Multi Storey Car Park – Cabinet 12 March 2019 

 Money Matters: 2018/19 Review of Financial Performance against the Financial Strategy – Cabinet 
13 June 2019 

 Jigsaw Funding Agreement – Cabinet 9 July 2019 

 Money Matters: 2019/20 Review of Financial Performance against the Financial Strategy – Cabinet 
10 September 2019 

 Birmingham Road Site Enabling Works – Cabinet 10 September 2019 

 Friary Grange Leisure Centre – Cabinet 7 October 2019 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-24 – Cabinet 8 October 2019 

 St Stephen’s School allocation of Section 106 – Cabinet Member Decision 24 October 2019 

 Money Matters: 2019/20 Review of Financial Performance against the Financial Strategy – Cabinet 
3 December 2019 

 Money Matters: 2019/20 Review of Financial Performance against the Financial Strategy – Cabinet 
11 February 2020 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-24 – Cabinet 11 February 2020 

 Revenues and Benefits Software – Cabinet Member Decision 24 March 2020 
 
 

  
 
 

 

Relevant 
web link 

 

 

Page 23



APPENDIX A 

 
 

Revenue Financial Performance – Variance to Budget 2019/20 

Variance to Budget 2019/20  

 

Area 

2019/20 

Original 
Budget plus 
Funding Gap 

Proposals 
£ 

Approved 
Budget 

£ 

Outturn plus 
Earmarked 
Reserves 

£ 

Variance  
to 

Approved 
Budget 

£ 

Variance 
to 

Original 
Budget  

£ 

2019/20 
Target 

Variance 
(+/-) 

£ 

Enabling people 1,528,270 1,592,680 1,628,300 35,620 100,030   

Shaping place 3,258,720 3,050,440 2,842,905 (207,535) (415,815)   

Developing prosperity (1,079,200) (1,105,220) (878,816) 226,404 200,384   

A good council 6,185,720 5,929,600 5,900,185 (29,415) (285,535)   

Net Cost of Services 9,893,510 9,467,500 9,492,574 25,074 (400,936) 0 

Chief Executive 459,660 366,010 366,772 762 (92,888) 4,000 

Assistant Chief Executive 1,253,960 1,202,020 1,225,995 23,975 (27,965) 17,000 

Finance and Procurement 1,764,980 1,745,920 1,734,465 (11,455) (30,515) 15,000 

Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services 761,530 711,930 600,204 (111,726) (161,326)4 17,000 

Corporate Services 1,704,000 1,634,920 1,721,747 86,827 17,747 24,000 

Regulatory Services, Housing & Wellbeing 1,300,670 1,266,890 1,258,401 (8,489) (42,269) 16,000 

Economic Growth & Development Services (274,050) (297,990) (302,036) (4,046) (27,986) 66,000 

Operational Services 2,922,760 2,837,800 2,887,026 49,226 (35,734) 91,000 

Net Cost of Services 9,893,510 9,467,500 9,492,574 25,074 (400,936) 250,000 

Net Treasury Position (6,000) (122,000) (140,460) (18,460) (134,460)  
Net Operating Cost 9,887,510 9,345,500 9,352,114 6,614   

Transfer (from) / to General Reserve 148,860 1,113,560 1,081,216 (32,344) 932,356  
Transfer (from) / to Earmarked Reserves 1,335,030 1,249,000 1,274,094 25,094 (60,936)  
Net Revenue Expenditure  11,371,400 11,708,060 11,707,424 (636)   

Financed by:           
Retained Business Rates (2,525,800) (2,829,210) (2,829,210) 0 (299,136)  
Business Rates Cap (68,000) (86,000) (98,029) (12,029) (30,029)  
Business Rates Pilot (568,000) (568,000) (584,546) (16,546) (20,820)  
Levy Account Surplus - (36,000) (7,101) 28,899 (7,101)  
New Homes Bonus (1,278,000) (1,278,000) (1,278,302) (302) (302)  
Other Government Grants - (13,400) (13,395) 5 (13,395)  
Business Rates Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit (213,000) (213,000) (212,800) 200 200  
Council Tax Collection Fund 
(Surplus)/Deficit (63,600) (29,450) (29,490) (40) 34,110  
Council Tax (6,655,000) (6,655,000) (6,654,551) 449 449  

                                                           
4 A significant element of this variance is due to a reduction in the bad debt provision of £71,790 for housing 
benefit overpayments because the level of arrears has reduced. 

Page 24



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Reasons for the Outturn Budget Performance by Service Area 
 

Variance 

  

Expenditure Income COVID-19 

One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 

£ 
£ £ £ £ £ 

762 Chief Executive 762 - - - - 

23,975 Assistant Chief Executive 54,425 - (30,450) - - 

(11,455) Finance and Procurement (11,455) - - - - 

(111,726) 
Revenues, Benefits and 
Customer Services (77,206) - (34,520) - - 

86,827 Corporate Services 86,827 - - - - 

49,226 Operational Services 121,726 - (72,500) - - 

(8,489) 
Regulatory Services, Housing 
& Wellbeing 50,461 - (58,950) - - 

(4,046) 
Economic Growth & 
Development Services (154,071) - 100,025 - 50,000 

(18,460) Net Treasury Position - - (18,460) - - 

£6,614 Net Operating Cost £71,469 - (£114,855) - £50,000 

25,094 Earmarked Reserves £25,094 - - - - 

£31,708 Net Operating Cost £96,563 - (£114,855) - £50,000 

636 Funding - - £636 - - 

£32,344 
Transfer (to)/from General 
Reserves £96,563 - (£114,219) - £50,000 

       

Chief Executive      

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(37,280) Covid-19 Grant         (37,280) 

12,550 Covid-19 Expenditure         12,550 

24,730 Covid-19 Transfer to Reserve         24,730 

762 Minor balance 762         

£762 Total £762 - - - - 

       
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



APPENDIX B 

 
 

 
Assistant Chief Executive      

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(16,810) Vacant Post savings (16,810)         

30,000 
District Council House 
Accommodation Review 30,000         

44,030 Additional agency staff costs 44,030         

(34,940) 
Additional income from 
Street Naming & Numbering     (34,940)     

(50,000) 
Unspent Digital Strategy 
Infrastructure budget (50,000)         

(6,370) Minor balance (10,860)   4,490     

58,065 Bad debt provision change 58,065         

£23,975 Total £54,425 - (£30,450) - - 

       

Finance and Procurement      

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(17,940) Vacant Post savings (17,940)         

3,555 Minor balance 3,555         

(39,440) 
Budget contingency not 
required (39,440)         

42,370 
Procurement Savings not 
achieved 42,370         

(£11,455) Total (£11,455) - - - - 

       

Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services     

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(15,700) Additional court fee income     (15,700)     

(7,800) 
Additional net government 
grant funding 11,020   (18,820)     

(12,150) Decrease in postage spend (12,150)         

(9,460) Vacant Post savings (9,460)         

5,174 Minor balance 5,174         

(71,790) Bad debt provision change (71,790)         

(£111,726) Total (£77,206) - (£34,520) - - 

       
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Corporate Services      

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(8,540) 
Underspend on Members 
and Civic Services (8,540)         

(10,700) 
Underspend on GDPR 
consultancy  (10,700)         

(6,183) Minor balance (6,183)         

100,000 
Creation of People Strategy 
Reserve  100,000         

26,960 Additional agency staff costs 26,960         

(14,710) Vacant Post savings (14,710)         

£86,827 Total £86,827 - - - - 

       

Operational Services      

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(60,200) 

Additional income from 
Grounds Maintenance and 
Street Cleansing     (60,200)     

36,700 
Additional spend on Friary 
Grange VI Leisure Centre 36,700         

(2,931) Minor balance (2,931)         

(12,300) 
Additional net income from 
Trade Waste     (12,300)     

87,957 Bad debt provision change 87,957         

49,226 Total 121,726 - (72,500) - - 

       

Regulatory Services, Housing & Wellbeing     

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(11,416) Small Underspends (11,416)         

(46,130) 

Additional Income from 
Licensing, Food Safety & 
Housing Enforcement     (46,130)     

(15,840) Vacant Post savings (15,840)         

67,700 
Additional Homelessness 
related spend 67,700         

(12,820) Additional court fee income     (12,820)     

10,017 Bad debt provision change 10,017         

(£8,489) Total £50,461 - (£58,950) - - 

       
 

 

 

 

Page 27



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Economic Growth & Development Services     

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

11,310 Bad debt provision change 11,310         

42,880 
Reduction in Car Park 
Performance  (29,120)  22,000   50,000 

(33,244) Vacant Post savings (33,244)         

(6,424) Lower spend on CCTV (6,424)         

(17,706) 
Net increase in Planning 
performance (95,731)   78,025     

10,059 
Additional spend on City 
Centre redevelopment 10,059         

(10,921) Minor balance (10,921)         

(£4,046) Total (£154,071) - £100,025 - £50,000 

       

Net Treasury Position      

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(5,783) 
Additional interest received 
on new Investment     (5,783)     

(12,677) 

Increased interest receipts 
due to higher general 
investment balances     (12,677)     

(£18,460) Total - - (£18,460) - - 

       

Earmarked Reserves      

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

25,094 

Increased earmarked 
reserve contribution due to 
increase in Business Rates 
Pilot performance 25,094         

£25,094 Total £25,094 - - - - 

 
Funding       

 Reason Expenditure Income COVID-19 

Variance   One Off Recurring One Off Recurring 
£ 

£   £ £ £ £ 

(28,575) 
Business Rates Pilot 
Performance     (28,575)     

28,899 
Levy Account Surplus less 
than forecast     28,899     

312 Minor balance     312     

£636 Total - - £636 - - 

 

Page 28



APPENDIX C 

 
 

Fees and Charges 

(Year-end variances are rounded to the nearest £000) 

 

Income Type 

       Annual Trend 

Annual Actual Year End  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Budget  Variance  Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 

£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Planning Applications 813 744 (70)  771 629 1,030 824 797 

Car Parks 2,177 2,105 (72)  1,746 1,748 1,986 2,078 2,198 

Garden Waste 1,495 1,478 (18)  0 0 0 231 1,495 

Trade Waste 440 469 29  338 390 407 415 443 

Land Charges 283 253 (30)  183 297 312 279 286 

Building Control 871 896 25  454 507 557 547 553 

Property Rental 892 744 (147)  644 681 687 729 839 

Total of Highest Value Fees & Charges 6,971 6,689 (283)  4,134 4,251 4,980 5,102 6,611 

Other Income                  

Licensing      217 185 236 224 241 

Leisure Centre      1,782 1,819 1,879 1,629 183 

VAT Claim      0 0 0 0 1,103 

Court Costs      252 233 218 198 214 

Recycling      14 347 439 463 331 

Grounds Maintenance      162 161 168 195 217 

Other      1,839 1,139 1,319 1,124 1,057 

Total Income        8,400 8,136 9,239 8,936 9,957 

P
age 29



APPENDIX D 

 
 

Earmarked Reserves 

Unrestricted Earmarked Reserves 

 
 
 

Reserve Name 
Initial 
Set Up 
Year 

Year to 
be 

Returned 

Earmarked 
Reserves 1 
April 2019 

Earmarked 
Reserves 31 
March 2020 

£ £ 

Chief Executive          

  Commercialisation 2017/18 2021/22 (272,875) (61,967) 

  ACE Post 2018/19 2020/21 (81,636) (3,436) 

  Brexit Funding 2018/19 2022/23 (17,484) (51,066) 

  Leisure VAT Reclaim 2018/19 2022/23 (896,940) (896,940) 

  Covid-19 2019/20 2023/24 0 (24,726) 

Chief Executive Total     (1,268,935) (1,038,135) 

Assistant Chief Executive         

  Property Reserve 2019/20 2023/24 0 (60,000) 

  Digitisation Programme 2015/16 2019/20 (115,200) (74,999) 

  Condition Survey of DCH 2016/17 Retain (37,741) (37,741) 

  Single Customer Account 2018/19 2022/23 (43,210) (43,210) 

  Cloud Project Costs  2018/19 2022/23 (30,000) (30,000) 

  Property Company Loan 2018/19 2022/23 (316,000) (784,000) 

  Property Management/Estates Team 2018/19 2022/23 (61,760) (14,580) 

  Communications Review Costs 2019/20 2023/24 0 (30,000) 

Assistant Chief Executive Total     (603,911) (1,074,530) 

Corporate Services         

  IAS 19 - Employee Benefits 2015/16 2019/20 (69,650) 0 

  Corporate Training 2018/19 2022/23 (20,000) (1,705) 

  Zurich Insurance 2019/20 2023/24 0 (37,473) 

  Terms and Conditions Review 2019/20 2023/24 0 (20,000) 

  People Strategy 2019/20 2023/24 0 (100,000) 

  Individual Electoral Registration 2015/16 2019/20 (50,716) (4,265) 

  Lichfield District Council  Election 2015/16 Retain (197,240) (114,967) 

  Elections Additional Support 2015/16 2019/20 (24,999) 0 

Corporate Services Total     (362,605) (278,411) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



APPENDIX D 

 
 

 

Reserve Name 

Initial 
Set Up 
Year 

Year to 
be 

Returned 

Earmarked 
Reserves 1 
April 2019 

Earmarked 
Reserves 31 
March 2020 

  £ £ 

Economic Growth & Development Services         

  CCTV Sinking Fund 2015/16 2019/20 (60,996) 0 

  
Inward Investment and Place 
Marketing 2015/16 2019/20 (10,259) 0 

  
Grant Aid -Development Historic 
Building Grants 2015/16 2019/20 (10,720) 0 

  HS2 2015/16 Retain (37,723) (35,413) 

  Judicial Review/Planning Appeals 2015/16 Retain (200,862) (200,862) 

  Birmingham Road Site 2015/16 Retain (1,160,550) (567,810) 

  Backscanning of Planning Apps 2016/17 2020/21 (64,200) (20,388) 

  Planning Agency Staff 2016/17 2020/21 (41,236) (41,236) 

  Improvement Programme 2018/19 2022/23 (80,000) (10,350) 

  Museum Collections Officer 2019/20 2020/21 0 (6,565) 

  Growth Hub Advisor 2019/20 2023/24 0 (7,000) 

  
Self/Custom Build/Brownfield Grants 
2019/20 Grants 2019/20 2023/24 0 (17,446) 

  Conservation Policy 2019/20 2023/24 0 (15,720) 

  
Self/Custom Build/Brownfield Grants 
Pre 2019/20 Grants 2016/17 2020/21 (89,397) (31,897) 

  University Car Park Sinking Fund 2018/19 Retain (30,000) (40,000) 

  Neighbourhood Plans Grant 2018/19 2022/23 (99,244) (29,003) 

  
Economic Growth (Business Rates 
Pilot) 2019/20 2023/24 0 (584,546) 

  Joint Transport Review 2018/19 2022/23 0 (30,000) 

  
Local Plan Allocations Examination & 
Review 2016/17 Retain (35,363) (332,425) 

  Car Parks Vehicle Sinking Fund 2017/18 Retain (6,333) (10,000) 

  Small Business Grant Scheme 2018/19 Retain (34,920) (21,814) 

  CIL Volatility 2018/19 Retain (42,437) (72,181) 

  CCTV Consultancy Services 2018/19 2019/20 (8,895) 0 

  Car Park Machine 2018/19 2019/20 (5,324) 0 

  Events & Festivals EIA 2018/19 2019/20 (14,200) 0 

Economic Growth & Development Services 
Total     (2,032,659) (2,074,657) 

Finance & Procurement         

  Business Rates Volatility Reserve 2017/18 Retain (831,048) (1,428,816) 

  Audit additional cover 2018/19 2019/20 (10,730) 0 

  Pensions Repayment Reserve 2018/19 2022/23 (468,000) 0 

  Strategic Investments Volatility 2015/16 Retain (97,665) (145,052) 

Finance & Procurement Total     (1,407,443) (1,573,868) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



APPENDIX D 

 
 

Reserve Name 

Initial 
Set Up 
Year 

Year to 
be 

Returned 

Earmarked 
Reserves 1 
April 2019 

Earmarked 
Reserves 31 
March 2020 

  £ £ 

Operational Services         

  Dry Recycling Contract - LDC Share 2015/16 Retain (161,771) (104,020) 

  IAS 19 Employee Benefits - LDC Share 2015/16 2019/20 (20,200) 0 

  Freedom Pensions Guarantee 2018/19 Retain (33,390) (60,100) 

  
Local Authority Parks Improvement 
Programme 2018/19 Retain (16,247) (16,247) 

  

Squash Courts and Sports Hall Floors 
Friary Grange Leisure Centre 
(CAPITAL) 2015/16 Retain (21,797) (21,797) 

  
Grounds Maintenance Vehicles and 
Equipment Sinking Fund 2015/16 Retain (317,949) (271,272) 

Operational Services Total     (571,354) (473,436) 

Revenues, Benefits & Customer Services         

  
Revenues & Benefits Service 
Improvement 2019/20 2023/24 (195,190) (195,190) 

Revenues, Benefits & Customer Services 
Total     (195,190) (195,190) 

Regulatory Services, Housing & Wellbeing         

  Building Safer Communities 2015/16 2019/20 (6,703) 0 

  
EH - Vehicle 
Maintenance/Replacement 2015/16 Retain (11,999) (14,499) 

  
Homeless & Repossession Prevention 
Fund 2015/16 Retain (18,006) (22,951) 

  Stock Condition Survey 2015/16 2019/20 (65,000) 0 

  IDOX Staffing Cost Support  2018/19 2022/23 (48,000) (48,000) 

Regulatory Services, Housing & Wellbeing 
Total     (149,708) (85,450) 

            

Total Unrestricted Earmarked Reserves     (£6,591,805) (£6,793,676) 

 

  

Page 32



APPENDIX D 

 
 

Restricted Earmarked Reserves 

Reserve Name 

Earmarked 
Reserves 1 April 

2019 

Earmarked 
Reserves 31 March 

2020 

£ £ 

Economic Growth & Development Services     

  
Central Building Control Partnership - Building 
Regulations Reserve (110,434) (126,656) 

  LATC Set Up Costs (25,000) (25,000) 

  Planning App Increase (87,078) (139,913) 

  Birmingham Road Car Park Repairs and Renewals (2,227,817) (2,386,013) 
  Friary Multi Storey Bromford Sinking Fund (3,006) (3,641) 

  South Staffs DC Land Charges Reserve (15,435) (17,293) 

Economic Growth & Development Services Total (2,468,770) (2,698,516) 

Operational Services     

  POS-St Matthews Site,Burntwood(97/00295) (67,064) (67,064) 

  Commuted sums for Hawksyard/160236 A (205,913) (186,894) 

  Commuted sums for Darwin Park/160236 A (13,182) (13,182) 

  Public Open Space at Darwin Park (123,676) (123,676) 

  Charter Place Shortbutts Lane S106 (28,730) (28,730) 

  HLF LDC Contribution (25,301) (25,301) 

  Heritage Lottery Fund - Management (8,250) (8,250) 

  FGLC Synthetic Pitch Sinking Fund (16,700) (16,700) 
  Waste Shared Service Property growth - LDC Share (236,038) (214,372) 

  Waste Shared Service Property growth - TBC Share (239,962) (258,868) 

  Dry Recycling Contract -  TBC Share (120,140) (78,815) 

  IAS 19 Employee Benefits TBC Share (14,930) (14,930) 

  Payments in Adv for Fleet - TBC Share (32,850) (43,900) 

Operational Services Total (1,132,736) (1,080,682) 

Regulatory Services, Housing & Wellbeing     

  Flexible Homelessness Grant (196,852) (336,924) 

  Housing First  0 (81,333) 

Regulatory Services, Housing & Wellbeing Total (196,852) (418,257) 

        

Total Restricted Earmarked Reserves (£3,798,358) (£4,197,455) 

 

Page 33



APPENDIX E 
 

 
 

Capital Programme Performance in 2019/20 
  Original Approved Actual Variance 
Project Budget Budget   
Accessible Homes (Disabled Facilities Grants) 1,104,000 1,200,000 790,795 (409,205) 
Armitage War Memorial 40,000 0 0 0 
Armitage with Handsacre Village Hall heating upgrade 0 5,000 4,822 (178) 
Artificial grass at Armitage 0 13,000 10,000 (3,000) 
Burntwood LC CHP Unit 0 235,000 12,049 (222,951) 
Burntwood Leisure Centre Enhancement Work 235,000 0 0 0 
DCLG Monies 212,000 0 0 0 
Decent Homes Standard 197,000 0 0 0 
Energy Insulation Programme 10,000 38,000 0 (38,000) 
Fradley Village Heating & CCTV 0 5,000 4,521 (479) 
Fradley Youth & Community Centre Cladding & Porch 0 15,000 13,875 (1,125) 
Friary Grange - Short Term Refurbishment 0 174,000 55,092 (118,908) 
Home Repair Assistance Grants 15,000 28,000 6,768 (21,232) 
King Edwards VI School 0 101,000 0 (101,000) 
Leisure Review: Capital Investment 0 30,000 57,888 27,888 
New Build Parish Office/Community Hub 92,000 0 0 0 
Play Equipment at Hill Ridware Village Hall 71,000 30,000 30,000 0 
Replacement Leisure Centre 0 38,000 7,000 (31,000) 
St. Stephen's School, Fradley 0 22,000 0 (22,000) 
Unallocated S106 Affordable Housing Monies 400,000 270,000 0 (270,000) 
Westgate Practice Refurbishment 0 120,000 120,000 0 

Enabling People Total 2,376,000 2,324,000 1,112,810 (1,211,190) 

Bin Purchase 0 150,000 210,589 60,589 
Canal Towpath Improvements (Brereton & Ravenhill) 211,000 211,000 174,624 (36,376) 
Cannock Chase SAC 13,000 44,000 43,759 (241) 
Darnford Park 13,000 0 0 0 
Env. Improvements - Upper St John St & Birmingham Road 7,000 7,000 0 (7,000) 
Equity in Council Dev Co. 0 225,000 0 (225,000) 
Loan to Council Dev Co. 900,000 0 0 0 
Shortbutts Park, Lichfield 23,000 23,000 28,100 5,100 
Stowe Pool Improvements 550,000 0 0 0 
The Leomansley Area Improvement Project 0 3,000 0 (3,000) 
Vehicle Replacement Programme 441,000 146,000 148,141 2,141 

Shaping Place Total 2,158,000 809,000 605,213 (203,787) 

Birmingham Road Site - Coach Park 238,000 861,000 11,359 (849,641) 
Birmingham Road Site - Short Term Redevelopment 353,000 473,000 251,429 (221,571) 
Car Parks Variable Message Signing 32,000 32,000 0 (32,000) 
Erasmus Darwin Lunar Legacy 0 3,000 3,000 0 
Multi Storey Car Park Refurbishment Project 0 300,000 0 (300,000) 
Old Mining College  - Refurbish access and signs 0 13,000 0 (13,000) 
St. Chads Sculpture 50,000 50,000 45,000 (5,000) 

Developing Prosperity Total 673,000 1,732,000 310,788 (1,421,212) 

Depot Sinking Fund 11,000 0 0 0 
District Council House Repair Programme 103,000 0 0 0 
IT Cloud 25,000 25,000 34,200 9,200 
IT Hardware 0 0 198,458 198,458 
IT Infrastructure 105,000 105,000 5,880 (99,120) 
IT Innovation 167,000 60,000 29,300 (30,700) 
Property Investment Strategy 6,000,000 10,500,000 0 (10,500,000) 
Property Planned Maintenance 0 104,000 0 (104,000) 

Good Council Total 6,411,000 10,794,000 267,838 (10,526,162) 

Approved Budget 11,618,000 15,659,000 2,296,649 (13,362,351) 

 
     

Page 34



APPENDIX E 
 

 
 

  Original Approved Actual Variance 
Funding Source Budget Budget   

Capital Receipts 976,000 600,000 335,838 (264,162) 
Borrowing Need - Borrowing and Finance Leases 6,140,000 10,568,000 36,958 (10,531,042) 
Capital Grants and Contributions 2,769,000 2,160,000 1,257,831 (902,169) 
Reserves, Existing Revenue Budgets and Sinking Funds 1,733,000 2,331,000 666,021 (1,664,979) 

Capital Programme Total 11,618,000 15,659,000 2,296,649 (13,362,351) 

Capital Programme Slippage and Revised Budget in 2020/21 

Project  
 

Original 
Budget 

Updates 
Slippage 

 

Revised 
Budget 

 
Accessible Homes (Disabled Facilities Grants) £1,698,000   £409,000 £2,107,000 
Armitage with Handsacre Village Hall storage container £6,000     £6,000 
Armitage War Memorial £120,000     £120,000 
Artificial grass at Armitage     £3,000 £3,000 
Burntwood LC CHP Unit     £223,000 £223,000 
DCLG Monies £212,000     £212,000 
Decent Homes Standard £172,000     £172,000 
Energy Insulation Programme £10,000   £38,000 £48,000 
Friary Grange - Short Term Refurbishment £521,000   £119,000 £640,000 
Gym Equipment at Burntwood Parks   £34,000   £34,000 
Home Repair Assistance Grants £15,000   £21,000 £36,000 
King Edwards VI School     £101,000 £101,000 
New Build Parish Office/Community Hub £92,000     £92,000 
Replacement Leisure Centre £164,000   £31,000 £195,000 
St. Stephen's School, Fradley     £22,000 £22,000 
Unallocated S106 Affordable Housing Monies £414,000   £270,000 £684,000 

Enabling People Total £3,424,000 £34,000 £1,237,000 £4,695,000 

Bin Purchase £150,000     £150,000 
Canal Towpath Improvements (Brereton & Ravenhill)     £36,000 £36,000 
Cannock Chase SAC £22,000     £22,000 
Darnford Park £13,000     £13,000 
Env. Improvements - Upper St John St & Birmingham Road     £7,000 £7,000 
Equity in Council Dev Co.     £225,000 £225,000 
Lichfield St Johns Community Link £35,000     £35,000 
Loan to Council Dev Co. £675,000     £675,000 
Staffordshire Countryside Explorer £44,000     £44,000 
Stowe Pool Improvements £50,000     £50,000 
The Leomansley Area Improvement Project     £3,000 £3,000 
Vehicle Replacement Programme £56,000   (£2,000) £54,000 

Shaping Place Total £1,045,000 £0 £269,000 £1,314,000 

Birmingham Road Site - Coach Park £625,000   £850,000 £1,475,000 
Birmingham Road Site - Short Term Redevelopment     £222,000 £222,000 
Car Parks Variable Message Signing     £32,000 £32,000 
Multi Storey Car Park Refurbishment Project     £300,000 £300,000 
Old Mining College  - Refurbish access and signs     £13,000 £13,000 
St. Chads Sculpture   £5,000 £5,000 

Developing Prosperity Total £625,000 £0 £1,422,000 £2,047,000 

Depot Sinking Fund £11,000     £11,000 
District Council House Repair Programme £164,000     £164,000 
IT Cloud £100,000   (£9,000) £91,000 
IT Hardware £202,000   (£198,000) £4,000 
IT Infrastructure £55,000   £99,000 £154,000 
IT Innovation £250,000   £30,000 £280,000 
New Financial Information System £250,000     £250,000 
Property Investment Strategy £11,500,000   £10,500,000 £22,000,000 
Property Planned Maintenance £125,000   £104,000 £229,000 

Good Council Total £12,657,000 £0 £10,526,000 £23,183,000 

Total £17,751,000 £34,000 £13,454,000 £31,239,000 

Page 35



APPENDIX F 
 

 
 

 Investments in the 2019/20 Financial Year 
The table below shows a breakdown of our investments at the end of March 2020: 

Counterparty Principal Matures 
Days to 

Maturity Rate 
Credit 
Rating 

Non-UK 
Organisation 

       
Money Market Funds             
Invesco Aim £3,010,000 01-Apr-20 Instant Access 0.56% 0 N/A 
Legal & General £2,390,000 01-Apr-20 Instant Access 0.54% 0 N/A 
Federated £3,500,000 01-Apr-20 Instant Access 0.38% 0 N/A 
Aberdeen £650,000 01-Apr-20 Instant Access 0.75% 0 N/A 
CCLA MMF £3,000,000 01-Apr-20 Instant Access 0.59% 0 N/A 
Strategic Funds        
CCLA Property Fund £2,000,000 N/A N/A 3.91% N/A No 
CCLA Diversified Income Fund £2,000,000 N/A N/A 3.02% N/A No 
Investec Diversified Income Fund £2,000,000 N/A N/A 3.40% N/A No 
Fixed Term Investments        
Brentwood Borough Council £2,000,000 29-Jul-20 120 0.93% LOCAL  
Ashford Borough Council £2,000,000 07-Jul-20 98 0.76% LOCAL  
Broxtowe Borough Council £2,000,000 11-May-20 41 0.72% LOCAL  
Surrey Heath Borough Council £2,000,000 15-Jun-20 76 0.83% LOCAL  
United Overseas Bank £1,000,000 18-Jun-20 79 0.83% AA-  
Monmouthshire Council £2,000,000 28-Sep-20 181 0.91% LOCAL  
Call Accounts with Notice Period        
Santander £1,000,000 27-Sep-20 180 0.95% A  
Lloyds £1,000,000 04-Jul-20 95 0.70% A+  
Goldman Sachs International Bank £1,000,000 04-Jul-20 95 0.89% A  
HSBC £999,500 01-May-20 31 0.33% A+  
Certificates of Deposit        
Standard Chartered £1,000,000 09-Apr-20 9 0.85% A  

Total Investments £34,549,500      

 

Page 36



Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
Strategy 2019-2024 
Cabinet Member for Communities & Housing 

 

 
Date: 2nd June 2020 

Contact Officer: Lucy Robinson/Gareth Davies 

Tel Number: Tel 01543 308710/ 308743 CABINET 
 Email: gareth.davies@lichfielddc.gov.uk, 

lucy.robinson@lichfielddc.gov.uk 
 

Key Decision? Y 

Local Ward 
Members 

All 

    

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 The Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019-2024 sets out the council’s plans to 
tackle homelessness, rough sleeping and a range of other housing-related challenges over the next five 
years in Lichfield District from 2019 to 2024.   It provides a position statement that sets out the 
council’s strategic priorities and objectives across all housing tenures.  The strategy reflects on 
performance and achievements since the last strategies were published, examines the housing and 
homelessness challenges that we face in the district and explains how the council and its partners will 
address these challenges through three priorities for action: 

 Enable people to live in good quality homes that are suitable for their needs 

 Increase housing choice to meet the need of current and future residents 

 Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 

1.2  The homelessness and rough sleeping section of this strategy was approved by Cabinet on 3rd 
December 2019 and this is the wider strategy incorporating all housing issues. For the first time, the 
housing strategy and the homelessness strategy have been combined into one document. In addition 
to saving resources, our combined approach means that homelessness and rough sleeping are not seen 
in isolation but within a wider framework, which covers the causes of and solutions to challenges such 
as access to affordable and suitable accommodation and the provision of and access to support and 
housing for vulnerable households.  This approach will ensure that the council takes a comprehensive 
and joined up approach to all matters relating to housing, homelessness and rough sleeping. 

1.3  The Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019-2024 is attached at Appendix 1. The 
detailed evidence base - the Homelessness Review, additional housing information and action plan is 
contained in Annexes A-E.   

1.4 In order to be able to respond flexibly to the changing impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic, it is also 
proposed to delegate powers to the Cabinet Member for Communities and Housing and Head of 
Regulatory Services, Housing and Wellbeing to review the strategy after one year and amend the 
strategy and action plan accordingly. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the approval of the Housing, Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019-2024 attached at Appendix 1 and the accompanying Annexes A-E. 

2.2   That Cabinet agrees to delegate to the Cabinet Member for Communities and Housing in conjunction 
with the Head of Regulatory Services, Housing and Wellbeing to amend the strategy at Appendix 1 and 
action plan at Annexe D after the year one review to assess the implications of the Covid 19 pandemic 
and any emerging challenges. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4



2.3  That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the approval of the new policy of earmarking future 
Right to Buy receipts towards capital investment to support delivery of the Housing, Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping Strategy.   

   3.  Background 

3.1 The council has a statutory duty1 to carry out a homelessness review for the district and utilise the 
findings of the review to formulate and publish a homelessness strategy every five years.  In 2018 the 
government launched its new Rough Sleeping Strategy2 in which it requested that all homelessness 
strategies were reviewed and rebadged to include a specific focus on addressing rough sleeping.   

   3.2 Our previous Homelessness Strategy covered the period from 2013 to 2018. Rather than directly replace 
it, we have combined it with the Housing Strategy to produce a broader strategy covering not only 
homelessness and rough sleeping but the wider housing challenges.  This reflects thinking that tackling 
and preventing homelessness and rough sleeping cannot be considered in isolation but within a wider 
framework, which covers the causes of and solutions to these challenges such as access to affordable 
and suitable accommodation, the impact of welfare reform, and the provision of and access to support 
for vulnerable households. 

 3.3  The strategy is structured into three mains sections: Current Housing; Future Housing, and 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping.  Within these sections the document outlines the key housing 
challenges and issues facing Lichfield District, particularly in relation to the existing stock, affordable 
housing supply, homelessness and housing-related support.  It does not seek to cover issues that are 
more appropriately addressed through the emerging Local Plan, such as the number, mix and 
distribution of future housing supply to be delivered in the district.  That said, it is recognised that the 
amount and mix of affordable homes that will be delivered will be heavily influenced by the Local Plan 
and accompanying guidance.  The delivery of affordable housing in the district over the lifetime of this 
strategy up to 2024 will largely be informed by the current Local Plan and planning policies in place, the 
viability of sites and a range of other factors, including funding available and the ambitions of our 
approved registered providers (housing association), as well as the condition of the housing market and 
progress made by other developers.  

3.4 In developing the strategy, the key challenges we have identified are that we have: 

• the highest house prices in Staffordshire meaning that home ownership is out of reach for many, 
particularly younger people  

• an ageing population that will continue to increase demand for disabled adaptations to their homes  

• a need to improve housing choice for our ageing population, particularly increasing the supply of 
smaller homes and enabling the development of age-related housing 

 a smaller than average private rental sector with high rent levels 

 an increase in homeless applications due to the ending of private rented tenancies; nearly 4 times as 
many in 2018/19 as in 2017/18 

 a shortage of affordable social rented housing with the turnover not meeting demand 

 a rise in the number of individuals approaching us that need support due to mental health issues 

 an increasing number of customers with multiple and complex housing needs where the 
accommodation options available to them are limited 

 limited access to local support agencies for people at risk of homelessness 

 an increase in the number of people sleeping rough in Lichfield city centre 

                                                           
1 Section 1(4) of the Homelessness Act 2002 
2 In August 2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) published their first dedicated rough 
sleeping strategy https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-rough-sleeping-strategy 

Page 38



 3.5 To address these challenges the following priorities have been identified: 

• Enable people to live in good quality homes that are suitable for their needs 

• Increase housing choice to meet the need of current and future residents 

• Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 

The three priorities are underpinned by 8 objectives and several actions contained within the action plan in 
Annexe D that will be regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure that they remain relevant to us.  The 
strategy sets out high level actions only; more detailed actions are included in the annual service plans that sit 
below the strategy.    Upon adoption, the action plan will remain a live document and will be regularly 
reviewed and updated to ensure that actions are being progressed and amended to respond to any changes in 
trends, issues or government policy that emerge during the lifetime of the strategy.  

3.6    Under the terms of the council’s constitution the Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 
2019-2024 must be approved by Full Council. 
 

Alternative Options 1. To do nothing and not have a new Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
Strategy 2019-2024: this is not recommended as we have a statutory duty to 
publish a homelessness strategy every five years after we have carried out a 
review of homelessness. The government’s Rough Sleeping Strategy 2018 also 
requires us to have a plan in place to halve rough sleeping by 2020 and end it by 
2027. 

2. To have a separate housing strategy and homelessness strategy; the synergy 
between these mean that it will be beneficial and more cost effective and 
efficient use of staff time to have both in one combined document. 

3. To put the approval of the strategy on hold until after the Covid 19 pandemic has 
ended, gather further evidence and carry out consultation later this year or next. 
This would involve gathering another year’s data and rewriting much of the 
strategy and accompanying documents leading to a delay in delivery of the 
action plan and key pieces of work contained in it.  Considering the initial 
economic and social impacts of the pandemic so far, it is likely that the need to 
enable affordable housing and prevent homelessness will be even greater and so 
a review of the strategy after one year is considered the best way forward as this 
will enable us to assess the impacts of Covid 19 and amend the strategy actions 
accordingly. 

 

Consultation 1. To develop the strategy we carried out a range of consultation exercises with 
partners and stakeholders. We have engaged with our Homelessness Forum 
made up of representatives from organisations working with homeless and 
vulnerable people across the district.  Forum members at the meeting on the 
11th September 2019 discussed our emerging evidence and objectives for the 
homelessness and rough sleeping section of the strategy and subsequently gave 
their feedback on these sections of the draft strategy. 

2. Cabinet approved the homelessness and rough sleeping section of the strategy 
for publication on the website on the 3rd December 2019, following which it was 
sent to the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 
to meet the deadline set in the government’s Rough Sleeper Strategy. 

3. Residents aged over 60 and with support needs were invited to take part in 
research on assessment of the housing needs of older people, people with 
learning disabilities, people with mental health needs and people with physical 
disabilities in Lichfield District conducted by Housing LIN3 during November 2019.  
The research included primary qualitative research through questionnaires and 

                                                           
3 https://www.housinglin.org.uk/ 

Page 39



several focus groups which has informed the strategy. 
4. The Community, Housing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

endorsed the draft strategy and accompanying documents at its meeting on the 
18th March 2020 and recommended it to Cabinet for approval.  

 

Financial 
Implications 

1. Our ability to deliver the priorities of the strategy is dependent upon a range of 
capital and revenue funding sources.  Our action plan has been drawn up within 
existing budgets supplemented by additional government funding. We have 
received three years and will be soon receiving a fourth year of Flexible 
Homelessness Support Grant (FHSG) funding.  We have been using this to 
employ additional Housing Options Officers to be able to cope with the increased 
work and demands placed on us by the HRA and part fund the rough sleeper 
outreach and Housing First service by Spring Housing4.   

2. The strategy has a four-year lifespan until the end of 2024 so it is not possible to 
provide a definitive assessment of all the financial resources that will be available 
both to the council and other partner agencies over that timeframe in order to 
implement the strategy’s action plan.  The majority of targets are to be met from 
existing resources; where additional resources from the council are identified for 
the delivery of specific items, these will be considered through the annual 
budget setting process and in accordance with the council’s Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy.  There is an increasing tendency for government to allocate 
funding on an annual basis, particularly for homelessness prevention and rough 
sleeping and whilst such funding is very welcome, such an approach does not 
lend itself to long-term planning and certainty.  

3. The Council does receive under the transfer agreement with Bromford, a share 
of Right to Buy receipts that were £276,049 in 2019/20 and £576,398 in 2018/19. 
These capital receipts are currently treated as windfall payments as they are 
likely to reduce over time and there is no certainty on their value and timing, and 
are used to support the Council’s corporate capital investment.  

4. To help with delivery of our strategy and reduce homelessness, we are in the 
process of purchasing affordable properties.  It is proposed that this is funded in 
the future with use of commuted sums, housing strategy reserves and any future 
Right to Buy receipts. 

5. The Approved Revenue Budgets5 within the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
directly supporting the delivery of the Housing Strategy are: 

Service 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 

Homelessness Service £276,780 £279,800 £285,650 £292,180 £1,134,410 
Housing Strategy & 
Wellbeing £175,100 £178,380 £181,730 £185,140 £720,350 

Total Direct 
Expenditure £451,880 £458,180 £467,380 £477,320 £1,854,760 

External Income (£42,320) (£43,670) (£45,080) (£46,770) (£177,840) 

Net Direct Expenditure £409,560 £414,510 £422,300 £430,550 £1,676,920 

 

                                                           
4  In conjunction with Cannock Chase District Council, we have commissioned a delivery partner Spring Housing to provide an 
independent and impartial outreach service for our rough sleepers. Spring will provide at least 5 units of supported accommodation 
that will support those individuals with the most acute needs, forming part of the Housing First model, but also flex to cater for 
those with lower level support needs who may be at risk of homelessness. It is being partly funded by government following 
successful bids to its Rapid Rehousing Pathway (RRP) fund of £109,500 and Rough Sleeper Initiative (RSI) of £105,000 (including 
£55,000 of funding for specialist mental health and substance misuse workers) shared with Cannock Chase DC.   
5 Excluding Housing Enforcement and Licensing. 

Page 40



6. The Approved Capital Programme Budgets6 within the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy directly supporting the delivery of the Housing Strategy are: 

Project 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 

Disabled Facilities 
Grants £2,107,000 £950,000 £950,000 £950,000 £4,957,000 
Home Repair 
Assistance £36,000 £15,000 £15,000 £15,000 £81,000 
Decent Homes 
Standard £172,000 £0 £0 £0 £172,000 

Energy Insulation £48,000 £10,000 £10,000 £10,000 £78,000 

DCLG Monies £212,000 £0 £0 £0 £212,000 
Affordable Housing 
S106 £684,000 £0 £0 £0 £684,000 

Housing Strategy Total £3,259,000 £975,000 £975,000 £975,000 £6,184,000 

      Council Sources (£264,000) (£44,000) (£44,000) (£44,000) (£396,000) 

Grant (£2,311,000) (£931,000) (£931,000) (£931,000) (£5,104,000) 

Section 106 (£684,000) 
 

  
 

(£684,000) 

Total Funding (£3,259,000) (£975,000) (£975,000) (£975,000) (£6,184,000) 
 

 

Contribution to the 
Delivery of the 
Strategic Plan 

 The Strategic Plan 2020-2024 has four corporate priorities; the ones that this 
strategy will mostly contribute to are the priorities ‘shape place’, ‘enable people’ and 
‘develop prosperity’. 

 

Crime & Safety 
Issues 

1. The provision of the Housing First scheme with supported accommodation 
options will potentially reduce the issues of anti-social behaviour created by 
some of our rough sleepers who have been using Friary Outer, other car parks 
and various locations in Lichfield City centre to sleep in, several of whom are 
reported to be taking drugs and begging in the city centre.  

2. The clients of the housing service cover a wide range of individuals from victims 
of domestic abuse to offenders leaving prison.  Therefore, positive interaction to 
address the individual’s needs will have a positive impact on crime and disorder. 

 

Environmental 
Impact 

1. None identified. 

 
 

                                                           
6 Assumes slippage is approved from 2019/20 contained in the Money Matters Report elsewhere on the Agenda. 

Equality, Diversity 
and Human Rights 
Implications 

The implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 means that the 
council now has additional duties to prevent homelessness and we must help to 
secure accommodation for all eligible households, regardless of whether they are in 
a ‘priority need’ category. This has increased the help given to single people and 
those without dependent children, especially single men, who were previously not in 
a ‘priority need’ category. They are still not necessarily in a priority need category, it 
is just that priority need is not a consideration when we are trying to prevent or 
relieve homelessness, except in determining eligibility for temporary 
accommodation. 

It is not anticipated that the strategy or action plan will have any negative 
implications for equality, diversity or human rights. The draft was evaluated by our 
Equality Impact Assessment group on the 25th February 2020 and was considered to 
have a positive impact. However, it was noted that the immigration status of some 
households may restrict the assistance that they can be offered under the 
homelessness legislation. 

Page 41



GDPR/Privacy 
Impact Assessment 

1. None identified 
 
 

 

 Risk Description How We Manage It Severity of 
Risk (RYG) 

A Actions identified in the 
strategy cannot be 
delivered 

Our action plan will be closely monitored 
through Pentana. An annual review will be 
conducted to enable us to assess the 
impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic and 
amend the strategy actions accordingly. 

Yellow 

B There are insufficient 
resources to deliver the 
emerging strategy 

The priority, objectives and associated 
actions have been established using existing 
budget and resources.    

Yellow 

C The priority and 
objectives cannot be 
achieved within the 
timeframe set.  
 
 

The priority and objectives proposed are 
very broad and the action plan contains the 
detail to deliver the strategy.  Many actions 
are existing project/commitments; we will 
monitor the impact of our actions and would 
develop business cases for any additional 
funding needed over time.  

Yellow 

D FHSG or similar 
government funding is 
not received in 2021/22 
or future years 
 

The action plan for the whole strategy is 
based on current budgets, which includes 
FHSG received for four years 2017/18-
2020/20. We will review our action plan and 
the staff and other resources needed to 
deliver it to ensure that the plan is 
achievable.  If government homelessness 
funding ceases we will develop a business 
case for additional council funding if 
required. 

 
Yellow 

  

Background documents 
MHCLG (2018) Rough Sleeping Strategy: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/733421/
Rough-Sleeping-Strategy_WEB.pdf 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2018-2020-   https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/Council/Health-and-wellbeing-
strategy.aspx 
Lichfield District Safer Community Partnership Draft Delivery Plan 
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/downloads/file/1246/community-safety-delivery-plan-2019-22 
 
  

Relevant web links 
Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019-2024 Community, Housing and Health Overview 
and Scrutiny committee meeting 18th March 2020 
https://democracy.lichfielddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=1556&Ver=4 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Cabinet 3rd December 2019 
https://democracy.lichfielddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=1537 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Community, Housing and Health Overview and Scrutiny committee meeting 
17th October 2019 
https://democracy.lichfielddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=1523 

 

Page 42

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/733421/Rough-Sleeping-Strategy_WEB.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/733421/Rough-Sleeping-Strategy_WEB.pdf
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/Council/Health-and-wellbeing-strategy.aspx
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/Council/Health-and-wellbeing-strategy.aspx
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/downloads/file/1246/community-safety-delivery-plan-2019-22
https://democracy.lichfielddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=1556&Ver=4
https://democracy.lichfielddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=1537
https://democracy.lichfielddc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=1523


                                                                                                                                          APPENDIX 1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing, Homelessness and Rough 

Sleeping Strategy 2019 – 2024 

Page 43



                                                                                                                                         APPENDIX 1 
 

Page 2 of 23 
 
 

Contents 
 

Foreword  .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................. 4 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 5 

Achievements since 2013 ....................................................................................................................... 6 

National Context ..................................................................................................................................... 7 

Local Context ........................................................................................................................................... 7 

A Profile of Lichfield District.................................................................................................................... 8 

Current Housing ...................................................................................................................................... 9 

Future Housing ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping ....................................................................................................... 17 

 

Page 44



                                                                                                                                         APPENDIX 1 

Page 3 of 23 
 
 

Foreword 
 

Cllr. Ashley Yeates 

Cabinet Member for Communities and Housing 

Access to suitable, good quality and affordable housing is important to our health and wellbeing and 

essential in providing sustainable communities. Ensuring we have the right type of homes in the 

right location can have a major impact on our ability to meet the needs of our growing and ageing 

population and to support the economic prosperity of the district. 

Since the publication of our last Housing and Homelessness Strategies, there has been a major 

change in approaching the ongoing issue of homelessness and rough sleeping. The Homelessness 

Reduction Act has fundamentally changed the way that local authorities in England deliver their 

homelessness and housing options services and the government has set a target to eradicate rough 

sleeping by 2027. 

I am therefore very pleased to introduce our new Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 

Strategy 2019-2024 which has three priorities to:   

 Enable people to live in good quality homes that are suitable for their needs 

 Increase housing choice to meet the needs of current and future residents 

 Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 
 

Naturally, the council cannot do this alone and the strategy can only be delivered in collaboration 

with key partners across the private, public and voluntary sectors working alongside our 

communities. I believe that through this strategy and its supporting action plan, we are able to build 

upon the strengths of what has already been achieved and meet the challenges of the future. 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



  APPENDIX 1 

Page 4 of 23 
 
 

Executive Summary

This Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy has been developed in response to the key 

housing issues currently facing Lichfield district as well as those that are expected to occur over the 

next few years and decades. It recognises the significant changes we will experience with regard to 

an ageing and growing population and the demand that this will bring for certain types of housing 

and housing related support.   

The strategy is in three sections- current housing, future housing and homelessness and rough 

sleeping.  A review of our evidence is included to support our three priorities: 

1. To enable people to live in good quality homes that are suitable for their needs 

2. To increase housing choice to meet the needs of current and future residents 

3. To prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 

Our objectives to meet these are to: 

 Promote services enabling people to live independently in their own homes 
 Advise and where possible support vulnerable households living in poor housing conditions 
 Encourage best use of the housing stock  
 Increase the supply of affordable housing 
 Ensure an adequate supply of suitable and accessible accommodation for vulnerable and older 

people in need 
 Improve the range of suitable housing options for those who are homeless or at risk of 

homelessness 
 Identify and provide support to those who face barriers to accessing and maintaining suitable 

accommodation 
 Tackle rough sleeping so that no one needs to sleep rough 

How we will achieve these is set out in our action plan in Annexe D. The strategy is a working 

document and we will update our evidence, including the impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic and 

amend our action plan after one year, and then at regular intervals over the next five years. 

 

Page 46



  APPENDIX 1 

Page 5 of 23 
 
 

Introduction 

 
Housing is fundamental to the wellbeing of 

our residents, their families and our 

communities. Although Lichfield District 

Council has not owned any council housing 

since 1997, we still have many key strategic 

housing responsibilities such as preventing 

and relieving homelessness, assessing housing 

need and providing Disabled Facilities Grants.   

For the first time, our Housing Strategy and 

Homelessness Strategy have been combined 

into one document to create a broader 

strategy that not only covers homelessness 

and rough sleeping but the wider housing 

challenges.  This reflects thinking that 

preventing homelessness and rough sleeping 

cannot be considered in isolation but within a 

wider framework, which covers the causes of 

and solutions to these challenges, such as 

access to affordable and suitable 

accommodation, the impact of welfare reform 

and the provision of and access to support for 

vulnerable households to successfully 

maintain their home.  

Ensuring an adequate supply of appropriate 

housing for all needs requires a multi-agency 

approach: our stakeholders include residents, 

registered providers, developers, voluntary 

and community sector organisations, the 

county council and private landlords.  Our 

action plan reflects this partnership approach 

and enables us to monitor and measure how 

well we address our priorities and objectives 

over the next five years.  It will be reviewed 

annually to ensure we are achieving our 

objectives and that we are able to adapt and 

respond positively to opportunities and 

promptly to housing market issues or changes 

in national policy. 

This strategy has been developed to take into 

account the key housing issues locally.  It has 

been informed by our Homelessness Review 

2019 which is a comprehensive review of 

evidence relating to homelessness and rough 

sleeping in addition to other housing 

information.   

The strategy is structured into three mains 

sections: Current Housing; Future Housing, 

and Homelessness and Rough Sleeping plus 

an action plan in Annexe D that sets out how 

we will achieve our three priorities: 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

Enable people to live in good quality homes that are suitable for their 

needs  

Increase housing choice to meet the needs of current and future 

residents 

Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 

Page 47



  APPENDIX 1 

Page 6 of 23 
 
 

Achievements since 2013  
 

Since the last housing and homelessness strategies we have delivered some excellent outcomes for 

the district by working closely with internal and external partners: 

Page 48



  APPENDIX 1 

Page 7 of 23 
 
 

National Context 
Our previous housing and homelessness strategies were adopted in 2013 and since that time 

significant legislative changes have taken place, presenting opportunities and challenges which 

include: 

 Welfare Reform & Work Act (2016) – introduction of universal credit; benefit cap; 1% rent 

reduction on social housing; freeze on Local Housing Allowance; spare room subsidy 

 Housing and Planning Act (2016) – empowered the government to introduce Right to Buy for 

Housing Association tenants; phasing out of life-time tenancies; Starter Homes. 

 Homelessness Reduction Act (2017) – fundamentally changed the way that we deliver our 

homelessness and housing options services. Discussed in detail in section 3. 

Local Context  
Every four years our Strategic Plan sets out the corporate vision and priorities which determine how 

we deliver our functions and policies during that time. The Strategic Plan 2020 to 2024 has the 

following vision and priorities: 

Corporate 
Vision 

‘We will work collaboratively to enable people, shape place and develop prosperity 
across Lichfield District. We will be a good council that innovates and puts our 
customers at the heart of all we do’ 

 

Corporate 
Priorities 

 
 

Of most importance to this strategy are the priorities ‘shape place’, ‘enable people’ and ‘develop 

prosperity’. 

The strategy is a core document which exists alongside a range of interconnected plans, policies and 

strategies, shown in figure 1. During the previous strategy period the council strengthened its 

understanding of housing and its relationship with health and wellbeing. This was reflected in our 

first Health and Wellbeing Strategy, through which we have committed to encouraging more active, 

healthier lifestyles and supporting vulnerable and older people which can be improved through 

appropriate housing provision. 

Page 49



  APPENDIX 1 

Page 8 of 23 
 
 

Figure 1   Inter-connected documents

 

A Profile of Lichfield District 
Lichfield District is located in the county of Staffordshire in the West Midlands, 20 miles north of 

Birmingham and 9 miles from Walsall. It also has good rail links with a direct train to London taking 1 

hour, 15 minutes.  There are two main urban settlements, the cathedral city of Lichfield and the 

town of Burntwood, as well as many rural villages and settlements. The district is rich in history and 

this heritage and culture, along with excellent transport links, has resulted in a high demand for 

homes, making it now the most expensive place to live in the county. 

 

Housing, 
Homelessness, 

and Rough 
Sleeping 
Strategy

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Strategy Housing 

Assistance 
Policy

Homeless 
Prevention 

and Assistance 
Policy

Medium Term 
Financial 

Strategy MTFS

Supplementary 
Planning 

Documents

Neighbourhood 
Plans

Local Plan 
Strategy

Strategic Plan

Tenancy 
Strategy

Discretionary 
Housing 

Payments 
Policy

Allocations 
Scheme

Empty Homes 
Policy

Page 50



  APPENDIX 1 

Page 9 of 23 
 
 

Key facts about the district: 

 23% of our residents are aged 65 and over 

compared to the national and regional 

average of 18%. 

 

 Population is currently 103,9651 and 

projected to increase by 4% between 2015 

and 2025, with a significant growth in 

people over 65 (20%) and over 85 (63%). 

This rate of increase is likely to be faster 

than the national average. 

 

 The average house costs £70,000 more than 

in the West Midlands. 

 

 Household numbers are expected to rise 
from 44,000 to 48,000 by 2039. Household 
numbers containing people aged 25-74 
years old will decrease whereas those aged 
75 or over will rise from 16% to 29%.  

 

 Actual size of our households will decrease 

from an average 2.43 persons to 2.24 

between 2018 and 2038 due to a rise in 

single person households, such as older 

people living alone. 

 

 Home ownership is high at 75% but has 

dropped by 4% since 2001. Private renting 

has increased from 5% to 12% and social 

renting remains the same at 13%. 

 

 It is prosperous and ranks within the lowest 

25% of local authorities for overall 

deprivation2. However, some areas fall 

within 20% of the most deprived. 

 

 It is less ethnically diverse than the region 

and England with White British origin 

accounting for over 94% of the district. 13 

people identified themselves as gypsy or 

Irish traveller in the 2011 census. 

 Overall life expectancy is 81 years for men 
which is better than the West Midlands at 
79 years and England at 80 years. For 
women in the district it is 83 which is the 
same for females both regionally and 
nationally. However, on average, the final 16 
years are spent in poor health. 
 

 48% of people aged 65 or over have a 
limiting long-term illness which is slightly 
lower than the national average at 52% 

 

 In 2017/18, 700 people were diagnosed with 

dementia, rising from 660 the previous year. 

 

 68% of adults with learning disabilities live in 

settled accommodation which is lower than 

Staffordshire (73%), West Midlands (72%) 

and England (77%).

Section 1 Current Housing  
We cannot rely solely on building new homes to meet the needs of our current and future residents; 

it is important to ensure that our existing stock, of all tenures, is of a good standard to increase 

housing choice and encourage mobility. Adapting existing houses to suit the occupant’s needs can 

also help them to remain in their own home, if they wish and to live as independently as possible. 

Owner Occupied Housing 

The existing housing stock is generally in good 

condition, though a stock condition report in 

20173 found that 15% of dwellings had  

                                                           
1 Mid-year population estimate 2017 
2 The Indices of Deprivation are a unique measure of relative 

deprivation at a small local area level (Lower-layer Super 
Output Areas) across England. The Indices of Deprivation 2019 
(IoD2019) is the most recent release. 

 

category 1 hazards4, 6% were hazardous due 

to excess cold and 9% due to fall hazards. 3% 

were also in disrepair. 

3 BRE Integrated Dwelling Level Housing Stock Modelling and 
database for Lichfield District Council, July 2017 
4 To comply with Housing law, homes should be free of any 
serious (category 1) hazards.  There are 29 hazards which can 

Page 51

https://www.staffordbc.gov.uk/housing-health-and-safety-rating-system-the-29-hazards


                                                                                                        APPENDIX 1  

Page 10 of 23 
 

Though the primary responsibility for 

maintaining a home rests with the 

homeowner, we currently have very limited 

funding for emergency home repair assistance 

grants for owner-occupiers. Applicants must 

be vulnerable due to old age or disability and 

be on income-related benefits to qualify. We 

will be carrying out an evaluation of these 

grants as part of a review of our Housing 

Assistance Policy to determine their 

effectiveness and examine alternative 

approaches. 

The Private Rented Sector (PRS) 

At 10%, the proportion of our stock that is 

privately rented is significantly smaller than 

England at 19%. However, it is the fastest 

growing sector having increased from 5% of 

properties in 2001. The stock is generally in 

good condition and in the 2017 survey had 

the same percentage with category 1 hazards 

as the owner occupied stock, though it fared 

slightly worse for disrepair. A study of housing 

enforcement notices served by our private 

sector housing team since 2013 show that the 

majority were due to excess cold, damp and 

electrical faults.  

We also have 20 licensed5 Houses in Multiple 

Occupation (HMOs) and there may be more 

that we are unaware of that have not been 

inspected or licensed yet. We also have a 

number of HMOs that fall slightly below the 

criteria for a license. HMOs are required to 

meet basic housing standards as other private 

rent properties but there are additional rules 

to address the increased fire risk and facilities 

for the occupants. 

In order to ensure our private rental stock is a 

good standard, we will continue to engage 

with landlords to investigate complaints and 

                                                           
be assessed for seriousness under The Housing Health and 
Safety Rating System (HHSRS) including dampness, disrepair, 
excess cold and electrical hazards. 
5 An HMO is required to be licensed by the Local Authority if it 
is occupied by five or more persons living in two or more 
separate households. 
6 Also called Housing Associations 
7 This required by the Localism Act 2011.   
8 The council stock was sold in 1997. 

also make sure that they are aware of their 

responsibilities. We have a Landlords’ Forum 

run jointly with Tamworth Borough Council 

which meets twice a year in conjunction with 

the National Landlords Association (NLA) to 

provide advice, education and guidance on 

housing standards and promote good working 

practices with our private landlords.  The 

majority of our landlords welcome this 

partnership working but for the small minority 

who fail to maintain their properties, we will 

take enforcement action where necessary to 

ensure their properties are rented to an 

acceptable standard and licensed where 

required.  

Social Housing 

We currently have approximately 5,790 

properties in the social rented sector, 

managed by 16 RPs6.  Although not a stock-

owning authority, we still have responsibilities 

regarding social housing and work with the 

RPs to make sure that their social stock is a 

good standard and suitable for our residents’ 

needs, both now and for the future. 

 

We have a Tenancy Strategy7 which our RPs 

must abide by when formulating their lettings 

policies. This includes the use of fixed term 

tenancies and protection for vulnerable 

tenants, in addition to rents being at or below 

local housing allowance rates. It is in our 

action plan to review our Tenancy Strategy to 

ensure that it remains fit for purpose.  

 

The RP with the majority of social rented 

stock (80%) including the ex-council housing 

stock8 is Bromford. They have a planned 

maintenance programme and almost all9 of 

their homes now meet the Decent Homes 

standard10.  

9 Tenants can decide if they want the works to be carried out to 

their home &, as of Feb 2020, there are 12 properties that do 
not meet the DH standard for this reason.  
10 The Decent Homes standard was updated in 2006 and the 
criteria for the standard are for a property to meet the current 
statutory minimum standard for housing, be in a reasonable 
state of repair, have reasonably modern facilities and services 
and provide a reasonable degree of thermal comfort. 

Page 52



                                                                                                        APPENDIX 1  

Page 11 of 23 
 

 

Bromford has a regeneration programme11 to 

demolish older homes made of non-

traditional style construction, such as Swedish 

Timber and ‘Airey’ that have a low EPC rating 

and are very inefficient and expensive to heat. 

Once the three current schemes are 

complete, 42 homes will have been 

demolished and replaced by 93 brand new 

energy efficient homes.  

 

Improving on Energy Efficiency 

In terms of energy efficiency, the average 

Simple SAP12 ratings for all private sector 

stock is 59, which is better than both England 

and the West Midlands. Overall owner-

occupied homes are not as efficient as the 

private rented, having a SAP rating of 58 

compared to 62. This is likely due to the large 

number of owner-occupied, rural homes 

which tend to be older (pre-1944) and less 

energy efficient. We have a small number of 

houses with no central heating - 1.6% or 700 

homes, which is lower than the national 

average of 2.7%13.  

Warmer Homes Greener District (WHGD) was 

set up in 2008 to support and advise our 

households on energy and energy bills. A key 

feature of this service has been its energy 

efficiency grant, which has enabled many of 

our vulnerable households to receive 

assistance with the often prohibitive cost of 

essential heating repairs and replacements. 

WHGD continues to be offered on our behalf 

by the specialist energy efficiency advice 

provider, Beat the Cold (BTC). Through BTC 

we are now involved in a number of 

pioneering public health focused projects in 

partnerships including local health and care 

providers, Staffordshire County Council, utility 

companies and other key community service 

providers. The main projects include 

                                                           
11 This includes Lullington road/Main street Clifton Campville, 

Levett road Packington and Anson Road Alrewas. 
12 The Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) is the 

methodology used by the Government to assess and compare 
the energy and environmental performance of dwellings. Its 
purpose is to provide accurate and reliable assessments of 

Staffordshire Warmer Homes, a scheme to 

increase access to mains gas services and first 

time central heating to qualifying households, 

and the Staying Well Service, improving health 

outcomes for those living with chronic 

conditions. This enables us to better address 

the full impacts of poor housing on the health 

and wellbeing of vulnerable occupants.   

Empty Homes 

Compared to national figures, the number of 

empty homes in the district is low. At 

December 2019 there were approximately 800 

empty homes, around 1.6% of our total 

housing stock. Just under half of these had 

been empty for over 6 months and are 

therefore considered to be long term empty 

homes according to the standard definition14. 

Empty homes are often a cause for concern 

and can attract anti-social behaviour. Our 

Empty Homes Policy describes the tools 

available to us to deal with problematic empty 

homes as well as how we monitor empty 

homes, process complaints, assess risks and 

try to bring empties back into use.  The 

council also uses council tax premium powers 

as a deterrent to keeping properties empty. 

 

Adapting Existing Housing  

We recognise that many people who are 

disabled wish to remain in their own homes, 

rather than move to specialist 

accommodation. We will therefore continue 

to assist eligible residents to adapt their 

properties through the use of Disabled 

Facilities Grants (DFGs). With our predicted 

ageing population, it is expected that there 

will be a greater future demand for DFGs to 

enable residents to live as long and as 

independently as possible in their own homes. 

dwelling energy performances that are needed to underpin 
energy and environmental policy initiatives. 
13 2011 figures from Staffs Observatory 
14 A long term empty home is one which has been empty for 
more than six months. 

Page 53



                                                                                                        APPENDIX 1  

Page 12 of 23 
 

 

We have used the services of a Home 

Improvement Agency (HIA) to deliver DFGs for 

many years and since April 2018 we have 

been part of the county-wide SILIS15 

Partnership.  The current HIA is Millbrook 

Healthcare Ltd who assist applicants with 

adaptation works and will guide them through 

the process from the initial enquiry to 

completing the works. The majority that are 

awarded are for the conversion of traditional 

style bathrooms to level access showers and 

the installation of stair lifts. 

 

Housing for Older People 

There are c1300 dwellings for older people 

and 135 with care, 90% of which is either 

owned outright or through shared ownership 

schemes, 5.5% is social rent and the 

remaining 4.5% private rent. It consists of 

sheltered accommodation, extra care housing 

and care homes.  At present we currently only 

have one extra care housing scheme in 

Lichfield that is owned by Bromford. It has 

135 one, two and three bedroom apartments 

available to rent, buy outright, or part rent/ 

buy with shared ownership.  

Accord Housing Association are in the process 

of building a dementia centre of excellence in 

Fradley. The scheme will provide care and 

support for residents and their families, with a 

specialist team who will work alongside 

people with dementia, 24 hours a day, 

delivering personalised and quality care and 

support. 

Housing for People with Disabilities  

There is some specialist housing for adults 

with learning disabilities including a modern 

supported housing complex for 20 adults in 

Fazeley that has 12 Supported Living Flats, 

and an 8 bedded transition home. In Lichfield 

there is also a 7 bed residential care home, for 

people with learning disabilities with a view to 

preparing them for supported living.  

A new ‘My Place’ scheme built by Bromford is 

soon to open in Burntwood comprising 14 

self-contained flats for people with a learning 

disability, where they can live independently 

with the care and support they need. 

Current housing – a summary of our challenges 

 There is a smaller than average private rental sector with high rent levels  

 There are some areas of poor quality private rental housing with category 1 hazards, including 

hazards due to excess cold and falls 

 We are unsure of the exact number of HMOs in the district that require licensing 

 As our population ages, more existing housing will become unsuitable  

 We expect that there will continue to be an increased demand for DFGs 

To address these challenges we have established the following priority- to work with partners to: 

‘Enable people to live in good quality homes that are suitable for their needs’  

Our objectives to achieve this are: 

 Promote services enabling people to live independently in their own homes 

 Advise and where possible support vulnerable households living in poor housing conditions 

 Encourage best use of the housing stock  

Our actions to deliver these objectives are in the action plan in Annexe D. 

                                                           
15 Supporting Independent Living in Staffordshire Partnership 
(Staffordshire County Council, Lichfield District Council, 
Newcastle Under Lyme Borough Council, South Staffordshire 

District Council, Stafford Borough Council, Staffs Moorlands 
Borough Council, Tamworth borough Council) 

 

Page 54



                                                                                                        APPENDIX 1  

Page 13 of 23 
 

Section 2 Future Housing  
 

As with many other local authorities, we face significant housing pressures due to a high demand for 

housing and a lack of affordable and suitable homes. It is therefore vital, that we are aware of the 

housing needs of our residents and that new housing built reflects these needs.   

Issues 

There is an imbalance of housing types, with a 

high number of large detached and semi-

detached family homes (particularly in rural 

areas) and a relatively low number of smaller 

one and two bed homes.  

House prices and rents are generally high, 

affecting mobility and preventing first time 

buyers getting on the property ladder and 

older people downsizing.  This increases 

demand for social rented properties and low-

cost home ownership options.  

We know that we are losing younger working 

residents and families to nearby areas due to 

the lack of smaller, affordable properties, 

which can have a negative impact on the 

sustainability of communities, particularly in 

rural areas.  

Affordable housing need 

Our last housing strategy identified 

affordability as a major problem and this is 

still a significant issue for many of our 

residents. The 2019 Housing and Economic 

Development Need Assessment16 estimated 

the net annual level of affordable housing 

need to be 220 affordable housing17 units 

from 2016 to 2036. This includes all affordable 

tenures, such as social and affordable rent 

and shared ownership. 

The need for social rented homes remains 

high and at January 2020 there were 1350 

applicants registered on Homes Direct, our 

choice based lettings system. 45% of 

applicants needed one bedroom 

accommodation followed by 35% with a two-

                                                           
16 This need from 2016-2036 Lichfield District Council (2019). 
Housing and Economic Development Need Assessment 
17 Affordable housing includes social rented, affordable rented 
and intermediate housing, provided to specified eligible 
households whose needs are not met by the market. 

bedroom need. 15.5% required a three bed 

property and 4% a four bed. Less than 1% 

were on the waiting list for a five or six bed 

home. 

The majority of applicants on the register 

have expressed a preference for a home in 

Lichfield and Burntwood but this is to be 

expected as they are the two largest urban 

settlements. 

Delivery of Affordable Housing 

In order to deliver affordable housing, we 

work in partnership with our approved RPs18 

including supporting their affordable homes 

grant applications to Homes England.   The 

majority is delivered though planning 

gain/developer contributions widely called 

s106.  In the last three years 2016-17 to 2018-

192 of the 398 affordable homes built and 

occupied, 58% was secured through s106 

agreements.   

In recent years a few of our RPs have been 

very successful in building new homes 

through their own land led schemes rather 

than s106, with 169 built in the last 3 years. 

Several RPs are now Homes England strategic 

partners that gives them even more flexibility 

and longer term funding certainty for the next 

ten years which should enable them to do 

even more of these.  

Our current planning policy stipulates that on 

sites of 15 or more, up to 40% of new 

dwellings should be affordable with the 

percentage reviewed every year according to 

a dynamic model of viability, currently 37%.  

Our policy also states that around 35% of the 

18 In 2018 we launched an Approved Registered Providers 

policy 
https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/downloads/file/142/affordable-
housing-approved-registered-providers 

Page 55



                                                                                                        APPENDIX 1  

Page 14 of 23 
 

affordable housing should be intermediate 

tenure (including shared ownership) whilst 

65% must be for rent.  Where a developer 

proposes a lower percentage of affordable 

housing, they are required to provide robust 

evidence through a viability appraisal to 

justify this, which will be subject to 

independent testing and verification by the 

District Valuer.  Affordable housing should be 

provided on all eligible sites and only in very 

exceptional circumstances will we accept 

contributions in lieu to provide affordable 

housing elsewhere.  

As part of our Local Plan review we are 

reviewing all of our housing policies, which 

will include the percentage affordable housing 

that we seek on new housing sites.  The 

percentage will be largely determined by a 

plan wide viability study that is still in 

progress. As part of the policy development 

we will also be reviewing the suite of 

supplementary planning documents (SPDs), in 

particular the Developer Contributions SPD 

and examine how we can balance the 

competing demands of affordable housing 

and other contributions such as open space in 

the future.   

There are currently 213 affordable dwellings 

with planning permission that are due to be 

constructed in the next five years19 and many 

other sites in the planning system.  We know 

that this will not be enough to meet demand, 

however through our local plan review our 

aim will be to ensure that we can continue to 

maximise the delivery of affordable homes in 

the right locations across the district.  

As we are not a stock owning authority, we 

rely on developers and RPs to build new 

homes and we will continue to work closely 

with them to ensure good quality, affordable 

housing.  However, in September 2019 we 

formed a Housing Company with the aim to 

respond to local housing need and provide 

                                                           
19 Lichfield District Council: Authority monitoring report July 

2019 

homes, both to rent and sell, that will help to 

grow communities, create opportunities and 

support independent living. It will focus on 

small to medium size development 

opportunities which can get overlooked by 

larger developers. The company will look to 

initially sell these homes in order to grow 

capital that allows it to support the 

development of both smaller and affordable 

homes in the future. 

We are also increasing the supply of 

affordable housing by using existing 

commuted sums and some housing reserves 

to acquire our own properties. We are leasing 

the initial purchases to Spring Housing for the 

Housing First initiative to rehouse rough 

sleepers and homeless people with multiple 

and complex needs.   

Meeting the Needs of Specific Groups 
Older People  

We will experience significant growth in our 

older population over the next few decades 

which will have major implications on the type 

of housing required and associated support. 

For example, it is estimated that residents 

over 65 with dementia will increase by 59% by 

2035, and higher numbers will be living in 

accommodation unsuitable for their needs.  

In 2019 we commissioned an independent 

living research project to determine the 

housing needs of older people in the district20. 

The research found that:- 

 The majority of older people prefer to live 

in their own home for longer rather than 

move to specialist accommodation. There 

will therefore be an increased demand for 

adaptations and DFGs to make current 

homes more accessible. 

 There is currently a lack of housing choice 

for older people, in all tenures. 

 The majority of older persons’ 

accommodation is located in Lichfield city 

20 An Assessment of the Housing Needs of older People, people 
with Mental Health Needs & People with Physical Disabilities in 
Lichfield District, Housing LIN, Jan 2020 (Housing LIN) 

Page 56



                                                                                                        APPENDIX 1  

Page 15 of 23 
 

with areas such as Burntwood under-

represented 

 The current housing available is expensive 

and unaffordable for many older people. 

 People were unsure of the options and 

type of housing available to them. 

 

More detailed information on the research is 

available in Annexe C. 

 
People with Learning or Physical Disabilities 

We know that the number of residents with 

learning or physical disabilities will decrease 

slightly over the next few decades21. However, 

the independent living study showed that 

there will be a rise in people with a learning 

disability reaching old age as life expectancy 

improves. We also know that there is a 

significant number of adults with learning 

disabilities currently living with older parents 

who now have their own age-related care 

needs22. 

According to Staffordshire County Council, 

68% of adults with learning disabilities live in 

settled accommodation23 which is lower than 

the county at 73% and England at 77%24. 

Living independently with support is the ideal 

housing option for adults with a learning 

disability as it has a positive effect on their 

quality of life and can reduce social exclusion.  

In addition, the same study identified the 

need for a proportion of new build properties 

to be built to Lifetime Homes25 standards to 

accommodate both working age and older 

people with disabilities. Lifetime homes 

encourage independent living and therefore 

have a positive effect on quality of life and will 

reduce the number of residents that require 

                                                           
21 Housing LIN 
22 Housing LIN 
23 'Settled' accommodation is defined by Public Health England 
as housing where the person can reasonably expect to stay as 
long as they want. 'Unsettled' accommodation is either 
unsatisfactory or where residents do not have security of 
tenure, for example, in residential care homes. 
24 Housing and Health in Staffordshire, the Strategy Team. 
Staffordshire Observatory, Staffs County Council, Jan 2019 

expensive residential care accommodation in 

the future. We will therefore work closely 

with our planning colleagues and developers 

to encourage the delivery of specialist 

accommodation, including lifetime homes, to 

ensure we have a good supply of properties 

built for changing life circumstances and 

adaptability. 

Gypsies and Travellers 

We have an obligation under the Housing & 
Planning Act 2016 to consider the needs of 
people who reside or resort to the district, 
and provide sites on which caravans can be 
stationed, or places on inland waterways 
where houseboats can be moored. In 2018 
there were 6 unauthorised encampments 
believed to be mainly as a result of people 
passing through the district.  
 
The 2019 Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) 
identified a need for 7 residential pitches26.  
Our Local Plan supports the delivery of these 
by 2040 including meeting the identified need 
for 4 pitches by 2024.   

Self and Custom Build Housing 

Under the Housing and Planning Act 2016, we 

are required to keep a register of all 

individuals who wish to acquire land to build 

homes to occupy as their main residence. As 

of January 2020, we have a very low demand 

for self-build schemes and it is therefore not 

necessary to have a specific policy to identify 

site allocations. However, we support the 

principle of self and custom build and any 

proposals will be considered on their merit. 

 

25Homes that meet 16 design criteria that are intended to 

make homes more accessible and adaptable for lifetime use at 
minimal cost http://www.lifetimehomes.org.uk/ 
26 Lichfield District Council, North 
Warwickshire Borough Council and 
Tamworth Borough Council 
Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation 
Assessment (GTAA) 
November 2019 

Page 57

http://www.lifetimehomes.org.uk/


                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1  

Page 16 of 23 
 

 

Future housing – a summary of our challenges 

• We have a shortage of affordable social rented housing and the turnover does not meet 
demand 

• There is a smaller than average private rental sector with high rent levels. Low income 

households are therefore priced out of the market with landlords more likely to rent to 

higher earning households with more stable incomes 

• Having the highest house prices in Staffordshire means that home ownership is out of 

reach for many, which impacts on mobility, preventing first time buyers from getting on 

the property ladder and older people from downsizing 

• We need to improve housing choice for our changing population; this means enabling  
an increased supply of smaller homes and age-related housing with better accessibility 
standards 

• We need to work with partners to increase the supply of suitable housing choice for 
people with learning disabilities including where they are currently living with their older 
parents or carers with their own care needs 

 

 

To address these challenges we have established the following priority- to work with partners to: 

 ‘Increase housing choice to meet the need of current and future residents' 

Our objectives to achieve this are: 

 Increase the supply of affordable housing 

 Ensure an adequate supply of suitable and accessible accommodation for vulnerable and 

older people in need 

Our actions to deliver these objectives are in the action plan in Annexe D. 

 

Page 58



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1  

Page 17 of 23 
 

Section 3 Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
 

Introduction 

Section 3 sets out how we plan to tackle 

homelessness and rough sleeping in our 

district. The evidence from our Homelessness 

Review in Annexe B has shown that tackling 

homelessness is a complex issue and can only 

be addressed through a thorough 

understanding of the reasons why people lose 

their home or become at risk of homelessness. 

It is also important to understand why some 

people, in particular vulnerable adults and 

rough sleepers, repeatedly struggle to sustain 

their tenancies. The review has shown that one 

of the most important ways of successfully 

preventing homelessness is through good 

partnership working with other agencies and 

stakeholders to provide sustainable solutions.  

Homelessness can be extremely traumatic on 

individuals and families and have a huge 

impact on their health and wellbeing. For 

example, a report by the Local Government 

Association27 found that homeless people in 

England are more likely to have long-term 

physical health or mental health problems than 

the general population, and children who 

experience homelessness are more likely to 

suffer from stress and anxiety, resulting in 

depression and behavioural issues. In addition, 

they are also at greater risk of becoming 

homeless themselves when they reach 

adulthood. 

We are therefore committed to tackling all 

forms of homelessness by either preventing 

households from becoming homeless or 

assisting those that do to secure suitable and 

permanent accommodation as soon as 

possible. In many cases, this will require strong 

multi-agency partnership working to help 

those with complex needs who may struggle to 

find and keep a home. 

                                                           
27 Leng,G. (2017). The Impact of Homelessness on 
Health – A guide for Local Authorities. London. 
Local Government Association 

In addition to tackling homelessness in general, 

all local authorities are now required to update 

their homelessness strategies to incorporate 

how they plan to address rough sleeping in 

their area. This is in response to the 

government’s own Rough Sleeping Strategy 

2018, which states the commitment to halve 

rough sleeping in England by 2022 and end it 

by 2027.  

Achievements 

Since the adoption of our last Homelessness 

Strategy in 2013, we have:- 

 Reviewed our use of temporary 

accommodation resulting in better self-

contained unfurnished accommodation. 

 Improved access to the Discretionary 

Housing Payment scheme to make it more 

accessible to households who are in 

hardship and facing potential 

homelessness.   

 Revitalised the Landlord’s Forum by 

combining it with Tamworth Borough 

Council’s in order to make it more 

appealing to landlords with property in 

both areas.  

 Successfully bid for Rough Sleeper 

Initiative and Rapid Rehousing Pathway 

funding to enable our rough sleeper 

outreach and Housing First scheme.  

 Facilitated the opening of a Winter Night 

Shelter for the first time in 

February/March 2019. This was run by a 

local charity Churches Together and was 

made possible through government cold 

weather funding that we match funded.  

 Reviewed our Homeless Prevention 

schemes to simplify the number available 

and make it easier for vulnerable 

Page 59



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1  

Page 18 of 23 
 

households to access grants or loans to 

secure suitable accommodation. 

 Set up a partnership with Fusion Credit 

Union (FCU), a not-for-profit financial co-

operative that administers low-cost loans, 

for deposits or rent in advance. 

 Provided funding for Citizens Advice 

South East Staffordshire (CASES) through 

our Community and Voluntary Sector 

funding to enable them to support people 

who are in crisis due to homelessness or at 

risk of homelessness due to debt. 
 

The Homelessness Reduction 

Act 2017 

By far the most significant event to occur since 

the adoption of our last Homelessness Strategy 

is the introduction of the Homelessness 

Reduction Act (HRA) which was enacted in 

April 2018. This has fundamentally changed 

the way that local authorities in England 

deliver their homelessness and housing 

options services. We now have a duty to assist 

all those affected by homelessness, not just 

those in ‘priority need’ or with a local 

connection. In addition, a person can now be 

considered at risk of homelessness if they are 

in danger of losing their home within 56 days 

rather than 28 under the previous legislation. 

We also now have a statutory duty to prevent 

or relieve homelessness and are required to 

carry out in-depth interviews to compile a 

personal housing plan (PHP) for each 

household that presents as homeless or at risk. 

The PHP contains actions that the applicant 

and the council must take in order to help 

them with their homelessness, including 

contact with supporting agencies, if 

appropriate. These new duties have increased 

the number accessing our housing option 

services and also lengthened the time that 

officers will assist them in resolving their 

housing issue. As a result, we have:- 

 Purchased a new IT system, which has 

resulted in an improved service to 

customers. This new database (called 

Housing Jigsaw) records activity in 

response to the HRA and collates data 

required by by the Ministry of Housing 

Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG). It enables online homeless 

applications through a customer portal 

that is used to access a PHP, upload 

documents and update actions. 

 Appointed an additional Housing Options 

Officer to address the need for more in-

depth interviews and the creation of PHPs.  

 Seconded an officer to undertake 

additional projects relating to the 

implementation of the HRA and the 

requirement to record more detailed 

homelessness information required by 

MHCLG. 

 Appointed a Tenancy Sustainment Officer 

to help deliver the new prevention duty. 

This officer will assist those customers who 

need additional help to become ‘tenancy 

ready’ and help vulnerable tenants who 

may be at risk of losing their home through 

debt issues or underlying support needs.  

 Raised Awareness with our Stakeholders 

through meetings with agencies such as 

mental health services, the Through Care 

Service (which supports Care Leavers) and 

Probation to make them aware of the new 

legislation and their role in helping to 

prevent homelessness. 

 Commissioned Spring Housing Association 

to manage accommodation and provide 

an outreach service for rough sleepers 

and other homeless people. This service, 

which commenced in September 2019, is 

in conjunction with Cannock District 

Council and will provide supported 

accommodation based on the Housing First 

model.   In addition, with unallocated s106 

funds we have committed to the purchase 

of up to five properties, to be used by 

Spring as supported accommodation for 

rough sleepers and homeless people with 

complex needs.  

 

Page 60



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1  

Page | 19  
 

A Snapshot of Homelessness and Rough Sleeping  

 Between 2013-2018 we received 6308 housing advice enquiries 

 There were 5 rough sleepers at the annual rough sleeper estimates in 2018 and 2019 

 
In 2018/19  

 518 households received housing advice of which 230 were owed a prevention or relief duty 

 44 referrals were made to us under the Duty to Refer 

 122 households were owed the prevention duty, 108 households were owed the relief duty 

 13 households were able to remain in their existing home and 40 were found an alternative  

 On average 16 households were in temporary accommodation at the end of each quarter 

 The average length of stay in temporary accommodation was 15 weeks 

 24 households lost their home due to domestic violence, an increase from 12 in 2017/18 

 14 households secured private rented accommodation to relieve their homelessness  

 33 households secured social rented accommodation to relieve their homelessness  

 151 households were identified as having support needs 

 The top three reasons for the loss of last settled home were 

o Family no longer willing or able to accommodate  

o The ending of a private rented tenancy  

o Relationship breakdown 

 How we currently tackle Homelessness through Partnership 

Working 

We recognise that to successfully tackle 

homelessness issues, it is vital to work in 

partnership with other public agencies and 

organisations. We have good working 

relationships with our voluntary and statutory 

agencies and without them it would not be 

possible to provide a complete service to our 

customers. However, a major challenge in the 

district is that we have no direct access hostel 

for men or women and no residential 

treatment centres for drug or alcohol 

addiction. We will, therefore continue to build 

good working relationships with local agencies 

and also develop new partnerships with 

others that can help us to address the key 

homelessness issues in the district.   

In addition to identifying issues through the 

Homelessness Review, the council has also 

carried out consultation to share our 

emerging priorities and seek additional 

evidence to assist with the formation of this 

Strategy. We launched a Homelessness Forum 

at an event on 11 September 2019 that was 

attended by 30 people representing 16 

organisations working with homeless and 

vulnerable people. The attendees were 

invited to comment on our findings of the 

homelessness review as well as participating 

in a workshop to discuss case studies based 

on recent homeless cases. As a result of this 

consultation, a number of recommendations 

were made: 

Page 61



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1  

Page | 20  
 

 Investigate the possibility of a private 

sector leasing scheme 

 Promote the use of shared 

accommodation 

 Identify private sector landlords with a 

social conscience 

 Develop eviction panels and protocols with 

RPs to reduce the number of evictions due 

to rent arrears 

 Facilitate the development of more 

supported accommodation  

 Utilise the availability of DHP to prevent 

homelessness through payment of rent 

arrears. 

 Reduce debt by encouraging referrals to 

money advice e.g. CASES 

 Ensure RP’s policies do not exclude people 

on financial grounds 

 Promote Fusion Credit Union 
 Ensure there is access to employment & 

training opportunities such as those 

provided by Job Centre Plus. 

Rough Sleeping 

We are committed to helping rough sleepers 

get the right support and access to settled 

housing and will work to meet the 

government’s target to halve rough sleeping 

by 2022 and end it by 2027.  

We recognise that rough sleepers are one of 

the most vulnerable groups in society. Some 

suffer from substance misuse (alcohol or drug 

dependency) and mental or physical health 

issues, or a combination. Evidence has also 

shown that many entrenched rough sleepers 

are homeless because they have repeatedly 

been unable to sustain accommodation due 

to these multiple and complex support needs. 

Rough Sleeping data  

Since 2010, we have carried out an annual 

rough sleeper estimate in accordance with 

government requirements to get as accurate a 

representation as possible of the number of 

people sleeping rough on one particular night. 

The last annual rough sleeper estimate in 

November 2019 reported five rough sleepers. 

This was the second largest number of rough 

sleepers in the county behind Newcastle-

Under-Lyme and equal to the estimates of 

East Staffordshire, Stafford and Tamworth. As 

the estimate is only a snapshot of one 

particular night, we know from unofficial 

sightings that there could be more. Though 

the numbers are relatively low, they have 

increased, as three were recorded in 2017 and 

one in 2016. It is also of concern that, of the 

151 individuals owed a prevention or relief 

duty in 2018/19, eight of those had a history 

of rough sleeping. 

How we currently help Rough Sleepers  

Homeless & Rough Sleeper Housing Pathway 

In June 2019, with Cannock Chase District 

Council we entered into a partnership with 

Spring Housing Association to deliver a 

housing pathway for rough sleepers and 

homeless individuals with multiple and 

complex needs.  It is hoped this pathway will 

contribute to a reduction in rough sleeping 

and repeat homelessness in both districts by 

the end of 2020 and increase the housing 

options available to individuals with multiple 

and complex needs living in precarious 

housing circumstances. The service 

incorporates a street outreach facility where 

officers will monitor areas of known rough 

sleeping at appropriate times of the day when 

they are likely to make contact.  A rapid 

assessment of need is undertaken to support 

rough sleepers away from the street as 

quickly and sustainably as possible. Where a 

connection to the district doesn’t exist, Spring 

will support individuals to access 

accommodation and support options in areas 

where they do have a local connection. 

A significant barrier to ending rough sleeping 

and homelessness for those with multiple and 

complex needs is the lack of supported 

accommodation. To combat this, the pathway 

will also have up to 5 units of supported 

Page 62



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1  

Page | 21  
 

accommodation on a Housing First model 

which will include flexible support for as long 

as is needed.   

Lichfield Emergency Night Shelter (LENS) 

In 2019 and 2020, the council and central 

government has funded an emergency winter 

night shelter to provide shelter, food and 

support to our rough sleepers.  

 The service was managed by Churches 

Together, a local faith group and over 50 

volunteers and was hosted by different 

churches over seven nights a week.  

 Following the March/ April 2019 shelter, 

four of the rough sleepers were 

supported in moving into their own 

independent or supported 

accommodation and three were 

subsequently offered accommodation. 

Two engaged in recovery services to 

support them with their substance 

misuse. 

The Severe Weather Emergency Protocol 

(SWEP) 

In times of severe weather28, rough sleepers 
are particularly at risk of harm and in extreme 
cases, death. The SWEP is therefore intended 
to get rough sleepers off the streets during 
periods of extreme weather. Anyone who is 
sleeping rough is eligible for accommodation 
whilst the SWEP is in place; they do not need 
to fit the eligibility criteria for temporary 
accommodation.  

Evidence from the SWEP data from the last 

three years demonstrates that this is an 

important service and, though it is not a legal 

requirement, we see it as a moral duty to help 

rough sleepers in extreme weather. Over the 

last three years, this protocol was triggered 

seven times from 2017 to 2019 for a total of 

                                                           
28 The SWEP arrangements are activated when the night time 

temperature is predicted to be zero degrees Celsius for three 
consecutive nights. 

60 nights. A total of 7 rough sleepers were 

accommodated at a cost of £667.  

Street Begging 

Street begging is often associated with rough 

sleeping and we have seen an increase in the 

number of street beggars, particularly in 

Lichfield city centre. However, not all street 

beggars are rough sleepers. Intelligence from 

Staffordshire Police and other partners 

suggests that some individuals who visit the 

city are not homeless but ‘professional’ street 

beggars.   A project is therefore being 

developed to look at the available options to 

support those begging in the street, to work 

alongside the Housing First initiative and to 

reduce the visible presence of street begging 

in the city.   We are exploring a ‘diverted 

giving scheme’ that would seek to dissuade 

people from giving money directly to street 

beggars but instead to a scheme that would 

support people on the street to move away 

from begging and into a better alternative 

lifestyle, or would fund a winter night 

shelter.  Options around the implementation 

of this are currently being considered; any 

scheme needs to ensure that only those 

genuinely in need are supported.  

Members of the Armed Forces 

In 2018/19, 9 applicants who were owed a 

housing duty had a history of serving in the 

armed forces including one person who 

became homeless as a result of leaving the 

armed forces. Lichfield District Council 

supports the Staffordshire Armed Forces 

Community Covenant which recognises the 

sacrifices that members of the armed forces 

and their families make on behalf of their 

country and ensures that they are not 

disadvantaged in the provision of public 

services including housing and homelessness 

advice.  

 

Page 63



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1  

Page | 22  
 

In order to support our veterans, we ask all 

homeless applicants if they have a connection 

to the armed forces and identify any issues 

which could prevent them from accessing and 

maintaining accommodation. 

We also work in partnership with 

organisations that provide accommodation 

and support to ex forces personnel, such as 

Alabare Supported Housing (ex-service 

personnel) Royal British Legion, SSAFA, 

Veterans Gateway and Haig Housing. 

Our proposed revised allocations scheme 

gives additional preference to veterans when 

accessing social housing and they are also 

exempt from having to meet the local 

connection criteria. We have also given the 

highest priority (emergency band) to the 

spouse or partner of armed or reserve forces 

personnel who are required to leave their 

current armed forces accommodation 

following the death of a spouse or partner, 

and their death is as a result of their service.   

Homelessness and rough sleeping – a summary of our challenges  

 Households owed a housing duty increased by 81% between 2017/18 and 2018/19 due to 

our new statutory duties to help all eligible applicants (not just those who are statutory 

homeless) 

 The top three consistent reasons for homelessness applications is families no longer able or 

willing to accommodate, the ending of a private tenancy and relationship breakdowns  

 There is evidence that homelessness is affecting more younger and older households  

 In 2018/19, 24 domestic violence cases were recorded, double that in 2017/18   

 More households who are assessed as owed a duty have more complex and multiple 

support needs. In 2018/19, 66% of households owed a duty were assessed as having a 

support need 

 We continue to be a high user of temporary accommodation compared to the other 

Staffordshire local authorities (second only to Tamworth)  

 We have a growing number of rough sleepers with complex needs  

 We have no direct access hostels, for either men or women and no residential treatment 

centres for drug or alcohol addiction 

To address these challenges we have established the following priority- to work with partners to: 

 ‘To prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping’ 

This will be achieved through the following objectives:- 

 Improve the range of suitable housing options for those who are homeless or at risk of 

homelessness. 

 Identify and provide support to those who face barriers to accessing and maintaining 

suitable accommodation. 

 Tackle rough sleeping so that no one needs to sleep rough 

Our actions to deliver these are in our action plan in Annexe D 

 

 

 

Page 64



APPENDIX 1 

Page | 23  
 
 

List of Annexes 

Annexe A Evidence for our Housing Strategy 

Annexe B Homelessness Review 2019 

Annexe C           Summary of Research Project on the Housing Needs of Older People, People with 

Learning Disabilities and People with Physical Disabilities in Lichfield District 

Annexe D Action Plan 

Annexe E           Glossary of Homelessness Terms 

 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Annexe A: Housing Evidence  
 

The following data has been used to produce the housing section of the Housing, Homeless and 

Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019-2024 and identify our priorities and objectives.  More detailed data 

relating to homelessness and rough sleeping can be found in the Homelessness Review in Annexe B. 

Population and Age Profile of Lichfield District 
The population of Lichfield district is approximately 103,965 people and is placed fifth out of the 8 

local authorities in the county behind Stafford, Newcastle-under-Lyme and East and South 

Staffordshire. Cannock Chase, Staffordshire Moorlands and Tamworth both have a smaller 

population than Lichfield district.  

 

Chart 1: 

Population 

Source: MYE5: 

Population estimates: 

Population density for 

the local authorities in 

the UK, mid-2001 to 

mid-2018 

 

 

 

 

The age of the district is skewed towards the older age groups with higher numbers in the 45 years 

and over age groups than the West Midlands and England. We have particularly high numbers of 

residents in the 70-79 years age groups. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Chart 2:Age  

Source:Public Health England https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-

framework/data#page/12/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/101/are/E07000194 

Page 67

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/12/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/101/are/E07000194
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/12/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/101/are/E07000194


2 
 

Just under a quarter of residents are aged 65 or over which is similar to the South Staffordshire and 

Staffordshire Moorlands profile. 

Chart: 3 

Population 

aged 65 and 

over  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Staffordshire County Council Lichfield District Data Pack: The Strategy Team, Sept 2018 

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/District-Borough-Data-Packs/2018/Lichfield-Data-Pack-2018.pdf 

 

Household Projections 
The number of households is predicted to increase between 2018 and 2039 by 9%, which is an 

additional 4,000 additional households.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Source: ONS Table 406: Household projections by district, England, 1991- 2039 

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-household-projections 

 

Household Composition  
 

Between 2017 and 2027, the greatest rise in population will be in residents aged 65 and over. The 

most significant rise will be in the 85+ age group; the highest rise in the county. This is reflected in 

charts 5 and 6 which show that the average household size will decrease from 2.43 persons in 2018 

to 2.24 in 2039, which is most likely due to an increase in older people living on their own. Numbers 

containing people aged 25-74 years old will decrease whereas those aged 75 or over will rise from 

16% to 29%.  

 

 

 
 

 

18.8% 18.9%
23.5%

20.2%
23.9% 22.1% 24.5%

18.3%
21.3%

18.4% 18.0%

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%

Percentage Population aged 65 and over (2017) 

40

42

44

46

48

50

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 N

u
m

b
er

s 
1

0
0

0
's

Chart 4: Household Projections for Lichfield District 2018 
- 2039

Page 68

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/District-Borough-Data-Packs/2018/Lichfield-Data-Pack-2018.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-household-projections


3 
 

 

Charts 5 and 6 No households in 2014 and 2029 by age 

Source: Office of National Statistics https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/KS402EW/view/1946157175?cols=measures 

Life Expectancy 

Overall life expectancy is 81 years for men and 83 years for women which is 

slightly higher than the region and England for males and on a par for females. 

Healthy life expectancy is much lower than this and both men and women in the 

district will on average spend their last 16 years in poor health. 

Table 1 
Life expectancy 
 
 

Life expectancy 
at birth – males 

(years) 

Life expectancy 
at birth - 

females (years) 

Healthy life 
expectancy at 
birth - males 

(years) 

Healthy life 
expectancy at 
birth - females 

(years) 

 2014-2016 2014-2016 2009-2013 2009-2013 

Cannock Chase 78.6 82.6 61.1 62.1 

East Staffs 79.2 82.1 63.5 65.3 

Lichfield 80.7 83 65.4 66.6 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 78.9 82.3 62.2 63.5 

South Staffs 80.6 84.1 65.6 66.3 

Stafford 80.5 83.4 65.5 66.6 

Staffs Moorlands 79.9 82.8 64.1 65.3 

Tamworth 78.7 82.7 62.6 63 

Staffs 79.7 82.9 63.9 65 

West Midlands 78.8 82.7 62.2 63.2 

England 79.5 83.1 63.5 64.8 
 

Source: Staffordshire County Council Lichfield District Data Pack: The Strategy Team, Sept 2018 

Page 69

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/KS402EW/view/1946157175?cols=measures


4 
 

Deprivation1 
Lichfield district is a relatively prosperous area, having the second lowest percentage of people in 

the most deprived quintile2 in the county (behind South Staffordshire). However, this still equates to 

4000 of our residents. 

Table 2: Deprivation 

Area 
Percentage in most deprived IMD 

2015 quintile Number of People 

Cannock Chase 13.80% 13,600 

East Staffs 17.80% 20,800 

Lichfield 3.90% 4,000 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 11.20% 14,400 

South Staffs 1.40% 1,500 

Stafford 5.30% 7,100 

Staffs Moorlands 4.60% 4,500 

Tamworth 17.70% 13,600 

Staffs 9.20% 79,500 

West Midlands 29.50% 1,696,100 

England 20.20% 11,092,200 
Source: Staffordshire County Council Lichfield District Data Pack: The Strategy Team, Sept 2018 

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/District-Borough-Data-Packs/2018/Lichfield-Data-Pack-2018.pdf 

 

Learning Disabilities3 
In 2017/18 there were 300 people identified as having a learning disability, a prevalence of 0.3% of 

the population. 68% of people with a learning disability live in settled accommodation which is the 

joint lowest in the county and lower than the West Midlands and England. 

Table 3: Learning disabilities prevalence 2017/18 

  % No. of People 

% of adults with Learning 
Disabilities who live in settled 

accommodation 

Cannock Chase 0.6% 700 73% 

East Staffs 0.5% 700 68% 

Lichfield 0.3% 300 68% 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 0.4% 600 74% 

South Staffs 0.3% 400 84% 

Stafford 0.4% 500 76% 

Staffs Moorlands 0.5% 400 72% 

Tamworth 0.6% 600 81% 

Staffs 0.5% 4,000 73% 

West Midlands 0.5% 31,800 72% 

England 0.5% 284,400 77% 
Source: Staffordshire County Council Lichfield District Data Pack: The Strategy Team, Sept 2018 

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/KS402EW/view/1946157175?cols=measures 

                                                           
1 The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015 is the official measure of relative deprivation for small areas in England. There are 32,844 
small areas (called Lower-Layer Super Output Areas). The IMD ranks every small area in England from 1 (most deprived area) to 32,844 
(least deprived area). Deprivation is measured in 7 domains – income, employment, education, health, crime, barriers to housing & 
services and living environment. 
2 Most deprived 20% of Lower-Layer Super Output Areas. 
3 A learning disability is a reduced intellectual ability and difficulty with everyday activities – for example household tasks, socialising or 
managing money – which affects someone for their whole life. 

Page 70

https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/District-Borough-Data-Packs/2018/Lichfield-Data-Pack-2018.pdf
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/KS402EW/view/1946157175?cols=measures


5 
 

House Tenure 
Between 2001 and 2011 there was a dramatic shift in tenure with a significant rise in the number of 

properties owned outright and a drop in households with a mortgage or loan. This is most likely due 

to the large number of older people who have paid off their mortgage. The number of households in 

social rented properties has increased as has also those in shared ownership homes, though 

prevalence is still low. The most significant change is the rise in private rented homes which has 

increased by 132%.  

 

Charts 8 and 9 below show this as a percentage and indicate that, although the number of 

households in social rented homes has risen, the percentage of total households in this tenure has 

not changed. The nominal increase in the number of shared ownership properties is evident here, 

and in 2011 was still only 1% of housing in the district. 

 

 

Source: https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/KS402EW/view/1946157175?cols=measures 

12,811

16,730

192

5059

1,695 1,013

15,948
15,207

242

5,446
3,932

906

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

Owned outright Owned with a
mortgage or loan

Shared ownership
(part owned and

part rented)

Social rented Private rented Other

N
o

. o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

Chart 7: House Tenures 2001 and 2011 in Lichfield District

2001 2011

12,811, 
34%

16,730, 
45%

192, 0%

5059, 
13%

1,695, 5% 1,013, 3%

Chart 8: Housing Tenure 2001

Owned outright

Owned with a mortgage or loan

Shared ownership (part owned and part rented)

Social rented

Private rented

Other

15,948, 
38%

15,207, 
37%

242, 1%

5,446, 
13%

3,932, 9%
906, 2%

Chart 9:Housing Tenure 2011

Owned outright

Owned with a mortgage or loan

Shared ownership (part owned and part rented)

Social rented

Private rented

Other

Page 71

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/KS402EW/view/1946157175?cols=measures


6 
 

Housing Tenure by Area 2011 
Table 4 below indicates that Lichfield district has one of the highest percentages of owner occupied 

homes in the county. This is also significantly higher than the region and England though the 

proportion of houses that are privately rented is much lower. 

Table 4: Housing Tenure by Area 2011 

Table 4  
Area 

All 
households 

Owner 
occupied 

households 

Privately 
rented 

households 

Socially 
rented 

households 

Rent free 
households 

Cannock Chase 40,700 28,400 4,900 6,900 500     

70% 12% 17% 1% 

East 
Staffordshire 

47,300 33,100 7,200 6,400 600     

70% 15% 13% 1% 

Lichfield 41,200 31,400 3,900 5,400 400     

76% 10% 13% 1% 
Newcastle-
under-Lyme 

52,600 36,600 5,500 9,800 700     

70% 10% 19% 1% 

South 
Staffordshire 

44,500 33,900 3,800 6,200 600     

76% 8% 14% 1% 

Stafford 55,700 40,200 7,200 7,600 700     

72% 13% 14% 1% 

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

41,800 33,400 4,100 3,700 600 

    

80% 10% 9% 1% 

Tamworth 31,600 21,700 3,500 6,100 300     

69% 11% 19% 1% 

Staffordshire 355,300 258,700 40,100 52,200 4,300     

73% 11% 15% 1% 

West Midlands 2,294,900 1,504,300 321,700 435,200 33,700     

66% 14% 19% 1% 

England 22,063,400 14,148,800 3,715,900 3,903,600 295,100     

64% 17% 18% 1% 
Source: 2011 Census, Office for National Statistics, Crown Copyright  

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Care-for-all-ages/Information-for-providers/Market-Intelligence/Market-position-statement-

intelligence/Staffordshire-population-demographics/Population-demographics-and-adult-social-care-needs-all-adults.aspx   

Page 72

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Care-for-all-ages/Information-for-providers/Market-Intelligence/Market-position-statement-intelligence/Staffordshire-population-demographics/Population-demographics-and-adult-social-care-needs-all-adults.aspx
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Care-for-all-ages/Information-for-providers/Market-Intelligence/Market-position-statement-intelligence/Staffordshire-population-demographics/Population-demographics-and-adult-social-care-needs-all-adults.aspx


7 
 

Housing Affordability 
Though the average gross salary of residents is the highest in the county, homeownership is still out 

of reach for many with the housing affordability ratio at 7.4.  

 Table 5 Housing affordability 
ratio (ratio of median 
house price to median 
gross earnings) 

Average house price  Average gross 
salary  

  2017 Q3 2017  2017 

Cannock Chase 5.7 £158,000 £27,787 

East Staffs 6.4 £167,000 £26,058 

Lichfield 7.4 £225,000 £30,344 

Newcastle-under-Lyme 5.2 £130,500 £24,943 

South Staffs 7 £212,250 £30,329 

Stafford 6.7 £192,000 £28,664 

Staffs Moorlands 5.9 £159,000 £27,149 

Tamworth 6.8 £170,000 £25,098 

Staffs 6.3 £175,000 £27,789 

West Midlands 6.6 £177,000 £26,857 

England 7.9 £230,000 £29,085 

Source: Staffordshire County Council Lichfield District Data Pack: The Strategy Team, Sept 2018 

Table 6 below shows the change in average house prices since 2015, which on average are currently 

£70,000 more than in the West Midlands. 

Source: Authority Monitoring Reports  https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/downloads/file/1280/authority-monitoring-report-2019 

 

 

 

 

 

Average property prices     

Table 6 Aug-15 Feb-17 Feb-18 Jan-19 

Average Property Price – Lichfield district £268,247 £282,453 £308,610 £300,362 

Average Property Price-West Midlands £202,397 £214,877 £225,658 £231,121 

Difference £65,850 £67,576 £82,952 £69,241 

     
 
 

Page 73

https://www.lichfielddc.gov.uk/downloads/file/1280/authority-monitoring-report-2019


8 
 

Condition of Housing Stock 

Private Sector Stock 
The housing stock is generally in a good condition, though 15% of dwellings in the owner occupied 

and private rented sector were found to have category 1 hazards with 6% of these being due to 

excess cold and 9% due to fall hazards. More private rental properties than any other tenure were in 

disrepair. The condition of the social rented stock is also good and in better condition than the 

private sector, though, as expected is does have a higher percentage of low income households. The 

number of low income households in fuel poverty who are privately renting is high compared to 

those in the social sector. 

Table 7: Stock 
Condition   Private Sector Stock 

Social Stock     Owner-occupied Private Rented 

Indicator   No. % No.  % No.  % 

No. of dwellings   32662   5138   6188   

HHSRS  All hazards 4792 15% 763 15% 516 8% 

category 1  Excess cold 2025 6% 268 5% 177 3% 

hazards Fall hazards 2916 9% 485 9% 273 4% 

Disrepair   1021 3% 304 6% 198 3% 

Fuel poverty (10%)   3361 10% 684 13% 859 14% 

Fuel poverty (Low 
Income High Costs)   2920 

9% 
787 

15% 
696 

11% 

Low income 
households   1976 

6% 
1439 

28% 
4067 

66% 

Source: Integrated Dwelling Level Housing Stock Modelling and Database for Lichfield District Council, BRE July 2017 
 

Indicator 

Energy Efficiency 
In terms of energy efficiency, the average Simple SAP4 ratings for all private sector stock is 59, which 

is better than both England and the West Midlands. Overall owner-occupied homes are not as 

efficient as the private rented, having a SAP rating of 58 compared to 62 

Source: Integrated Dwelling Level Housing Stock Modelling and Database for Lichfield District Council, BRE July 2017 

 

                                                           
4 The Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) is the methodology used by the Government to assess and compare the energy and 
environmental performance of dwellings. Its purpose is to provide accurate and reliable assessments of dwelling energy performances 
that are needed to underpin energy and environmental policy initiatives. 

5
8

6
2

6
2

5
6

5
7

6
2

5
7

5
7

6
5

L I C H F I E L D  O W N E R - O C C U P I E D

L I C H F I E L D  P R I V A T E  R E N T E D

L I C H F I E L D  S O C I A L  R E N T E D

W E S T  M I D S  O W N E R - O C C U P I E D

W E S T  M I D S  P R I V A T E  R E N T E D

W E S T  M I D S  S O C I A L  R E N T E D

E N G L A N D  O W N E R - O C C U P I E D

E N G L A N D  P R I V A T E  R E N T E D

E N G L A N D  S O C I A L  R E N T E D

CHART 10: SIMPLE SAP SCORE 2012

Page 74



9 
 

Housing standards in the Private Sector 
Table 8 below shows that the majority of enforcement notices served from 2013/14 to 2018/19 

were due to excess cold, damp and electrical faults. 

Source: Lichfield District Council Private Sector Housing Team 2019 

*Note the total is the number of improvement notices served which will comprise one or more of the hazards listed in the 

table 

 

Housing need 

The Housing Register  

Chart 11 below shows that 46% of applicants on the housing register require either a studio flat or a 

one bedroom property and 34% need a two bedroom home. This demonstrates the need for 

smaller, affordable properties in the district. 

Chart 11 

 

Chart 11:  Bed size need  

Source: Lichfield District Council Housing Register February 2020 

525, 37%

127, 9%

480, 34%

225, 16%

50, 3.5%

6, 0.4%

2, 0.1%

Bed size need

0 Bed

1 Bed

2 Bed

3 Bed

4 Bed

5 Bed

6 Bed

  

* 
Total 

Damp & 
Mould 

Excess 
cold/ 
lack of 
heating Ventilation Insulation 

Electrical  
installation 

Fire 
risk Falls Disrepair Other 

13/14 8 0 7 1 2 4 2   1   

14/15 12 2 1 0 0 9 4 3 1   

15/16 12 3 5 1 3 4 3 2 1  1 

16/17 7 2 2 0 1 2 3 1   1 

17/18 6 2 4 1 3 3 2   3   

18/19 10 3 6 2 3 4 2 1 1   

Total 55 12 25 5 12 26 16 7 7 2 

Page 75



10 
 

 

Housing & Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA) 
 

The HEDNA completed in 2019 demonstrated a net need of 220 affordable homes per annum up to 

2036. 

Estimated Annual Level of Affordable Housing Need (2016-2036) (Social/Affordable Rented) 

Current need (annual figure) 30 

Newly forming households 346 

Existing households falling into need 139 

Total Gross Need 515 

Re-let Supply 295 

Net Need 220 

Table 9:  Estimated Annual Level of Affordable Housing Need (2016-2036) 

Source: Housing & Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA), Sept 2019. G.L. Hearn, London 

 

Affordable Housing completions 
Since 2013, 504 affordable homes have been built of all tenures. Nearly a third of homes built were 

shared ownership which is an important way of accessing affordable home ownership. 

 

 

 

Table  
Table 10:9Affordable home completions by year and tenure 
Source: Development Sites summary spreadsheet: LDC 

 

Stock composition  

Table 11 below also shows that there is a large number of owner-occupied homes with 4 
or more bedrooms and a low number of two bedroom properties. The high number of 2 
bed homes in the private rental sector suggests an undersupply available at an affordable 
price. These smaller properties will continue to be in high demand over the next few 
decades due to a gradual reduction in household sizes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Year 

Total 
Number of 

Units  

Affordable 
Rent  

Social 
Rent  

Shared 
Ownership  

Discount 
Market 

Sale 

2018/19 235 88 66 81  
2017/18 135 45 54 34 2 

2016/17 28 2 1 3 22 

2015/16 50 43 4 3  
2014/15 31 3 10 18  
2013/14 25 0 18 7   

Totals 504 181 153 146 24 

%  35.9% 30.4% 29.0% 4.8% 

Page 76



11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Housing & Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA), Sept 2019. G.L. Hearn, London 

 

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s) 

  
The table below shows the amount of DFG grant money spent on adaptations to homes since 2013.  

Due to the ageing population, it is expected that there will be a continued rise in demand for these 

grants over the next few decades.   

Table 12: DFG numbers and expenditure per annum 

Financial Year Expenditure 
 £ 

Number of 

grants 

awarded 

2013/14 584,000 89 

2014/15 372,000 37 

2015/16 384,000 55 

2016/17 788,000 90 

2017/18 1,017,000 101 

2018/19 583,000 50 

Total £3,728,000 422 

Source: Lichfield District Council 2020 

 

 
 

 

Table 11: Number of bedrooms by tenure 

  Lichfield 
West 
Midlands England 

Owner-occupied 

1 bed 2% 2% 4% 

2 bed 17% 20% 23% 

3 bed 48% 54% 48% 

4+ bed 32% 24% 25% 

Social rented 

1 bed 27% 29% 31% 

2 bed 37% 34% 34% 

3 bed 34% 33% 31% 

4+ bed 2% 4% 4% 

Private rented 

1 bed 13% 18% 23% 

2 bed 41% 37% 39% 

3 bed 35% 36% 28% 

4+ bed 10% 10% 10% 

Page 77



12 
 

Housing Register 
 

The table below shows the number of households on the Council’s Housing Register in the last 5 

years 

Table 13: No. of Households on the Housing 
Register on 1 April of each Year 

No. of Households 

2015 1146 

2016 1220 

2017 1243 

2018 1008 

2019 1370 
         Source: Lichfield District Council 

 

The table below shows the number of social housing properties that were advertised from 2015 to 

2018 and the average number of bids made for each property. 

Table 14: Average no. of bids of properties advertised from 2015 to 2018 

  
No advertised Average No of bids 

1 bed 

Studio 10 68 

Bungalow 94 45 

Flat 215 56 

House 4 60 

2 bed 

Bungalow 40 37 

Flat 294 25 

House 103 68 

3 bed 

Flat 6 58 

House 142 44 

4 bed House 4 21 

5 bed 

Bungalow 1 28 

House 2 19 

Total                                        915 43 

Source: Lichfield District Council 

 

Page 78



1 
 

Annexe B 

A Review of Homelessness in Lichfield District 

Contents 
List of Tables ........................................................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 5 

Pre-Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 .................................................................................................. 6 

Levels of Homelessness ...................................................................................................................... 6 

Relative Levels of Homelessness compared to other Staffordshire Local Authorities ....................... 7 

Who is Being Made Homeless in Lichfield? ........................................................................................ 8 

Household Type .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Age .................................................................................................................................................. 8 

Ethnicity .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

Reasons for Homelessness .................................................................................................................. 9 

Homeless Prevention ........................................................................................................................ 10 

Homelessness statistics since the Introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 ................. 11 

Levels of Homelessness 2018/19 ...................................................................................................... 11 

Reasons for Approaching the Council ............................................................................................... 12 

Duty to Refer ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

Relative Levels of Homelessness compared to other Staffordshire Local Authorities ..................... 14 

Main Duty Decisions ......................................................................................................................... 15 

Who is Being Made Homeless in Lichfield District? .......................................................................... 16 

Type of Household ........................................................................................................................ 16 

Age ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Ethnic Background ........................................................................................................................ 17 

Employment Status ....................................................................................................................... 18 

Reason for Loss of Last Settled Home in 2018-19 ............................................................................ 19 

Accommodation at time of application for those owed duty .......................................................... 20 

Support Needs for Households Owed a Duty ................................................................................... 20 

Homeless Preventions and Reliefs .................................................................................................... 22 

Type of Accommodation Secured ..................................................................................................... 22 

How Accommodation was secured .................................................................................................. 23 

Homeless Reliefs ............................................................................................................................... 24 

Use of Temporary Accommodation .................................................................................................. 24 

Number of Households in Temporary Accommodation ............................................................... 24 

Average length of stay in Temporary Accommodation. ............................................................... 25 

Cost of Bed and Breakfast Emergency Accommodation .............................................................. 26 

Page 79



2 
 

Homeless Prevention Schemes ......................................................................................................... 27 

The use of Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) to Prevent Homelessness ................................ 28 

The work of the Tenancy Sustainment Officer (TSO)........................................................................ 29 

Working with our Partner Agencies .................................................................................................. 30 

Citizens Advice South East Staffordshire (CASES) ......................................................................... 30 

Rough Sleeping...................................................................................................................................... 31 

Lichfield Emergency Night Shelter (LENS) ......................................................................................... 32 

Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) .................................................................................. 32 

 

List of Tables 
Title  
 

Page 
No. 

Graph 1:  Homeless Applications & Acceptances in Lichfield 2013-2018 
 

6 

Graph 2:  Comparative Homeless Acceptances no. per 1000 households of population Staffs LA’s 
 

7 

Graph 3:   Homeless Acceptances by Household Composition 2013 - 2018 
 

8 

Graph 4:   Household Acceptances by Age of Head of Household 2013 - 2018 
 

8 

Graph 5:   Reason for Loss of Last Settled Home 2014 - 2018 
 

9 

Graph 6:   Number of Homeless Preventions 2013 - 2018 
 

10 

Graph 7:   Initial Approaches & Assessments 2018/19 
 

11 

Chart 8:    Enquiries by Reason 2018/19 
 

13 

Table 9:    Referrals under duty to refer (from October 2018 – September 10th 2019) 
 

14 

Graph 10: Initial Assessments for Each Staffordshire Local Authority 2018/19 
 

14 

Graph 11: Outcome of Main Duty Decisions for Eligible Households in Staffs 2018/19 
 

15 

Graph 12: Type of Household owed a Prevention & Relief Duty 2018/19 
 

16 

Graph 13: Age of Main Applicants owed a Prevention or Relief Duty 2018/19 
 

17 

Chart 14:  Ethnicity of Applicants owed a Prevention or Relief Duty 2018/19 
 

17 

Graph 15: Employment Status of Main Applicants owed a Duty 2018/19 
 
Graph 16: Reason for Loss of Last Settled Home 2018/19 

18 
 
19 

  
Chart 17:   Accommodation at time of Application for those owed a Duty 2018/19 
 

20 

Table 18:   Support needs of households owed a prevention or relief duty 
 

21 

Chart 19:   Outcome of Successful Prevention Duty 2018/19 
 

22 

Chart 20:   Type of Accommodation secured at end of the Prevention Duty 2018/19 
 

23 

Page 80



3 
 

Graph 21:  Main Activity that Resulted in Accommodation Secured for Households 
 

23 

Chart 22:   Type of Accommodation secured at end of the Relief Duty 2018/19 
 

24 

Graph 23:  Average no. of Households in Temporary Accommodation in Staffs 2018/19 
 

25 

Graph 24:  Average length of Stay in Temporary Accommodation (weeks) 
 

25 

Graph 25: Cost of B & B use for Temporary Accommodation 2018/19 
 

26 

Graph 26: No. of Households given Assistance 2018/19 
 

28 

Graph 27: DHP Awards 2018/19 
 

29 

Graph 28: Reasons for Referral to TSO from May - Sept 2019 
 

29 

Table 29:  No. of Homeless Prevention cases by Citizens Advice 
 

30 

Graph 30: No. of Estimated Rough Sleepers in Lichfield District  
 

31 

Graph 31: No. of Rough Sleepers in Staffordshire recorded at the Rough Sleeper Count/Estimate 
2013 - 2018 

 

31 

Table 32:   Information on use of Lichfield Emergency Night Shelter Feb & March 2019 
 

32 

Table 33:   No. of Rough Sleepers assisted under the SWEP Protocol 2017-2019 
 
 
 

32 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



4 
 

A Review of Homelessness in Lichfield District 

Summary of evidence  

Since the introduction of the HRA:- 

 There were 518 approaches to us for 

homelessness issues in 2018/19, less than 

half the number than in 2017/18. This is 

because all approaches are now directed 

through the new Jigsaw housing portal. 

Customers can either self-refer through 

the portal or a Housing Options Officer 

will assist them.  

 Households owed a housing duty 

increased by 81% from 127 in 2017/18 to 

230 in 2018/19. However, the number of 

applicants accepted as owed the main 

housing duty reduced by 44% from 56 to 

24 in the same years. The rise in 

applications is predictable as we have new 

statutory duties to help all eligible 

applicants (not just those who are 

statutory homeless). The new duties to 

prevent and relieve homelessness before 

applicants are owed the main housing 

duty is also the most likely reason for the 

dramatic reduction in these figures, as 

many applicants will have had their 

homelessness issue resolved before they 

would be owed the main duty. 

 From October 2018 to September 2019, 

we received 44 referrals from public 

agencies under the new ‘Duty to Refer’ 

requirement.  

 The number of households owed the main 

housing duty decreased by 57% from 56 in 

2017/18 to 24 in 2018/19. This is 

expected due to the changes in legislation 

which gives councils additional 

responsibilities before the main duty is 

owed. 

 The number of households owed a 

housing duty is low compared to other 

Staffordshire local authorities. This shows 

that homeless numbers are still relatively 

low even with the new responsibilities of 

the HRA. 

 However, this is not the case with 

households who were owed the main 

duty we had the second largest number of 

households in 2018/19 in the county. 

 The new requirements brought about by 

the HRA has changed the most common 

type of household owed a housing duty. 

In 2018/19, single males were most likely 

to be owed a duty with single females the 

next most likely group. These groups 

made up 54% of the total households 

owed a duty. This amounted to 125 single 

people in 2018/19 compared to only 12 in 

2017/18. The third most common type of 

household was female single parent 

families. This is a reflection of the new 

requirement to assist all eligible 

households rather than just those with a 

priority need. It also demonstrates how 

disregarded these groups were under 

previous legislation. 

 There is evidence that homelessness is 

affecting more households at both young 

and old age ranges. 52 households aged 

between 18 and 24 were owed a duty in 

2018/19 compared to only 20 in 2017/18 

and 28 in 2016/17. 11 households aged 65 

or over were also accepted as homeless 

including 7 aged 75 or older. Between 

2014 and 2018 only 4 people in total aged 

65 or over were accepted as homeless. 

 The top three most common reasons for 

homelessness applications in 2018/19 

were families no longer able or willing to 

accommodate (21%), the ending of a 

private tenancy (21%) and relationship 

breakdowns (19.5%). These were the 

most common reasons identified in the 

2013–2018 Homelessness Strategy, 

although numbers are on the rise with 

double the number of relationship 

breakdowns and family evictions 

occurring in 2018/19 compared to 

2017/18 and nearly quadruple the 

number of private rented tenancy losses.  

Page 82



5 
 

 In 2018/19, the number of domestic 

violence cases recorded doubled from 12 

in 2017/18 to 24 in 2018/19. 

 22% of applicants owed a duty in 2018/19 

were in full-time work. 

 It is clear that many households who are 

assessed as owed a duty now have more 

complex and multiple support needs. 

Two-thirds (66%) of households owed a 

duty were assessed as having a support 

need, 46% of which needed support with 

their mental health and 22% were due to 

physical disability.  

 In 2018/19, only 25% of households were 

prevented from becoming homeless by 

being able to remain in their existing 

home. The remaining 75% were found 

alternative accommodation before they 

became homeless. Moving home causes 

more disruption and is more costly and 

time-consuming than being able to stay. It 

is therefore preferable for households to 
remain in their existing home if at all 

possible. 

 The use of temporary accommodation 

peaked in 2015/16 with an average stay of 

19 weeks. This dropped to 15 weeks in 

2018/19. However, the average length of 

stay in B&B accommodation has 

increased. 

 We have continued to be a high user of 

temporary accommodation compared to 

the other Staffordshire local authorities 

(second only to Tamworth). This was also 

identified in the 2013 Homelessness 

Strategy. 

 The majority of households (77) who were 

owed a duty had their homelessness 

resolved through the allocation of a 

registered provider property whereas only 

21 were offered a private rented tenancy. 

Rough sleeping   

 Over the last few years the council has 
been aware that we have a growing 
number of rough sleepers with complex 
needs (2 or more support needs).  

 A shortage of supported housing and 
support for substance misuse and mental 
health issues plus high housing costs and 
welfare reform are all factors that have 
contributed to the rise in rough sleeping.   

 Of the five rough sleepers recorded in 
November 2018, at least 2 of these can 
also be described as entrenched.   

 We have no direct access hostels, for 
either men or women, and no residential 
treatment centres for drug or alcohol 
addiction. This often leaves the only 
available option as accommodation 
outside of the district and away from any 
support networks an individual may have, 
which in turn reduces the likelihood of 
success and increases the incidence of 
repeat homeless presentations.

 

Introduction 
This purpose of this review is to obtain the most comprehensive and up to date information on 

homelessness in our district. This will give a clear understanding of the issues we face, enabling the 

development of robust policies and actions to tackle the causes of homelessness now and into the 

future. Since our last Homelessness Strategy was published in 2013, the Homelessness Reduction Act 

2017 (HRA) has come into force, which has fundamentally changed the way that local authorities 

deliver their statutory homelessness duties. It has also affected how homelessness data is measured 

which has meant that, in many cases, data from 2018/19 cannot be directly compared with that from 

previous years. The first section of this review therefore examines data collected prior to the HRA 

giving a picture of homelessness since the last strategy was produced and the remaining part looks at 

information obtained since the HRA was introduced in April 2018. It is important to note that, due to 

initial problems with transitioning the old data gathering method to the new one, statistics for 

2018/19 have been labelled by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

as ‘experimental’ and therefore should be treated with caution.  

Page 83



6 
 

Pre-Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 

Levels of Homelessness  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

Between 2013 and 2018, we received 6,308 housing advice enquiries1 (an average of 1262 a year) 

from households who were either homeless or were worried about losing their home. The number 

of enquiries has reduced slightly since the last strategy as the average from 2008 to 2013 was 1425, 

a reduction of 11%.  Of the 6,308 enquiries, 520 were found to be either homeless or at risk of 

homelessness (called homeless applications) as defined by housing law, of which 309 (59%) were 

accepted as homeless and owed the main housing duty2. 

Graph 1 above shows the breakdown of homeless applications and acceptances between 2013/14 to 

2017/18 and shows that: 

 Homelessness applications were on the increase, rising from 84 to 127 households (an increase of 

51%) between 2014/15 and 2017/18. This increase mirrors the national trend in rising 

homelessness. The reasons specific to Lichfield district are discussed later on page 5 under ‘Reasons 

for Homelessness’.  

 The number of acceptances, however, dropped from 69 to 56 households (a decrease of 19%) 

between 2015/16 to 2017/18 and the number of acceptances in relation to applications was also 

decreasing. This is likely to be due to the council becoming more successful at preventing people 

from becoming homeless before they reached the main duty stage which was encouraged by the 

government in the lead up to the introduction of the HRA. 

 

                                                           
1 These consist of all enquiries regarding homelessness and other housing issues via telephone calls, emails or 
visits to reception including multiple enquiries for individual cases. 
2 These are households that are eligible, unintentionally homeless and in priority need. 

98
84

97

114
127

62
54

69 67
56

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

N
o

. o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Year

Graph 1: Homeless Applications & Acceptances in 
Lichfield 2013-2018

Homelessness Applications

Homelessness Acceptances (Owed Main Duty)

Proportion of acceptances to applications

Page 84



7 
 

Relative Levels of Homelessness compared to other Staffordshire Local Authorities 
 

To understand the levels of homelessness in relation to the population size, MHCLG measures the rate 

of homelessness acceptances per 1000 households. The graph below gives our homelessness 

acceptances in comparison to the other Staffordshire local authorities and shows that:- 

 Our number of homelessness acceptances in relation to population size is low compared to 

England and the West Midlands and, with the exception of Tamworth Borough, all other 

Staffordshire local authorities had a lower acceptance rate than England. 

 When calculating the average score for the Staffordshire local authorities, we had the fourth 

highest rate of acceptances per 1000 households, which is the middle position out of the eight 

authorities. 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 5 10 15 20 25

Lichfield

Stafford

Staffs Moorlands

Newcastle-under-Lyme

South Staffs

East Staffs

Cannock Chase

Tamworth

WEST MIDS

ENG

per 1000 households

Lo
ca

l A
u

th
o

ri
ty

Graph 2: Comparative Homeless Acceptances - no. per 1000 
households of population - Staffs Local Authorities

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Average

Page 85



8 
 

Who is Being Made Homeless in Lichfield? 
 

Household Type 
Data from the MHCLG can tell us what type of household is being made homeless. For example, the 

graph below shows the composition of households accepted as homeless between 2013 and 2018. 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

Key findings are:- 

 34% of households accepted as homeless were female single parent families with the second 

most common type being single males, comprising 23% of the total. 

 20% of acceptances were classed as ‘other’ types of household which would include families 

with multiple generations or childless couples.  

Age  
 Graph 4 below shows that almost half (49%) of acceptances between 2013 and 2018 were aged 

between 25 and 44 years old. 

 37% of the total acceptances in those five years (172 households) were young people aged 16 to 

24. 

 In these five years, 6 people aged 60 or over were accepted as homeless. 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

7

1

24

14

6
10

7
3

16
12

6
10

7

1

16 17

6

22

0 0

24

13
10 1111

0

21

12

0

6

0
5

10
15
20
25
30

Couple with Dep
Children

Lone Parent (M) Lone Parent (F) One Person HH
(M)

One Person HH
(F)

Other

N
o

. o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Type of Household

Graph 3: Homeless Acceptances by Household Composition 
2013 - 2018

13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18

19

29

12

1 1 0

13

31

7

1 2
0

25

32

11

0 0 1

28
31

5

0 0 0

20

26

8

0 0 0
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

16-24 25-44 45-59 60-64 65-74 75+

N
o

. o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Age group

Graph 4: Household Acceptances by Age of Head of 
Household 2013 - 2018

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Page 86



9 
 

Ethnicity 
Lichfield district’s population is predominantly White British which is reflected in the homeless 

acceptance figures and shows no particular group was over-represented in the homelessness 

statistics. Between 2015- 2018, 95% of acceptances were White British. The remaining applicants 

described themselves as Black or Black British (3 applicants), Asian or Asian British (1) or mixed race 

(3) whereas 7 were recorded in the ‘other’ or ‘not recorded’ category. 

The government now requires local authorities to include additional categories of household type 

and age in order to give more detailed information. This will, in future, give a better understanding 

of the composition of households accepted as homeless and will therefore improve the targeting of 

resources for different cohorts. 

 

Reasons for Homelessness  
 

Source: Lichfield District Council  

2

2

0

11

2

2

8

5

2

0

10

21

2

1

0

0

5

3

2

2

14

8

3

14

1

3

0

3

22

1

1

4

1

5

1

2

0

19

3

0

10

3

3

1

8

27

3

0

4

1

7

1

3

0

13

6

0

15

6

1

0

10

23

1

0

3

2

12

0 20 40 60 80 100

Left hospital

Left other institution or LA care

Left prison/on remand

Loss of rented accomm due to ending of AST

Loss of rented accomm due to reasons other than termination of AST

Mortgage arrears

Non-violent breakdown of relationship with partner

Other

Other forms of harassment

Other forms of violence

Other relatives or friends no longer willing or able to accommodate

Parents no longer willing or able to accommodate

Rent arrears on Housing Association dwelling

Rent arrears on Local Authority dwellings

Rent arrears on private sector dwellings

Violent breakdown of relationship, involving associated persons

Violent breakdown of relationship, involving partner

No. of Households

Graph 5: Reason for Loss of Last Settled Home 2014 - 2018

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Page 87



10 
 

 Graph 5 shows that over the 5 year period the primary reason for being accepted as homeless 

was ‘Parents no longer willing or able to accommodate’ which accounted for over a quarter 

(27%) of all homeless acceptances. Over each of these five years, this has been the largest single 

reason for the loss of last settled home. 

 The second and third most common reasons for being accepted as homeless were:  

o Relationship breakdown (76 cases or 22%).  

o The loss of a private rented property due to termination of an assured shorthold tenancy 

(57 cases or 16%) 

 When combining all forms of violence (harassment, domestic violence and violence associated 

with other persons), as a reason for loss of last settled home, this accounted for 43 households 

or one in eight households accepted as homeless. 
 

Homeless Prevention 
 

Before the HRA was introduced, the duty for local authorities to prevent a household from becoming 

homeless was discretionary. It was, however, considered good practice and graph 1 on page 1 does 

indicate that our ability to prevent homelessness was improving between 2015 and 2018, shown by 

the decrease in homelessness acceptances and the reduction in the proportion of acceptances to 

applications. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness and LDC & Citizens Advice South East 

Staffordshire (CASES) 

The graph above shows the number of cases where positive action was taken by the council to 

prevent homelessness between 2013 and 2018. 

Key findings:- 

 From 2015, we can see that the number of preventions was rising, in particular with regard to 

households able to remain in their existing home. In 2016, we supported the local Citizens 

Advice called Citizens Advice South East Staffordshire (CASES). This service helped to prevent 

homelessness through debt advice, dealing with housing benefit problems and resolving rent or 

service charge arrears in the social or private rented sector. It is clear that this proved to be an 

49
41

25

92
103

160

112 107
90

119

209

153

132

182

222

0

50

100

150

200

250

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

N
o

. o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Graph 6: Number of Homeless Preventions 2013 - 2018

Able to remain in existing home Assisted to obtain alternative accomodation Total

Page 88



11 
 

invaluable service, as the number of preventions rose considerably in the two years that CASES 

data was recorded.  

 When comparing numbers with those following the introduction of the HRA (see page 17), this 

shows that the council was more successful at preventing homelessness prior to the new 

legislation. However, this is due to the simplicity in recording a ‘successful prevention’ before 

the HRA. Under the new Act, prevention of homelessness is now a statutory duty which requires 

certain actions to be undertaken before it can be officially recorded as a successful prevention. 

Eventually, this will enable the government to identify the most successful prevention methods 

but, in the short term, it will mean that prevention figures will be lower than before the new 

legislation was introduced. 

 

Homelessness statistics since the Introduction of the Homelessness 

Reduction Act 2017 
 

Levels of Homelessness 2018/19 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

Homelessness applications are now called assessments in the MHCLG data and are the number of 

households that approach the council and are then assessed as being owed a prevention or relief duty, 

or have no duty owed to them (i.e.  they are not homeless or threatened with homelessness within 

56 days). Once the relief duty expires if the household has still not secured permanent 

accommodation, then they will be assessed as being owed the main duty3. 

The graph above shows that:- 

 Last year, we received 518 homelessness enquiries, a significant drop from previous years which 

showed an average of 1262 from 2013 to 2018. However, this is probably due to the change in the 

way that we record enquiries in the data we provide to MHCLG, as we now record how many new 

enquiries are made by household, but previously, there could have been multiple enquiries 

recorded per household. This new method, coupled with the fact that accessing homelessness 

                                                           
3 This definition has not changed with the introduction of the HRA and still refers to households who are 
eligible, unintentionally homeless and in priority need  

518

237 230

122 108

7 25

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

N
o

. o
f 

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Graph 7: Initial Approaches & Assessments 2018/19

Total no. of enquiries Total households assessed

Total households assessed as owed a duty Prevention duty owed

Relief duty owed No duty owed

Owed the main duty

Page 89



12 
 

information online has been made much easier means that fewer enquiries will be made directly 

to the council.  

 In 2018/19 230 households were assessed as being owed a duty. This could be seen as an increase 

of 81% from the previous year, although as explained above they are not comparable numbers. 

The increase is therefore, most likely due to the following reasons: 

 A household can now be regarded as at risk of homelessness 56 days before losing their 

home, rather than 28 days under the previous legislation, meaning that more people will 

now meet the homelessness criteria.  

 Local authorities are now required to prevent or relieve homelessness for anyone who is 

eligible4 not just those in priority need. 

 More people are coming forward for assistance as they are made aware of the changes in 

legislation. Under the previous law, where statutory duties were fewer, households 

(particularly single person) often chose not to make a formal homeless application as no 

advantage could be gained.  

 Graph 1 on page 1 shows that homeless acceptances were reducing prior to the introduction of 

the HRA, which, in part was due to our proactive approach to preventing homelessness. These 

cases have dropped even further, with the number of households owed the main housing duty 

decreasing by 57% from 56 in 2017/18 to 24 in 2018/19. Again, this is expected due to the changes 

in legislation as we now have a duty to prevent (for 56 days) or relieve (for 56 days) an applicant 

from homelessness, and so it is more likely that they would have had their housing issue resolved 

in the 112 days before they would be owed the main duty.  
 

Reasons for Approaching the Council 
 

Chart 8 below gives a breakdown of why the 518 households approached the council for advice. It 

shows that the top three most common reasons were:- 

 Relationship breakdown (30%)5 

 Family not being able to accommodate (22%) 

 The ending of a private rented tenancy (17%) 

                                                           
4 Eligibility for assistance is dependent upon the applicant’s immigration status, or her/his right of residence in 
the UK.  
5 Total of 157 households, of which 64 of these (40.7%) were due to domestic violence 

Page 90



13 
 

 
Source: Lichfield District Council 

 

 These are also the most common reasons why households were ultimately accepted as homeless 

both in the years 2014 to 2018 and 2018/19 which is discussed further on page 14 under  ‘Reason 

for Loss of Last Settled Home’. 
 

Duty to Refer 
 

From October 2018, as part of the HRA, certain public bodies have a Duty to Refer, which places an 

obligation on specified public authorities to notify the relevant local authority of households they 

consider may be at risk of homelessness within 56 days. This means a person’s housing situation must 

be considered whenever they come into contact with wider public services. The aim of the change is 

to intervene at an earlier stage when a person is at risk of becoming homeless and give meaningful 

assistance to someone who may not yet have made contact with their local authority. 

 Table 9 below shows that, already, this is proving to be an important service as we have received 

44 referrals since October 2018 with the most number of referrals from Job Centre Plus. 

 9 referrals have come from agencies which are not required by law to notify us but it is considered 

good practice, such as registered providers (housing associations). 

 

Affordability, 11, 2%

Care Leaver, 7, 1%

End of private rented 
tenancy – assured 

shorthold tenancy, 86, 
17%

End of social rented 
tenancy, 19, 4%

Eviction from 
supported housing, 

13, 2%Family no longer 
willing or able to 

accommodate, 113, 
22%

Friends no longer 
willing or able to 

accommodate, 15, 3%

Non-racially 
motivated / other 

motivated violence or 
harassment, 10, 2%

Relationship with 
partner ended (64 of 
these (40.7%) were 

due to domestic 
violence), 157, 30%

Rough Sleeping, 6, 1%

Sofa Surfing, 10, 2%

Other (inc. leaving prison, 
mortgage repossession, 

property disrepair, for e.g.), 71, 
14%

Chart 8: Enquiries by Reason 2018/19

Page 91



14 
 

       Source: Lichfield District Council 

 

Relative Levels of Homelessness compared to other Staffordshire Local Authorities 
 

 
Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 Graph 10 above shows that we still have relatively few numbers of households who are 

homeless or at risk of homelessness compared to the other Staffordshire local authorities. Graph 

2 compared the numbers under previous housing legislation showing that we had the fourth 

lowest number of acceptances. With the change in homeless definitions, we now have the third 

lowest number of total assessments and households owed the prevention duty, with only 

Cannock Chase and South Staffordshire having fewer.  

 The number of households owed the relief duty is slightly higher as we had the fourth lowest 

numbers in 2018/19.  

2
3

7

4
9

1

3
0

0

3
9

6

1
2

8

5
3

1

1
8

0

3
1

4

2
3

0

4
6

2

2
9

0

3
9

1

1
2

2

2
8

0

1
8

0

3
0

8

1
2

2

2
0

8

1
8

6 2
2

6

9
1

1
9

3

1
0

0 1
4

2

1
0

8

2
5

4

1
0

4

1
6

5

3
1

8
7

8
0

1
6

6

7

2
9

1
0

5 6

2
5

1

0 6
L I C H F I E L D S T A F F O R D S T A F F S  

M O O R L A N D S
N E W C A S T L E -

U - L Y M E
S O U T H  
S T A F F S

E A S T  S T A F F S C A N N O C K  
C H A S E

T A M W O R T H

GRAPH 10: INITIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR EACH 
STAFFORDSHIRE LOCAL AUTHORITY 2018/19

Total households assessed Total households assessed as owed a duty

Prevention duty owed Relief duty owed

Table 9: Referrals under duty to refer (from October 2018 – September 10th 2019) 

Organisation No. of referrals 

Job Centre Plus 19 

Probation 7 

Social services  4 

Hospital 1 

Mental health 4 

Wider agencies (non-statutory) e.g. Registered Providers 9 

Total 44 

Page 92



15 
 

Main Duty Decisions 
 

The full housing or main duty applies where the duty to prevent or relieve homelessness has not been 

successful. Only those who are eligible for assistance, unintentionally homeless, and have a priority 

need will qualify. 

 Despite Graph 10 showing that we had low numbers of assessments, Graph 11 below shows that 

this was very different with regard to main duty decisions made in 2018/19. Here, we had the 

second largest number in the county behind Tamworth Borough Council and the next placed local 

authorities (East Staffordshire and Newcastle-under-Lyme) had less than half the number of 

decisions compared to Lichfield. There are a number of explanations regarding this inconsistency, 

namely:- 

 We have a shortage of affordable private rental properties available to low-income 

families resulting in fewer options when it comes to finding alternative accommodation, 

which means that more will consequently be owed the main housing duty as they have 

not been rehoused once the relief stage had ended.  
 Some of the other local authorities in Staffordshire have more supported 

accommodation than we do which are vital in helping vulnerable households to secure 

housing. 
        Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

41

25

12

12

7

5

4

0

11

5

3

1

2

1

1

1

13

7

1

1

3

5

12

8

4

5

0

1

7

1

0

0

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Tamworth

Lichfield

East Staffordshire

Newcastle-u-Lyme

Cannock Chase*

Staffordshire Moorlands

Stafford

South Staffordshire*

No. of Households

Graph 11: Outcome of Main Duty Decisions for Eligible 
Households in Staffs 2018/19

Homeless + priority need + unintentionally homeless (acceptance)

Homeless + priority need + intentionally homeless

Homeless + no priority need

Not homeless

Page 93



16 
 

 

Who is Being Made Homeless in Lichfield District? 
 

Type of Household 
 

The information collated under the new legislation is more detailed than before, particularly with 

regard to the type of household which will give a better understanding of who is most at risk of 

homelessness. The graph below shows that:- 

 In 2018/19, single males were most likely to be owed a duty with twice the number being owed 

the relief duty rather than prevention. This suggests that single men are more likely to only seek 

help when they are at crisis point and actually homeless. This may be for the following reasons:- 

 In the past, this group were not entitled to much assistance with their homelessness and 

so single men may not have bothered seeking help from the council.  

 For some time, we have had little access to supported accommodation and floating 

services for complex needs such as drug and alcohol dependency which is more prevalent 

in men than women.  

 The next most likely group was female single parents though, in these cases, there were more 

owed the prevention duty rather than relief.  

 The third most likely group to seek help with homelessness was single females, making up 20% of 

the total owed a duty. 

 In 2018/19 there were a total of 29 households with dependent children who were owed the relief 

duty. In other words, there were 29 families who were at the most extreme end of homelessness 

and at crisis point.  

 These figures contradict the trends we were seeing prior to the introduction of the HRA when it 

was most common for families with females as the head of the household to be homeless. The 

new trends of single males and females now being more likely to be owed a duty shows that these 

groups were largely overlooked before the HRA. It also strongly suggests a lack of housing related 

support in the district which is vital in helping to prevent homelessness. 

 
Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

3

33

0

26
29

2

20

6
1 2 00

23

0

52

18

0
5

9

1 0 0
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Single
parent

with dep
children  -

Male

Single
parent

with dep
children  -

Female

Single
parent

with dep
children  -

Other /
gender

not
known

Single
adult  -
Male

Single
adult  -
Female

Single
adult  -
Other /
gender

not
known

Couple
with dep
children

Couple /
two

adults
without

dep
children

Three or
more
adults

with dep
children

Three or
more
adults

without
dep

children

Not
known

A
xi

s 
Ti

tl
e

Graph 12: Type of Household owed a Prevention & Relief Duty 
2018/19

Prev Relief

Page 94



17 
 

Age 
 

 The graph below shows that there were 52 households aged between 18 and 24 who were owed 

a duty. This is a very young age to be facing homelessness and suggests that, in many cases, these 

are individuals who have just left the parental home and are struggling with finding suitable and 

affordable accommodation. This may be a reflection on the lack of housing options for this group 

as a single person up to the age of 34 is usually only entitled to housing costs based on the single 

room rate of Local Housing Allowance, meaning they are further disadvantaged by the lack of 

affordable shared housing in the district. 

 
          Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

 11 households aged 65 or over were also accepted as homeless including 7 aged 75 or older. This 

may suggest a rise in the number of older people facing homelessness, which is something that is 

also emerging on a national level. 

 

Ethnic Background 

 
The chart below shows that the ethnicity of those households owed a duty in 2018/19 has not altered 

significantly since the introduction of the HRA and still reflects the composition of the district 

population as a whole. 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

2

50

89

41
32

5 4 7

0

20

40

60

80

100

16-17 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75+

N
o

. o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Age Group

Graph 13: Age of Main Applicants owed a Prevention or 
Relief Duty 2018/19

White, 221, 
96%

Asian / Asian 
British, 5, 2%

Mixed / 
Multiple ethnic 
groups, 3, 1% Other ethnic 

groups, 1, 1%

Chart 14: Ethnicity of Applicants owed a 
Prevention or Relief Duty 2018/19

Page 95



18 
 

Employment Status 
 

The graph below shows the employment status of the main applicants owed a duty in 2018/19. 

   Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

Key findings: 

 The majority of homeless applicants were those who were not working due to a long-term 

illness or disability. 

 22% of applicants owed a duty were in full-time work, which is again an indication that there 

is a lack of affordable housing in the district if households cannot find a suitable property on 

a full-time salary. 

 The number of applicants not seeking work is most likely a reflection on the number of single 

parent households that present to the council 

 The number of applicants in part-time work and registered unemployed/seeking work shows 

that there is a need for support services that can advise on seeking appropriate and better 

paid employment. It also suggests a need for suitable advice on benefit entitlement, which 

may also help those who are retired or studying and facing homelessness. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59

50

34
29 28

11 6 6 4 3

Not working
due to long-
term illness
/disability

Full-time
 work

Not seeking
work / at

home

Part-time
 work

Registered
unemployed

Retired Not
registered

unemployed
but seeking

work

Student /
training

Other Not known

N
o

. 
o

f 
H

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s

Graph 15 : Employment Status of Main Applicants 
owed a Duty 2018/19

Page 96



19 
 

Reason for Loss of Last Settled Home in 2018-19  
 

 

   Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

The graph above gives the most common reasons for households to lose their home in 2018/19 and 

shows that:- 

 The top three most common reasons for homelessness applications in 2018/19 were:- 

 Families no longer able or willing to accommodate (21%) (joint first),  

 The ending of a private tenancy (21%) (joint first) 

 Relationship breakdown (19.5%)6 

 These were also the top three reasons, although in a slightly different order, for homelessness 

in 2014-2018 (see Graph 5) though numbers have increased considerably. For example, Graph 

5 shows that in 2017/18, 21 households were accepted as homeless due to parental eviction 

compared to 49 in 2018/19. It is not clear, however, if these cases are parents evicting their 

children as the category is now ‘family eviction’. There were 13 households made homeless 

due to the loss of a private tenancy and 27 were due to a relationship breakdown in 2017/18 

whereas graph 5 shows these numbers have noticeably increased to 49 and 45 respectively. 

 In 2018/19, the number of domestic violence cases doubled from 12 in 2017/18 to 24 in 

2018/19. Homelessness due to domestic violence was, in fact, on a steady increase from 2014 

to 2018. This may have been due to the closure of refuges which were shut due to funding 

                                                           
6 24 of relationship breakdowns were due to domestic abuse 

1

1

1

1

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

4

5

5

6

6

8

9

10

15

45

49

49

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Affordability

Loss of employment

Loss of tied accommodation

Rent arrears - Private sector

Evicted (not s21or s8 notice)

Mortgage repossession

Rough sleeping

Fire or flood / other emergency

Other - returning from abroad

Hospital discharge - home not suitable to return to

Discharge From Psychiatric Unit

Property disrepair

End of private rented tenancy - not assured shorthold

Other

Left institution with no accommodation available

Care Leaver

Other violence or harrassment

Friends no longer willing or able to accommodate

Eviction from supported housing

End of social rented tenancy

Realtionship breakdown

End of private rented tenancy - assured shorthold

Family no longer willing or able to accommodate

No. of Households

R
ea

so
n

Graph 16: Reason for Loss of Last Settled Home 2018/19

Page 97



20 
 

cuts around this time. The rise to 24 domestic abuse cases in 2018/19 may also be because, 

under the HRA, these households are now owed a housing duty. Before the HRA, these cases 

would not always have made a formal homeless application and would have been rehoused 

directly from the refuge due to having a priority status on our housing register. Domestic 

abuse cases may therefore have been higher before the HRA, but previously they would not 

have been included in our homeless data. 

 

Accommodation at time of application for those owed duty 
 
The chart below shows that the majority (33%) of households owed a duty were living with family at 
the time, followed by 29% of households who were in private rented accommodation. The third group 
was households living in the social sector. There is a worrying trend of households being made 
homeless by both private and social landlords which we have noticed for some time and in many cases, 
the eviction is due to rent arrears. As Lichfield district has a very buoyant private rental market it has 
disadvantaged low–income households. Some landlords are therefore quick to serve a section 21 
notice on a tenant if they are having difficulty paying their rent, rather than allow time for them to 
pay off their debts. In addition, registered providers have become much more commercial and risk 
averse in recent years and so we are seeing more social sector tenants losing their tenancy through 
rent arrears. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

Support Needs for Households Owed a Duty 
 

The recording of support needs is a new requirement under the HRA, which will give us a greater 

understanding of issues that could have a contributing factor to a person’s homelessness.  

Private rented 
sector, 66, 29%

Living with family, 
75, 33%

No fixed abode, 17, 
7%

Social rented 
sector, 26, 11%

Living with friends, 
16, 7%

Homeless on 
departure from 

institution, 7, 3%

Rough
sleeping, 3, 1%

Owner-occupier / 
shared ownership, 

5, 2%

Refuge, 2, 1%
Other / not 

known*, 13, 6%

Chart 17: Accommodation at time of Application for 
those owed a Duty 2018/19

Page 98



21 
 

Of the 230 households that were owed a duty, 151 (66%) were identified as having support needs. 

The table below shows a list of support needs that were recorded on the personal housing plans of 

those who were owed a duty in 2018/19. Households can have multiple support needs, so the total 

number of support needs is more than the actual number of households. Our records show that 24% 

of those with a support need were found to have two or more support needs and 19% had three or 

more support needs. Information shown from the table below includes:- 

 The most common support need was help with mental health issues, accounting for 46% of 

households with support needs who were owed a duty. 22% of cases had a physical health issue 

or disability followed by 18.5% who were at risk of or experienced domestic abuse. 

 2 of those who were owed a duty had served in the armed forces. It is now a requirement for all 

local authorities to record this number due to the rise in homeless applicants who are veterans. 

 This is a reflection on the growing number of households that approach the council with multiple 

and complex support needs. It goes some way in explaining how these households became 

homeless in the first place but also demonstrates the importance of effective referral processes 

and protocols with our stakeholders, to ensure that vulnerable households are given the support 

they need to find and keep suitable accommodation.  

 

Table 18: Support needs of households owed a prevention or relief duty 
No. of times 
reported 

History of mental health problems 69 

Physical ill health and disability 33 

At risk of / has experienced domestic abuse 28 

Access to education, employment or training 27 

Drug dependency needs 19 

Young person aged 18-25 years requiring support to manage independently 15 

Alcohol dependency needs 12 

Offending history 9 

History of repeat homelessness 9 

History of rough sleeping 7 

Learning disability 6 

At risk of / has experienced abuse (non-domestic abuse) 6 

Old age 6 

Care leaver aged 18-20 years 6 

Care leaver aged 21+ years 5 

Young person aged 16-17 years 5 

Young parent requiring support to manage independently 4 

At risk of / has experienced sexual abuse / exploitation 2 

Served in HM Forces 2 

Total (for 151 individual households) 270 

 Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



22 
 

Homeless Preventions and Reliefs 
 

Of the 122 households owed the prevention duty (see Graph 10), 109 had their prevention duty 

discharged7 and, of the 108 households owed the relief duty, 106 had this duty discharged.  

These new prevention figures cannot be directly compared with those in Graph 6 due to the change 

in definition under the HRA, which, as highlighted earlier, now places more obligations on local 

authorities before they can record a successful prevention. In addition, the relief duty which helps to 

secure suitable accommodation for applicants who are homeless and eligible for assistance was not 

included in previous legislation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 The chart above shows that three quarters of prevention cases avoided homelessness by moving 

to alternative accommodation. This is not ideal and it is usually preferable for households to 

remain in their existing accommodation, as it is less disruptive, costly and time-consuming than 

having to relocate. In some circumstances, however, accommodation will be unsustainable or 

inappropriate (e.g. if the applicant is fleeing domestic abuse). 

 

Type of Accommodation Secured  

 
 Chart 20 below shows that, the majority (62%) of households owed a prevention duty were found 

alternative accommodation in the social rented sector whereas only 14 households were 

rehoused in the private sector. This clearly shows the difficulty that the council has in finding 

suitable affordable accommodation in the private rented sector. In most cases, social rented 

accommodation is the preferred option for households though we are always in need of private 

rented properties if suitable social housing is not immediately available or if households need a 

short term tenancy.  

                                                           
7 This means the duty has ended in some way as defined by the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 

Moved to 
alternative 

accommodation, 
40, 75%

Stayed in existing 
accommodation, 

13, 25%

Chart 19: Outcome of Successful Prevention Duty 
2018/19

Moved to alternative accommodation Stayed in existing accommodation

Page 100



23 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

How Accommodation was secured 
 

^ Other includes debt advice, resolved benefit problems, sanctuary or other security measures to home, not known, housing related support 

to sustain accommodation 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

 The graph above shows that, the majority of households (55%) were able to secure 

accommodation through positive action by our Housing Options team. We also negotiated for 5 

households to remain in their home and for 3 to stay with family or friends. This demonstrates 

the importance of thorough and more complex working with customers under the HRA which 

will help to keep evictions down.  

Social 
rented 

sector, 33, 
62%

Private 
rented 

sector, 14, 
27%

Staying with 
family, 6, 11%

Chart 20: Type of Accommodation secured at end 
of the Prevention Duty 2018/19

Social rented sector Private rented sector Staying with family

0

1

1

2

2

3

4

5

6

29

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Discretionary Housing Payment to reduce shortfall

Other financial payments (e.g. to reduce arrears)

No activity – advice and information provided

Helped to secure accomm found by applicant, with financial payment

Supported housing provided

Negotiation / mediation work to secure return to family or friend

Other^

Negotiation/mediation/advocacy work to prevent eviction

Helped to secure accomm found by applicant, without financial…

Accommodation secured by local authority

No. of Households

Graph 21: Main Activity that Resulted in Accommodation Secured for 
Households

Page 101



24 
 

 It is interesting that no DHP's were used in 2018/19. We will investigate the use of these 

payments in more prevention cases in the future as they are an invaluable way of reducing 

homelessness, particularly when a short-term solution, such as paying rent arrears or securing a 

rental bond, is required. 

 

Homeless Reliefs 
 

 Chart 22 below shows that the top three ways that households were relieved of their 

homelessness were:-  

 The provision of a tenancy in the social rented sector  

 A private rented property 

 Staying with family  

There is, however, a significant difference between the number of households that secured 

accommodation in the social sector (44) and those that took on a private tenancy (7). We will 

endeavour to address this imbalance through seeking ways to encourage our private sector 

landlords to provide affordable accommodation to low income households. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                  

 

 

               Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

Use of Temporary Accommodation 
 

Number of Households in Temporary Accommodation  
Local authorities have a statutory duty to secure accommodation for unintentionally homeless 

households that are in a priority need group8. Once this has been established, temporary 

accommodation must be provided whilst the local authority is investigating their homelessness. The 

cost of accommodation is paid for by the council, for which we can be reimbursed from housing 

benefit.  

 

                                                           
8 Includes pregnant women, those who have dependent children living with them, 16- and 17-year-olds, care leavers aged 18 to 

20 years old and anyone considered vulnerable due to old age, mental illness or disability, or physical disability. 

44, 71%

7, 11%

6, 
10%

3, 5% 2, 3%

Chart 22: Type of Accommodation secured 
at end of the Relief Duty 2018/19

Social rented sector Private rented sector Staying with family

Staying with friends Other

Page 102



25 
 

Government statistics show the number of households that are in temporary accommodation at the 

end of each quarter in the year. This means that some households may be in this accommodation for 

more than one quarter and so will be counted twice. In order to give an indication of our use of 

temporary accommodation compared to the other Staffordshire authorities, the table below shows 

the average number of households that were in temporary accommodation at the end of quarter. 

 

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 The graph above shows that, despite having lower numbers of homeless acceptances in relation 

to the other Staffordshire authorities, we are a high user of temporary accommodation. This is 

due to the difficulty we have in securing accommodation for our most vulnerable and/or low 

income families which is, most likely for the following reasons:- 

 Private landlords are reluctant to offer accommodation to tenants with support needs, 

such as mental health issues or drug or alcohol dependency that may cause issues with 

their tenancy.  

 In addition, registered providers are refusing to take on tenants if they are in rent arrears 

or cannot demonstrate their ability to sustain a tenancy. This results in households staying 

in temporary accommodation for longer than is necessary. 

 

Average length of stay in Temporary Accommodation.  
 

 Source: Lichfield District Council  

10
18 19 18 18 15

0.72

2.26 1.05 1.29 1.6
2.21

0

5

10

15

20

25

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

N
o

. o
f 

w
ee

ks

Year

Graph 24: Average length of Stay in Temporary 
Accommodation (weeks)

Bromford temporary accommodation Bed & Breakfast

17 16

9 8

4
2 1

0

5

10

15

20

A
ve

ra
ge

 n
o

. o
f 

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Graph 23: Average no. of Households in 
Temporary Accommodation in Staffs 2018/19

Page 103



26 
 

 Table 24 above shows that the length of time that households stayed in temporary 

accommodation until they found a suitable home almost doubled from 10 weeks in 2013/14 to a 

peak of 19 weeks in 2015/16.  

 The length of stay decreased from 2017/18 to 2018/19 by a drop of 3 weeks (18 weeks to 15 

weeks).  

 However, the length of stay in Bed and Breakfast accommodation in 2018/19 was three times 

longer than in 2013/14.  
 

Cost of Bed and Breakfast Emergency Accommodation 

                   Source: Lichfield District Council  

 The graph above shows that in 2018/19, the council spent nearly three times as much on B&B 

accommodation than in 2013/14.  

 It is likely that the increase in the use of temporary accommodation and the length of stay in Bed 

& Breakfast establishments is due to the new legislation as 

o households spend more time in temporary accommodation whilst their homelessness 

situation is thoroughly investigated  

o the new statutory duties to prevent or relieve homelessness have added to the length of 

time an application is open  

 The council is also seeing more households becoming homeless who have multiple support 

needs and, as registered providers are now insisting that support for these needs is put in place 

before they are offered accommodation, it has resulted in a longer stay in emergency provision. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Total expenditure £5,174 £11,164 £5,309 £16,290 £10,427 £28,868

Total Housing Benefit Claimed £3,536 £10,942 £5,106 £15,151 £9,033 £24,135

Actual Spend £1,638 £222 £203 £1,139 £1,394 £4,733

£0

£5,000

£10,000

£15,000

£20,000

£25,000

£30,000

£35,000

Graph 25: Cost of B & B use for Temporary 
Accommodation 2018/19

Total expenditure Total Housing Benefit Claimed Actual Spend

Page 104



27 
 

 

Homeless Prevention Schemes 
 

The council has a number of schemes that it can access in order to help prevent homelessness. 

These are summarised below: 

 

 
Scheme 

 
Description of scheme 

Homelessness 
prevention fund 

A financial assistance scheme (in the form of loans or grants) available to applicants 
to be used where homelessness can be prevented or relieved and/or the use of 
temporary accommodation avoided or brought to an end. Can be used for rent in 
advance, deposits for private rental and Housing Association tenancies. The loans are 
provided by Fusion Credit Union and underwritten by the council. 

Sanctuary (Target 
hardening) scheme 

The prevention of homelessness by ensuring that survivors of domestic abuse and 
other violent crimes are able to remain in their homes and feel safer and more secure 
in doing so by the installation of security measures to make a home more resistant to 
attack or damage.   

Rent guarantee scheme 

To assist homeless households access private rented sector accommodation. Under 
this scheme, the council will provide a guarantee against the value of the rent deposit 
or rent in advance, rather than it being actually paid to the landlord. These are not 
popular with landlords so few have been used over the last 6 years. 

Repossession 
prevention fund 

Specific loans available for any households, which risk becoming homeless through 
repossession or eviction. It can also be used for individuals at risk of rough sleeping. 
Merged with the homelessness prevention fund in 2016. 

Discretionary Housing 
Payments(DHP) 

A DHP is a payment made in addition to housing benefit or universal credit where the 
applicant needs financial assistance with housing costs. 

Source: Lichfield District Council  

 

 

Page 105



28 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Lichfield District Council  

 Graph 26 above shows that the Homeless Prevention fund has, by far, assisted the most 

households. This is used mainly for helping households with rent deposits in order to secure a 

tenancy in the private sector and is therefore a reflection on the increase in the number of 

households that now rely on this tenure for housing. The number of households being offered 

this assistance has, however, dropped considerably, particularly when it merged with the 

repossession fund in 2016/17. Only a third of households were offered this fund in 2018/19 

compared to 2013/14. This is partly due to our increased use of DHP to cover such costs as rent 

arrears, rent in advance and rent deposits (see page 25). 

 The number of households that were assisted through the target hardening (sanctuary) scheme 

is likely to be a reflection on the rising numbers of domestic violence incidents in the district 

which is also displayed in the figures of households who are being made homeless. 
 

The use of Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) to Prevent Homelessness 
 

DHP is available to anyone in rented accommodation who needs further financial assistance with 

their housing costs and is currently, or will be claiming Housing Benefit or Universal Credit that 

includes a housing element.  Further financial assistance is defined as additional financial help that is 

needed where an applicant is unable to meet their housing costs from their available household 

income, for example because they have a shortfall or need help with rent arrears.  Housing costs 

generally means rent but can be interpreted more widely to include rent in advance, rent deposits, 

storage/removal costs or other lump sums associated with a housing need. 

 

 

 

 

 

37

26

38

30

18

12

0 0
4 5 5

7

1 1 0 1 0 0

6

11

4
0 0 0

7

0 0 0 0 0
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

N
o

. o
f 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s

Graph 26: No. of Households given Assistance 2018/19

Homelessness prevention fund Target hardening scheme

Rent guarantee scheme Repossession prevention fund

Sanctuary scheme

Page 106



29 
 

Source: Lichfield District Council Revenues & Benefits Team 

DHP payments can be used to support the prevention of homelessness. By assisting people to 

maintain or move to more affordable tenancies, it can be used to prevent households from falling 

into debt that might cause them to lose their homes.  

 The graph above shows that the majority of payments were for customers affected by the 

spare room reduction. However, there are an increasing number receiving DHP for help with 

Universal Credit issues, such as changes to the frequency of payments and changes in the 

amount that is awarded. It is expected that, as more claimants move to Universal Credit that 

this may increase over the next few years. 

 

The work of the Tenancy Sustainment Officer (TSO) 

 
The purpose of tenancy sustainment is to enable people to keep their tenancies, thereby reducing 

evictions and preventing homelessness. Our TSO was appointed in April 2019 to assist vulnerable 

people by connecting them to the right services and support agencies who can help them with issues 

they might have which can have an impact on their ability to sustain a tenancy.  

 

 

 

Source: Lichfield District Council  

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

N
o

. o
f 

aw
ar

d
s

Graph 27: DHP Awards 2018/19

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

1

2

2

3

4

13

17

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

Other Dispute with Landlord

Disengaged from Other Support Provider

Anti Social Behaviour

In Tenancy- Unmanageable for Other Reasons

Target Hardening

New Tenancy

In Tenancy- Arrears or Unaffordable

No. of referrals

Graph 28: Reasons for Referral to TSO from 
May - Sept 2019

Page 107



30 
 

 Graph 28 above shows the invaluable work that our TSO is carrying out to help prevent 

homelessness. Through advising the client on debt management and liaising with other support 

agencies this has resulted in a number of households being able to remain in their 

accommodation. 

 13 households have also been supported in preparing for their new tenancies. This includes 

training on paying utilities and budgeting advice which will help them to sustain their tenancies in 

the long-term. 

 

Working with our Partner Agencies 
 

Citizens Advice South East Staffordshire (CASES)  
The local Citizens Advice advises residents on issues such as debt management, welfare benefits and 

housing advice. The council supports this service through our community and voluntary sector grant 

funding in recognition of how important this work is in the prevention of homelessness. 

The table below shows the number of homelessness preventions that were directly related to the 

work of Citizens Advice in 2018/19 and demonstrates how significant their role is in helping us to 

prevent homelessness. These cases are additional to the number of preventions that were reported 

on page 10, Graph 10. 

Table 29: No. of Homeless Prevention cases by Citizens Advice 

Type of action 
How prevented from 
becoming homeless 

No. of cases 

Debt Advice 
Remain in existing 
accommodation 

12 

Resolving rent or service 
charge arrears in the 
social or private rented 
sector 

Remain in existing 
accommodation 

8 

Accommodation 
arranged with friends or 
relatives 

Found alternative 
accommodation before 
became homeless 

2 

Total 22  

       Source: CASES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 108



31 
 

Rough Sleeping 
 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 The above figures represent the official rough sleeper annual estimate, which is a 

snapshot of a single night. 

 The chart above shows that we had relatively few numbers of people rough sleeping 

throughout this time period, but there has been a steady increase in the last three years.  

 Graph 31 below shows that our overall level of rough sleeping is low compared to other 

areas within Staffordshire with East Staffordshire and Stafford having the highest 

numbers. 

Source: Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Govt (MHCLG) Live Tables on Homelessness 

 

 

3
4

3

0

4

2 2
3

1
2 2

0

3 3

5

2
3

5
4

2

7 7

4
5

1

15

2
1

0

6

4

8

3

7

1
0

5

16

5
4

5

7

2

0

4

11

2
3

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

N
o

. o
f 

R
o

u
gh

 S
le

ep
er

s

Local Authority

Graph 31: No. of Rough Sleepers in Staffordshire recorded at 
the Rough Sleeper Count/Estimate 2013 - 2018

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

3

1

3

1

3

5

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018N
O

. O
F 

R
O

U
G

H
 S

LE
EP

ER
S

YEAR

Graph 30: No. of Estimated Rough Sleepers in Lichfield 
District 

Page 109



32 
 

Lichfield Emergency Night Shelter (LENS) 
 

The Lichfield Emergency Night Shelter opened for the first time in 2018/19 for two months 

running from 2 February to 31 March 2019. The table below shows how successful the 

scheme was in its first year. 

Table 32: Information on use of Lichfield Emergency Night Shelter Feb & March 2019 

No. of rough sleepers that used the shelter  8 

Average occupancy levels per night 3 

Average no. of nights people stayed 22 

No. of rough sleepers helped to move to independent or supported accomm. 4 

No. offered permanent accommodation 3 

No. began engaging in recovery services  2 
 Source: Lichfield District Council 

 

Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP) 
 

The SWEP is designed to protect rough sleepers from the effects of severe weather by providing 

accommodation to any rough sleepers, regardless of their eligibility under the homelessness 

legislation when the night time temperature is likely to be 0 degrees C or below for at least three 

consecutive nights.  

The table below show the number of nights that the SWEP was active and the number of rough 

sleepers assisted. 

 

Table 33: No. of Rough Sleepers assisted under the SWEP Protocol 2017-2019 

Year No. of nights 
No. of Rough 

Sleepers assisted 
No. of nights Total cost (£) 

2017 19 1 3 144 

2018 30 3 3 162 

2019 11 3 8 360 
         Source: Lichfield District Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



Annexe C – Summary of the Research Project on the Assessment of the Housing 

Needs of Older People, People with Mental Health Needs and people with 

Physical Disabilities in Lichfield District February 2020 
 
In September 2019, Lichfield District Council commissioned the Housing Learning and Improvement 

Network (Housing LIN) to carry out a study of the current and future housing needs of the following 

3 specific groups of people:- 

 Older residents (aged 60 or over) 

 Adults with mental health issues and/or learning disabilities who require supported 

accommodation 

 Adults with physical disabilities who require adaptations to their homes. 

The purpose of this study is to ensure the council is fully aware of the current housing available for 

these groups and their housing needs for the future. This research will then enable the council to 

influence development of the right specialist housing through partnership working with developers 

and Registered Providers.  The project consisted of firstly examining existing data on the 

demographic and socio-economic profile of these groups, followed by interviews and surveys to find 

out the suitability of their current accommodation and their expected future housing needs. 

Findings of the Project 

Older People 
The findings of the study confirmed that our population is getting older and there will be a 

significant rise in the number of residents aged 65 or over from 2019 to 2035. This will have major 

implications on the suitability of current housing and will affect demand for certain types of homes 

to be built over the next few decades. The number of people with long term conditions will increase 

due to the ageing population and dementia will become more common.  The number of older 

people with learning disabilities will also increase due to people with this condition living longer as 

life expectancy improves. In light of these findings, Housing LIN concluded the following:- 

 An additional 590 specialist1 homes will be required by 2035 to accommodate older people 

with around 295 for rent and 295 for sale. 

 205 homes with care provision are needed comprising approx. 125 for rent and 80 for sale. 

 The ageing population will mean there will be an increase in the number of people living in 

unsuitable accommodation due to accessibility issues and there will therefore be an increase 

in demand for DFGs to install adaptations such as ramps, stairlifts and level access showers. 

 A proportion of new homes should be built to Lifetime Homes Standards2 

 Due to the rise in dementia cases, there is a need for the provision of dementia care and 

dementia-friendly homes3  

 Older residents want a greater choice of housing options across all tenures. Many are 

currently living in large family-sized homes which are unsuitable for their needs and, though 

they are interested in downsizing, any new homes should be affordable and offer an 

accessible living environment as they get older. 

 Extra care housing is attractive to some older people and there was also an interest in both 

one and two bedroom properties.  

                                                           
1 These ‘specialist’ units include sheltered housing schemes with a scheme manager, 24-hour emergency help service and 

communal areas; age designated housing such as flats or bungalows where all tenants are over a certain age and extra care 
housing which has communal facilities and access to domestic support and on-site 24/7 personal care. 
2 Homes that meet 16 design criteria that are intended to make homes more accessible and adaptable for lifetime use at 

minimal cost http://www.lifetimehomes.org.uk/ 
3 This includes homes with good lighting, level access floors and simple, user-friendly kitchen and bathroom layout. 

Page 111

http://www.lifetimehomes.org.uk/


 Many of the older residents surveyed stressed the importance for any new age-related 

homes to be spacious, well-designed and close to amenities and services. 

 A lot of older people wanted new housing to have facilities which encouraged social 

interaction and gave the opportunity to establish a strong community. 

 Many of those surveyed thought that there was a shortage of suitable accommodation for 

older people in Burntwood. 

People with Learning Disabilities and Mental Health Needs 

Findings 
The findings showed that there will be a slight reduction in the number of residents with 

learning disabilities but there will be an increase in the number of older people with these 

conditions due to improvements in life expectancy. Lichfield district also has a small but 

significant number of adults with learning disabilities who still live with their parents. 

Unfortunately, these parents are getting older and are beginning to have their own care needs 

which has implications for the housing options available. In addition, the county council policy is 

to decrease the use of residential care for adults with learning disabilities and to increase the 

provision of supported housing. In light of these findings, Housing LIN recommended the 

following:- 

 There is a significant number of people with mental health issues that live in unsuitable 

housing. Many of the people with learning disabilities said that they wished to live as 

independently as possible in order to improve their quality of life and there is therefore a 

need for more appropriate affordable housing to be built to enable these groups to live as 

independently as possible. 

 More specialist accommodation and/or support in the home will be required over the 

coming decades, including for people who are physically disabled and have a learning 

disability, or who lose their current family carer due to old age. 

 There is a need for more supported housing for people with learning disabilities to enable 

people to live independently in their community and close to family support networks. An 

estimated 32 net additional units of supported housing is required for people with 

learning disabilities in Lichfield district to 2030/31.  

 There is a need for the District Council to engage with County Council commissioners to 

develop district level housing plans in relation to meeting the housing needs of adults with 

learning disabilities. 

 

Lichfield District Council’s response to this project 
 

In the light of these findings, the council has included the following actions to the Action Plan 

attached to this strategy: 

 Ensure Disabled Facilities Grants are delivered efficiently and in accordance with statutory 

duties 

 Work in partnership to maximise delivery of new age appropriate and specialist homes 

through the planning process 

 Negotiate provision of specialist housing, where appropriate, in new housing schemes 

 Establish a good working relationship with Staffordshire County Council Adult Social Care 

Team 

 Share the study and research findings with key stakeholders 

Page 112



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 1 of 8 
 

Priority One: Enable people to live in good quality homes that are suitable for their needs 

Objective One: Promote services enabling people to live independently in their own homes 
 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 

Officer & 
resources  

Timescale  

1.1 
 

Ensure Disabled Facilities 
Grants(DFGs) are delivered 
efficiently and in accordance with 
statutory duties 
 

 Quarterly and annual SILIS performance reports 
produced 

 Information available online for customers is 
reviewed 

 Review the contract and future DFG delivery 

 70 adaptations are completed per annum  
 DFG Budget is spent 
 DFGs are delivered effectively  

HWM,  
 
DFG 
budget of 
£1.1 m 

Quarterly 
reports. 
Contract 
renewal 
March 
2023 

 

1.2 Review and publish a revised 
Housing Assistance Policy  

 Review the effectiveness and outcomes achieved 
through the current policy 

 Review the emergency home repair grant 
eligibility 

 Review assistance provided through the 
homelessness prevention and assistance policy 
and consolidate both policies  

 A review of the policy and the 
effectiveness of housing assistance is 
completed 

 A draft revised policy is produced and 
consulted on  

 Final consolidated policy completed and 
website updated 

HWM  
HOM, 
HSWO 

March 
2021 

 

Objective Two: Advise and where possible support vulnerable households living in poor housing conditions 
 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 

Officer & 
resources  

Timescale  

1.3 Make effective use of our statutory 
powers to improve the private 
rented stock, ensuring homes meet 
at least minimum housing 
standards 

 Highlight our statutory powers and offer guidance 
through the Landlords Forum  

 Monitor the number of complaints received and 
action taken 

 Develop intelligence gathering techniques to 
ensure unlicensed HMOs are licenced 

 Review and improve the information on our 
website to ensure tenants are aware of their 
rights 

 Review resources available to commence more 
proactive improvement work 

 Private rented stock is improved 
 All complaints are responded to in-line 

with the customer promise and 
appropriate action is taken 

 Annual review of complaints  
 Increased number of licensed HMOs 
 Website is improved  

PSHM, 
PSHO, 
HWSO 

March 
2024  

 

P
age 113



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 2 of 8 
 

Objective Two: Advise and where possible support vulnerable households living in poor housing conditions 
 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 

Officer & 
resources  

Timescale  

1.4 Through Warmer Homes Greener 
District (WHGD) work in 
partnership with Staffordshire 
Warmer Homes Partners to deliver 
positive health and housing 
outcomes amongst target groups 

 Delivery of Staffordshire Warmer Homes project 
 Completion of street-level mains gas schemes 

enabling homes to benefit from new mains gas 
connection and first time gas central heating 

 Quarterly monitoring of referrals and associated 
impacts between WHGD and health/care partners 

 5 new street-level mains gas schemes 
completed enabling up to 200 homes to 
benefit from new mains gas connection  

 ECO Funding opportunities maximised 
within the project period 

 

HWSO December 
2024 
 
March 
2024 

 

1.5 Promote the WHGD advice line and 
the various services available to all 
residents 

 Approval of new flexible eligibility declarations  
 Organisation of geographically targeted 

promotion  
 Performance of WHGD is reviewed annually 

 20 flexible eligibility declarations 
approved per year 

 4 rounds of geographically targeted 
promotion per year 

 ECO funding opportunities maximised 

HWSO, 
WGHD 
budget 

Annual 
reviews 
 
March 
2024 

 

Objective Three: Encourage the best use of the housing stock  
 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 

Officer & 
Resources  

Timescale  

1.6 Work to minimise the number of 
long term empty homes in the 
district and increase the number 
brought back into use 

 Online information resource is published 
 Participate in the development of the ‘Action On 

Empty Homes’ national toolkit for communities 
and local authorities 

 Review policy on empty homes   

 Long term empties as a proportion of total 
housing stock is decreased 

 Policy on empty homes reviewed  

HWSO March 
2024 
 
End of 
2021 

 

1.7 Finalise and implement new 
arrangements for the 
administration of the housing 
register and the new allocation 
scheme  
 

 New arrangements for the housing register are 
finalised 

 Review, adopt and implement a revised Housing 
Allocations scheme and allocations system 

 Nomination agreements with RPs are reviewed 
and revised 

 Review the Tenancy Strategy  

 New arrangements in place for the 
administration of the housing register 

 Eligibility for social housing revised  
 New allocations scheme is in operation 
 Better information on availability of stock  
 Revised nomination agreements in place 
 Revised Tenancy Strategy completed 

HWM, 
HOM, 
HSO 

March  
2021 
 
Tenancy 
Strategy 
April 2021 

 

 

P
age 114



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 3 of 8 
 

Priority Two: Increase housing choice to meet the needs of current and future residents 

Objective Four: Increase the supply of affordable housing 
 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 

Officer & 
Resources  

Timescale  

2.1 Work in partnership to maximise 
delivery of new affordable homes  

 Review process for responding to planning 
applications 

 Complete the housing evidence base for the 
revised Local Plan including affordable housing 
need and viability 

 Local Plan housing policies revised including 
affordable housing policy (incl. commuted sums)  

 Supplementary Planning Documents revised 
 Developer Contributions SPD revised 

incorporating  
 required contributions on sites including 

affordable housing 
 process for determining viability appraisals  

 Acquire properties using commuted sums, existing 
reserves and right to buy receipts 

 Revised process in place 
 Local Plan housing evidence base 

completed 
 Revised target for affordable homes built 

per annum in accordance with new Local 
Plan evidence base 

 Revised Local Plan and policies in place 
 Revised SPD(s) covering all developer 

contributions in place  
 
 
 
 Properties purchased for the Housing First 

scheme and additional affordable homes 
acquired to meet our statutory housing 
duties 

HWM  
HOM, 
HWSO,  
Spatial 
Policy 

Process 
review 
October 
2020 
 
Local Plan 
2021 
 
Revised 
SPDs 2022 
 
 
March 
2024 
 

 

2.2 Work with Approved RPs to 
monitor their stock and look for 
new sites and regeneration 
opportunities to increase the 
number of rented and shared 
ownership homes 

 Opportunities for new build and regeneration of 
older schemes explored 

 Quarterly updates on new build in the pipeline 
 Annually review RP criteria for specification and 

location of new affordable housing 
 Annual review meetings with Approved RPs to 

share data and monitor performance 

 Annual update of the Housing directory of RP 
stock to monitor disposals and completions 

 Regeneration schemes identified 
 Reviewed RP criteria for the specification 

and location of new affordable housing 
 Supply of affordable homes increased 
 Housing Directory updated  
 

HWM 
HWSO 

Annually 
 
March 
2024 
 
 
 

 

P
age 115



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Priority Two: Increase housing choice to meet the needs of current and future residents 

Objective Four: Increase the supply of affordable housing 
 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 

Officer & 
Resources  

Timescale  

2.3 Begin developing housing through 
the council’s new local housing 
company and limited liability 
partnership with PSP to help 
accelerate the rate of build and 
diversify tenure 

 Development of the first new homes is in progress  
 Identify medium to long term opportunities to 

deliver affordable homes  

 30 new homes by 2024/25 
 Smaller homes for rent and sale built 
 Profits from homes built are pooled and 

reinvested into new housing 
 Medium to long term opportunities to 

deliver affordable homes identified 

CEx, Asst 
CEx  

2024/25  

Objective Five: Ensure an adequate supply of suitable and accessible accommodation for vulnerable and older people 
in need 

 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 
Officer & 
Resources  

Timeline  

2.4 Work in partnership to enable new 
provision of specialist housing and 
homes built to Lifetime Homes 
Standards 
 
 
 
 
 

 Share the Independent Living study findings with 
key stakeholders such as SCC  

 Engage with County Council commissioners on 
their plan for meeting the housing needs of adults 
with learning disabilities 

 Ensure the Local Plan reflects  
 the needs identified for specialist housing for 

older people and adults with learning 
disabilities   

 the need for homes built to Lifetime Homes 
Standards 

 the need for the provision of dementia-friendly 
homes 

 Work to determine what proportion of 
new homes are built to Lifetime Homes 
Standards 

 Revised Local Plan and policies in place 
 New schemes and opportunities for life 

time homes identified  
 

HWM, 
HSWO 

December 
2020 
 
 
 
Spring 2021 
 

 

2.5 
 

Monitor the success of specialist 
housing schemes currently on site 

 Regular updates with partners 
 Determine success of new schemes being built 

 Greater intelligence obtained on the need 
for further specialist schemes 

HWM, 
HSWO 

April 2021  

 

P
age 116



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 5 of 8 
 

Priority Three: Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 

Objective One: Improve the range of suitable housing options for those who are homeless or at risk of homelessness 

 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 
Officer & 
Resources  

Timescale  

3.1 Promote the work of the Tenancy 
Sustainment Officer and develop a 
‘Private Landlords’ Offer’ for 
landlords who have appropriate 
properties for rent for low-
income/vulnerable households  

 Use the Landlords’ Forum to ensure landlords are 
aware of the Tenancy Sustainment Officer role in 
supporting tenants  

 Work with landlords to develop a good 
understanding of the right incentives and support 
required to encourage them to rent to vulnerable 
and low-income households 

 Investigate why households are made homeless 
from private sector tenancies  

 Set up landlord offer group to determine content 
of offer and consult on draft with landlords 

 Review effectiveness of TSO role with Bromford 
and consider long term sustainability of the role 

 An increase in the number of private 
sector landlords willing to work with us 
and to rent to vulnerable and low-income 
households 

 Reduced trend of the number of homeless 
acceptances due to the ending of ASTs  

 Increased prevention and relief of 
homelessness due to end of AST 

 Good communication & working 
relationship with private landlords 

HOM, 
SHOO, 
TSO 
 
 
 

 

May 2021  

3.2 Purchase properties for households 
with complex and multiple needs 
including those to be leased out for 
the Housing First scheme  

 Complete acquisition of the 3 properties in 
progress 

 Finalise lease with Spring 
 Identify and purchase other suitable properties 

 Lease agreement with Spring finalised 
 5 properties purchased and let 
 Increased housing options available for 

people with complex and multiple needs 

HOS, 
HOM, 
PSHO,  

End June 
2020 for 
the first 3 
and other 2 
by March 
2021   

 

3.3 Actively promote DHP and 
homeless prevention schemes to 
enable households to access or 
remain in the private or social 
rented sector  

 Monitor use of DHP & HPS to ensure used to 
maximum advantage to prevent homelessness 

 Raise awareness of the use of DHP & HPS amongst 
our partners 

 Review homelessness prevention and assistance 
policy 

 100% DHP spent 
 Awareness raised 
 Homelessness prevention and assistance 

policy reviewed 
 

 

HOM, 
SHOO 

 
April 2021 

 

 

P
age 117



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 6 of 8 
 

Priority Three: Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 

Objective Two: Identify and provide support to those who face barriers to accessing and maintaining suitable 
accommodation 

 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 
Officer & 
Resources  

Timescale  

3.4 Review joint working arrangements 
with all partners, public and third 
sector organisations to ensure that 
maximum support is available to 
those with complex and multiple 
needs 

 Carry out a regular review of the referral process 
to ensure the correct procedure is being carried 
out & all relevant households are being referred 

 Identify new supported accommodation to 
increase the options available  

 Review suitability of supported schemes 
 Review the operation of the weekly Vulnerability 

Hub and encourage all agencies that can help 
prevent homelessness to attend 

 Review role of Through Care Group and agree 
terms of reference 

 Develop an eviction protocol with Pathway to 
reduce the number of households that are asked 
to leave the refuge and seek help with 
accommodation from the council 

 Increase awareness of and accessibility to 
services to create an enhanced customer 
experience   

 New supported accommodation schemes, 
including out of area with no local 
connection criteria are identified 

 Vulnerability Hub reviewed 
 Terms of reference for Through Care 

Group agreed  
 Protocol with Pathway established  
 Fewer approaches from households asked 

to leave the Pathway refuge 

HOM, 
SHOO, HOT 

March 
2024 
 
 
 
 

 

3.5 Develop our Homeless Prevention 
Forum of housing providers, 
support services and partner 
agencies  

 Establish regular meetings of the Forum 
 Work with partner, voluntary, community and 

statutory organisations to review best practice 
and measure the impact of initiatives 

 Forum established, membership, role, 
remit and terms of reference agreed 

 Forum monitors the strategy action plan 

HOM, 
SHOO 

March  
2021 

 

3.6 Work with Registered Providers to 
establish a protocol to reduce the 
number of evictions from social 
housing and increase access to 
accommodation 

 Liaise with RPs about their strategies to prevent 
homelessness e.g. through their ‘Homes for 
Cathy’1 commitments. 

 Discuss with RPs their policies with regard to 
previous housing debt 

 Look at the establishment of eviction panels 

 Increase the number of households that 
are prevented from homelessness by 
being able to remain in their existing 
home 

 

HOM, 
SHOO, TSO 

March 
2024 

 

                                                           
1 A group of Housing Associations that have signed up to nine commitments aimed at tackling homelessness  

P
age 118



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 7 of 8 
 

Priority Three: Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping 

Objective Two: Identify and provide support to those who face barriers to accessing and maintaining suitable 
accommodation 

 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 
Officer & 
Resources  

Timescale  

3.7 Ensure effective discharge 
protocols with public agencies are 
in place where appropriate and 
possible e.g. Hospitals and prisons  

 Review existing protocols with all prisons 
 Review protocols with hospitals 
 Promote the use of discharge planning meetings 

where possible 
 Promote use of ‘Alert’ protocol 

 Number and nature of applications from 
hospitals, prisons, etc., is known to inform 
further actions   

 Effective protocol in place with prisons 
particularly over placement of high risk 
offenders  

 Protocols in use where needed  

HOM, 
SHOO 

Prisons 
end of 
2020 
 
All others 
by end of 
2021` 

 

3.8 Effectively liaise with other council 
departments to improve the 
prevention of homelessness 

 Explore using a community safety mediation 
scheme for relationship breakdown/ family 
exclusion 

 Work with the Community Safety team to ensure 
incidents of violence or anti-social behaviour are 
addressed  

 Develop early warning system with private sector 
team where there are potential issues regarding a 
tenancy that may lead to eviction 

 Ensure optimum use of DHP  

 Greater liaison between services 
 Greater take up of services  

HOM, 
community 
safety 
team, revs 
and 
benefits, 
PSHO  

June 2021  

 
 

P
age 119



ANNEXE D        ACTION PLAN Draft at 22/05/2020 

Page 8 of 8 
 

Priority Three: Prevent or relieve all forms of homelessness including rough sleeping  

Objective Three: Tackle rough sleeping so that no one needs to sleep rough  
 Actions Milestones Outcomes Lead 

officer & 
resources 

Timescale   

3.9 Monitor and review the Spring 
Housing rough sleeper outreach 
service and ‘Housing First’ project 
to ensure it delivers its outcomes 

 Regular monitoring meeting held with Spring HA 
to ensure targets are being met 

 Annual reviews completed 
 Council properties purchased 
 RP properties identified 

 Reduction in rough sleepers  
 Additional support provided to rough 

sleepers including access to health and 
addiction services 

HOM, 
SHOO, 
Spring, HOT 

May 2021 
 
 

 

3.10 Review the SWEP protocol in line 
with government guidance  

 SWEP reviewed regarding the triggers for 
activation 

 Review agencies on distribution list 
 Monitor number of rough sleepers housed 

through SWEP as a measure of the success  

 Revised SWEP criteria operational 
 SWEP activated during all forms of severe 

weather 
 Revised homelessness prevention and 

assistance policy 

HOM SWEP 
review 
complete 
 
March 
2021 

 

3.11 Work closely with Churches 
Together to evaluate the future 
need for a night shelter  

 Review success of previous night shelters 
 Assess requirement and identify funding for 

future night shelters 

 Review completed of the night shelters in 
2019 and 2020 

 Fewer rough sleepers on the streets as 
they are using the shelter  

 Night shelters open in future years if 
needed 

HOM  September 
2020 
 
Ongoing 

 

3.12 To work with partners on the 
District Board to explore a 
‘diverted giving scheme’ or similar 
initiative to discourage street 
begging and promote proactive 
schemes to support people to 
move away from begging 

 Attend regular meetings & share intelligence with 
Community Safety, police and other agencies to 
report on street begging  

 Raise awareness amongst the public of the 
council’s new policy on street begging & 
alternative ways of helping street beggars 

 Work with police & other agencies to tackle street 
begging through enforcement methods where 
appropriate 

 A form of alternative or ‘diverted’ giving 
scheme is put in place 

 Public are aware of the scheme and are 
using it 

 Reduction in numbers of those street 
begging 

HOM, 
Community  
Safety, 
HOT 

July 2020 
for initial 
launch of 
scheme 

 

 

P
age 120



 

Page | 1  

Annexe E  

Glossary of Homelessness Terms 
 

Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) 

This is a payment that can be granted at the 

discretion of the local authority to help 

towards housing costs. Only those entitled to 

Housing Benefit or the housing costs element 

of Universal Credit can receive it. 

 

Duty to Refer 

Certain public authorities must notify a local 
housing authority in England where one of its 
service users may be homeless or at risk of 
homelessness (and they agree to the referral). 
The following are public authorities with a 
duty to refer:- 

 prisons  

 youth offender institutions and youth 
offending teams 

 secure training centres and colleges 

 probation services  

 jobcentre plus 

 accident and emergency services provided 
in a hospital 

 social service authorities. 

 The Ministry of Defence is also subject to 
the duty to refer in relation to members 
of the Royal Navy, the Royal Marines, the 
regular army and the Royal Air Force. 
 

Eligible for Assistance 

To qualify for help under the homelessness 

legislation or to be entitled to housing benefit, 

an applicant must be eligible for assistance. 

Eligibility for assistance is dependent upon the 

applicant’s immigration status, or her/his right 

of residence in the UK or whether s/he is 

habitually resident in the UK.  

 

Homeless acceptances (pre HRA) 

Acceptances: households found to be eligible 

for assistance, unintentionally homeless and 

falling within a priority need group (as defined 

by homelessness legislation - see below) 

during the quarter are referred to as 

“acceptances”. These households are 

consequently owed a main homelessness duty 

by a local housing authority. The main duty is 

to secure settled accommodation. 

 

Homeless Application (prior to the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017(HRA) 

This refers to when a person who may be 

homeless or threatened with homelessness 

within 56 days applies to the local authority 

for help in finding them a home, to prevent 

them from losing their home, or to secure 

alternative accommodation. The application 

does not need to be in writing and can be 

made on a person’s behalf. 

 

Homelessness Assessments (after the HRA) 

This is a new definition introduced by the HRA 

and refers to those households who approach 

the council as homeless or threatened with 

homelessness. They are then assessed as 

being owed either the prevention or relief 

duty or no duty at all (i.e. they are not 

homeless or threatened with homelessness 

within 56 days). 

 

Housing Enquiries 

These are all enquiries made to the council 

about issues regarding housing and 

homelessness. They include telephone calls, 

emails or visits to reception. 

 

Housing Main Duty (post HRA) 

A person or household is owed the main 

housing duty if they are found to be eligible, 

unintentionally homeless and in priority need. 

 

Intentionally Homeless 

Section 191(1) provides that a person 

becomes homeless intentionally if ALL of the 

following apply:  

 a. they deliberately do or fail to do anything 
in consequence of which they cease to occupy 
accommodation; and,  

Page 121



 

Page | 2  

 b. the accommodation is available for their 
occupation; and,  

c. it would have been reasonable for them to 
continue to occupy the accommodation. 

 

Prevention Duty 

The prevention duty applies when a local 

authority is satisfied that an applicant is 

threatened with homelessness within 56 days 

and eligible for assistance. The LA is required 

to 'take reasonable steps to help the applicant 

to secure that accommodation does not cease 

to be available’. 

 

Priority Need 

The Housing Act 1996 defines five categories 

of people who must be accepted as in priority 

need, namely:- 

 pregnant women, or any person who 

resides with a pregnant woman 

 households with dependent children  

 all 16- and 17-year-olds, provided they are 

not a 'relevant child' (i.e. they remain the 

responsibility of social services) or a child 

in need to whom a local authority owes a 

duty under section 20 of the Children Act 

1989 

 all 18- to 20-year olds, who 'at any time 

after reaching the age of 16, but while still 

under 18' were, but are no longer, looked 

after, accommodated or fostered 

 any person who has lost her/his 

accommodation as a result of an 

emergency such as flood, fire or other 

disaster. 

The Housing Act 1996 also defines the 

following groups who will be accepted as in 

priority need provided that the authority is 

satisfied that they are vulnerable. A person 

may be vulnerable as a result of: 

 old age, mental illness or disability, 

physical disability or other special reason, 

or someone who lives with one of these 

categories of vulnerable person 

 having been looked after, accommodated 

or fostered and is aged 21 or over  

 having been a member of Her Majesty's 

regular naval, military or air forces 

 having served a custodial sentence 

 having had to leave accommodation 

because of violence or threats of violence 

from another person that are likely to be 

carried out. 

 

Registered Providers (Housing Associations) 

Registered Providers in England are 

independent societies, bodies of trustees or 

companies that provide low-cost social 

housing for people in housing need on a non-

profit-making basis. They are predominantly 

charities and any trading surplus is used to 

maintain existing homes and to help finance 

new ones.  

 

Relief Duty 

The relief duty applies when a local authority 

is satisfied that an applicant is homeless and 

eligible for assistance. It requires an authority 

to 'take reasonable steps to help the applicant 

to secure that suitable accommodation 

becomes available for the applicant's 

occupation' for at least six months.  

 

Rough Sleeping 

A person who is sleeping rough as defined by 

the government is someone who is sleeping, 

or bedded down, in the open air (such as on 

the streets, or in doorways, parks or bus 

shelters); or are in buildings or other places 

not designed for habitation (such as barns, 

sheds, car parks, cars, derelict boats or 

stations). 

 

Temporary Accommodation 

This is accommodation provided by the local 

authority to homeless households in priority 

need owed the relief duty or the main duty.  

Page 122


	Agenda
	3 Money Matters 2019/20 : Review of Financial Performance against the Financial Strategy
	4 Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy
	Appendix 1 for Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019-2024
	Annexes A-E for Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2019-2024
	Annexe A Evidence for our Housing Strategy Final v.2
	Annexe A: Housing Evidence
	Population and Age Profile of Lichfield District
	Chart: 3 Population aged 65 and over

	Household Projections
	Household Composition
	Life Expectancy
	Deprivation
	Learning Disabilities
	House Tenure
	Housing Tenure by Area 2011

	Housing Affordability
	Condition of Housing Stock
	Private Sector Stock
	Energy Efficiency
	Housing standards in the Private Sector

	Housing need
	The Housing Register
	Housing & Economic Development Needs Assessment (HEDNA)
	Affordable Housing completions
	Stock composition
	Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s)
	Housing Register


	Annexe B Homelessness Review v.2
	List of Tables
	Introduction
	Pre-Homelessness Reduction Act 2017
	Levels of Homelessness
	Relative Levels of Homelessness compared to other Staffordshire Local Authorities
	Who is Being Made Homeless in Lichfield?
	Household Type
	Age
	Ethnicity

	Reasons for Homelessness
	Homeless Prevention

	Homelessness statistics since the Introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017
	Levels of Homelessness 2018/19
	Reasons for Approaching the Council
	Duty to Refer
	Relative Levels of Homelessness compared to other Staffordshire Local Authorities
	Main Duty Decisions
	Who is Being Made Homeless in Lichfield District?
	Type of Household
	Age
	Ethnic Background
	Employment Status

	Reason for Loss of Last Settled Home in 2018-19
	Accommodation at time of application for those owed duty
	Support Needs for Households Owed a Duty
	Homeless Preventions and Reliefs
	Type of Accommodation Secured
	How Accommodation was secured
	Homeless Reliefs
	Use of Temporary Accommodation
	Number of Households in Temporary Accommodation
	Average length of stay in Temporary Accommodation.
	Cost of Bed and Breakfast Emergency Accommodation

	Homeless Prevention Schemes
	The use of Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) to Prevent Homelessness
	The work of the Tenancy Sustainment Officer (TSO)
	Working with our Partner Agencies
	Citizens Advice South East Staffordshire (CASES)


	Rough Sleeping
	Lichfield Emergency Night Shelter (LENS)
	Severe Weather Emergency Protocol (SWEP)


	Annexe C Independent Living Survey 2
	Annexe C – Summary of the Research Project on the Assessment of the Housing Needs of Older People, People with Mental Health Needs and people with Physical Disabilities in Lichfield District February 2020
	Findings of the Project
	Older People

	People with Learning Disabilities and Mental Health Needs
	Findings

	Lichfield District Council’s response to this project


	Annexe D Action Plan Final version
	Annexe E Glossary of Homelessness Terms
	Glossary of Homelessness Terms






